
 

City Council Agenda 1 February 5, 2007 
 

MISSIO� VIEJO AGE�DA 
City Council, Community Development Agency,  
Community Development Financing Authority,  

Public Improvement Corporation, and Library Board of Trustees* 
 February 5, 2007, at 5:00 PM 
 
City Hall, 200 Civic Center, Mission Viejo, California, 92691        City Council Chamber 
 
This meeting was imported into the system.   
 
 
MEETI�G ITEMS 
 
 City Council Agenda 2/5/07 
 
 Public Comments 
 
 02 - City Council Minutes 1/15/07 
 
 04 - Check Register Dated January 5, 2007, in the Amount of $1,103,702.59 
 
 05 - Check Register Dated January 12, 2007, in the Amount of $1,849,720.35 
 
 06 - Check Register Dated January 19, 2007, in the Amount of $2,438,862.97 
 
 07 - Change in Meeting Time for Regular Planning Commission Meetings 
 
 08 - �orman P. Murray Community and Senior Center Expansion Project 
 
 09 - �orman P. Murray Community and Senior Center Expansion (CIP 994) 
 
 10 - Donation Policy for City Parks & Rec Facility & Programs 
 
 11 - Mission Viejo Paleontological Fossil Contract Agreement 
 
 12 - Youth Athletic Park Change of Time for Ball Field Lights 
 
 13 - Solid Waste Franchise Agreement with WMOC 
 
 14 - Rate Adjustment to Solid Waste Delivered to Southeast Resource Recovery 

Facility 
 
 15 - Felipe Road Resurfacing Project (CIP 837) 
 
 16 - Melinda Park Restroom - CIP 308 



 

City Council Agenda 2 February 5, 2007 
 

 
 17 - Replacement of Casework and Countertops at the MV Animal Services Center 
 
 18 - Ratification of Emergency Replacement of the Library Boiler for HVAC 
 
 20 - El Toro Reuse Planning Authority 
 
 24 - ULI Tech. Advisory Panel Wkshop for M.V. Village Ctr. Area (Marg./La Paz) 
 
 25 - Council Member Reports of Events and Activities Attended 
 
 26 - Response to CUSD Plan for Blanket Environmental Impact Report 
 
 27 - Introduce and Consider a Loitering Ordinance 
 
 



City Council Agenda 1 February 5, 2007 
 

MISSION VIEJO AGENDA 
City Council, Community Development Agency,  

Community Development Financing Authority,  

Public Improvement Corporation, and Library Board of Trustees* 

 February 5, 2007, at 5:00 P.M. 
 

 City Hall, 200 Civic Center, Mission Viejo, California, 92691         City Council 

Chamber 

 

CALL TO ORDER—CITY COUNCIL, COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT AGENCY, 

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT FINANCING AUTHORITY, PUBLIC IMPROVEMENT 

CORPORATION, AND LIBRARY BOARD OF TRUSTEES  

 

*Note: All Board and Agency memberships are reflected in the title “Council Member.” 

 

 Roll Call:  Council Member Kelley 

    Council Member MacLean 

    Council Member Ury 

    Mayor Pro Tempore Ledesma 

    Mayor Reavis 

 

Pledge of Allegiance: Council Member Kelley 

 

Invocation:  Council Member MacLean 

 

Presentations, Public Hearings, and General Business will be held at 6:00 p.m. or as soon as possible 

thereafter. 

 

PUBLIC COMMENTS 
 

(Request-to-speak forms must be turned in before the Mayor announces this agenda item.  Each speaker 

may be allotted three minutes.  This portion of the agenda is limited to thirty minutes.  Any remaining 

public comments will be heard at the end of the meeting.) 

 

CLOSED SESSION  
 

CS1. Conference with City Attorney Concerning One Matter of Existing Litigation Pursuant to 

Government Code Section 54956.9(a).  The Litigation is Jose Guadalupe Gomez Mejia; Orange 

County Community Housing Corporation; Public Law Center v. City of Mission Viejo. 

 

CS2. Conference with the City’s Real Property Negotiator Pursuant to Government Code Section 

54956.8.  Property: The Approximate 2.7 Acre Parcel Identified as Assessor Parcel No. 839-

161-16, Generally Located at 28715-28841 Los Alisos Boulevard within portion of Mission 

Foothill Marketplace shopping center.  City Negotiators: Dennis Wilberg, City Manager, 

Charles Wilson, Director of Community Development. Negotiating Parties: Property Owner –

 M. F. Mission Viejo, LLC by Raymond DeAngelo.  Under Negotiation Potential Acquisition of 

Real Property Interests for Economic Development, Affordable Housing, Commercial 



City Council Agenda 2 February 5, 2007 
 

Rehabilitation and Improvement, Factors Affecting Price and Terms, Parcel Size, Use and 

Timing of Acquisition. 

 
CS3. Conference with Real Property Negotiator Government Code Section 54956.8 and 

Conference with Legal Counsel Re: Existing Tolling and Standstill Agreement and Potential 

Settlement, Government Code Section 54956.9(c). The Real Property Commonly Known as 

The Shops at Mission Viejo (Mall Property) That is Generally Bounded by Crown Valley 

Parkway to the North, Medical Center Road to the East, Marguerite Parkway to the Southeast, 

Shops Blvd., to the South, and the I-5 San Diego Freeway to the West and Comprised of 

Assessor Parcel Nos. (APNs) 740-011-38, 740-011-39, 740-011-43, 740-011-45, 740-121-15 

Owned by Mission Viejo Associates, L. P., a California Limited Partnership, With Particular 

Consideration of the Fifth Pad Proposed Building Area (PBA) and Potential Reuse and 

Redevelopment of Major Department Store Space. CDA Negotiators: On Behalf of Community 

Development Agency of the City of Mission Viejo (“CDA”): Dennis Wilberg, City 

Manager/CDA Executive Director, Irwin Bornstein, Assistant City Manager, Charles Wilson, 

Director of Community Development, James Williams, Economic Advisor, Celeste Brady, CDA 

Counsel, William Curley, III, City Attorney.  Owner Negotiators: On behalf of Mission Viejo 

Associates, L.P. (“”Owner”) From Simon Property Group, the Owner Entity’s Managing 

General Partner: Arthur Spellmeyer, William Hammer, Bruce Moore, Esq. Under Negotiation 

and Discussion: The CDA and Owner are Parties to an Existing Tolling and Standstill 

Agreement (TSA) Dated as of May 15, 2006 Relating to an Alleged Default Under the OPA and 

Covenants Agreement as Described and Defined in the TSA.  CDA will Consider the Proposed 

Price and Terms of a Real Property Transaction That May be the Basis for Amendment(s) of 

the OPA and Covenants Agreement (Amendment).  The Proposed Amendment Will Address 

Owner’s Development of the Fifth Pad PBA under the OPA and Covenants Agreement and 

Potential Reuse of Major Department Store Space and the Price and Terms of Payment, if any, 

Related to Proposed Modification of the Covenants Agreement, a Real Property Interest.  

Legal Counsel will Update CDA on the Status of TSA and Seek Direction Related to Both the 

Real Property Negotiations and the Proposed Settlement of the Alleged Default. Factors 

Affecting Price and Terms under Negotiation: (i) Modification, if any, of Covenants 

Agreement; (ii) Scope and Schedule of Development of the Fifth Pad PBA; and (iii) Reuse and 

Redevelopment of Major Department Store Space.  

 

CS4.Conference with Real Property Negotiator Pursuant to Government Code Section 54956.8. 

Property: The approximate 10.5-acre Parcel Identified as Assessor Parcel No. 809-541-11, 

Parcel Map No. 81-159 Generally Situated Easterly of the Intersection of Jeronimo Road and 

Los Alisos Boulevard in the City of Mission Viejo Co-owned by The Steadfast Companies 

(With Target Corporation). CDA Negotiators: Dennis Wilberg, City Manager/CDA Executive 

Director, Charles Wilson, Director of Community Development, James Williams, Economic 

Advisor, Celeste Brady, CDA Counsel, William Curley, III, Esq., City Attorney, Negotiating 

Parties: CDA Negotiators on Behalf of Community Development Agency of the City of Mission 

Viejo; and Ralph Deppisch, The Steadfast Companies. Under negotiation: Potential 

Acquisition and/or Disposition of Real Property Interests for Long-term Affordable 

Ownership Housing and the Price and Terms of Payment Therefore Related to the Above-

listed Property. Factors Affecting Price and Terms under Negotiation: Recorded Covenants, 

Scope of Development of Property, Affordable Housing Requirements, Factors Affecting Time 

of Payment: Conditions to Closing, Due Diligence Period, Schedule of Development and 

Development of Affordable Housing. 



City Council Agenda 3 February 5, 2007 
 

 

 

CS5. Conference with the City’s Real Property Negotiator (City Manager/Executive Director 

Dennis Wilberg and City Attorney William Curley) Pursuant to Government Code Section 

54956.8 Concerning Real Property Located Adjacent to the Southern Portion of Gilleran 

Park at 24960 Felipe Road (Assessors Parcel Number: Portion of 125-095-02) in the City of 

Mission Viejo.  The Negotiating Parties Are the City of Mission Viejo and Chabad Jewish 

Center of Mission Viejo.  Under Negotiation Will Be the Price and Terms of Payment for the 

Property Interest to Be Acquired.  Final Action, if any, on This Matter will be Taken in 

Public Session at a Future Council Meeting Following Public Comments. 

 

REPORT OF CLOSED SESSION 

 

PRESENTATIONS 

 
P1. Presentation of the Community of Character Award 

  

 Recommended Action: Present award. 

 

P2. Recognition of the Mission Viejo Company Alumni for their Assistance to the City with the 

Documenting and Preserving the Mission Viejo Heritage Collection 

  

 Recommended Action: Present commendation. 

 

P3. Recognize 2006 Employees of the Year (0410-80) 

  

 Recommended Action: Present plaques to (1) Senior Librarian Gail Meldau, City of Mission Viejo 

Employee of the Year; (2) Deputy Sheriff Carl Bulanek, Orange County Sheriff’s Department 

Employee of the Year; and (3) Fire Captain Ed Harrod, Orange County Fire Authority Employee of 

the Year. 

 

P4. Recognize Mission Viejo’s Community Recycling Program Award Winner (0410-80) 

           

         Recommended Action:  Present award. 

 

PUBLIC COMMENTS 
 

(Request-to-speak forms must be turned in before the Mayor announces this agenda item.  Each speaker 

may be allotted three minutes.  This portion of the agenda is limited to thirty minutes.  Any remaining 

public comments will be heard at the end of the meeting.) 

 

CONSENT CALENDAR 
 

1. Waive Reading of Ordinances and Resolutions 

 

 Recommended Action: Approve the reading by title of all ordinances and resolutions and declare that 

said titles which appear on the public agenda shall be determined to have been read by title and 

further reading waived. 



City Council Agenda 4 February 5, 2007 
 

 

2. City Council Minutes (0410-60) 

 

 Recommended Action: Approve the Open Session Minutes for the Regular Meeting of January 15, 

2007, as presented or as amended. 

 

3. Number not used. 

 

4. Check Register Dated January 5, 2007, in the Amount of $1,103,702.59 (0300-30) 

 

 Recommended Action: Ratify the accompanying check register. 

 

5. Check Register Dated January 12, 2007, in the Amount of $1,849,720.35 (0300-30) 

 

 Recommended Action: Ratify the accompanying check register.  

 

6. Check Register Dated January 19, 2007, in the Amount of $2,438,862.97 (0300-30) 

 

 Recommended Action: Ratify the accompanying check register.   

 

7. Change in Meeting Time for Regular Planning Commission Meetings (0120-10-05) 

 

 Recommended Action: Adopt Resolution 07-XX Changing the Established Meeting Time for the 

Planning Commission. 

 

8. Norman P. Murray Community and Senior Center Expansion (CIP 994) (0400-10) 

 

 Recommended Action: Award the alarm services contract for the subject project to Pyro-Comm 

Systems, Inc., in the amount of $23,010.  

 

9. Norman P. Murray Community and Senior Center Expansion (CIP 994) (0400-10) 

 

 Recommended Action: Approve Change Order Number 2 to Douglas E. Barnhart, Inc., in the amount 

of $25,256 for additional construction costs for the Norman P. Murray Center expansion.  

 

10. Donation Policy for City parks and Recreation Facilities and Programs (0410-90) 

 

Recommended Action: Adopt Resolution 07-XX Relating To The Donation Policy For City Parks, 

Recreation Facilities and Recreation Programs and Amending The City Council Policy Manual. 

 

11. Mission Viejo Paleontological Fossil Contract Agreement (0400-10) 

 

 Recommended Action: Enter into a contract agreement with Saddleback College for the preservation 

and restoration of the Mission Viejo Paleontological Fossil Collection.  

 

12. Youth Athletic Park—Change of Time for Ball Field Lights (0730-20) 

 

 Recommended Action: Adopt Resolution 07-XX Establishing a Turn Off Time for Ball Field Lights 

at the Youth Athletic Park at 10:15 p.m. 



City Council Agenda 5 February 5, 2007 
 

13. Solid Waste Franchise Agreement with Waste Management of Orange County (0400-10) 

 

Recommended Action: (1) Expand the responsibility of the Solid Waste Ad Hoc Committee to 

include matters related to the extension of the Solid Waste Franchise Agreement, and (2) direct staff 

and the Ad Hoc Committee to begin discussions with Waste Management of Orange County 

regarding a two-year extension of the Integrated Solid Waste Franchise Agreement and report back to 

Council in 90 days. 

 

14. Rate Adjustment for Solid Waste Delivered to Southeast Resource Recovery Facility (1030-05) 

 

 Recommended Action: Adopt Resolution 07-XX Approving the Proposed Rate Adjustment for Solid 

Waste Delivered to Southeast Resource Recovery Facility (Waste-to-Energy) for Disposal (from 

$45.26 to $58.10) Effective Immediately. 

 

15. Felipe Road Resurfacing Project (CIP 837) (0820-15) 

 

 Recommended Action: Approve the bid specifications and authorize staff to advertise for 

construction bids for the subject project. 

 

16. Melinda Park Restroom (CIP 308) (0400-10) 

 

 Recommended Action: Issue a purchase order to RJM Design Group, Inc. for the design & 

development of construction documents for bidding and construction support services for Melinda 

Park Restroom in an amount not to exceed $29,600. 

 

17. Replacement of Casework and Countertops at the Mission Viejo Animal Services Center 

(0400-10) 

 

Recommended Action: Award contract for the subject services to Mica Industries in an amount 

not to exceed $40,000. 

 

18. Ratification of Emergency Purchase Order to Replace the Boiler for the Library’s 

Heating/Ventilating/Air Conditioning (HVAC) System 

 

 Recommended action:  Ratify Purchase Order #070723 issued under the City Manager’s emergency 

purchase authority to Emcor Company on January 19, 2007, in the amount of $24,183.00, for the 

replacement of the roof-top water boiler unit for the Library’s HVAC system. 

 

ITEMS REMOVED FROM THE CONSENT CALENDAR 

 

PUBLIC HEARINGS 

 

OLD BUSINESS 

 

NEW BUSINESS 
 

MAYOR’S, COMMISSION, AND COMMITTEE REPORTS 



City Council Agenda 6 February 5, 2007 
 

 

19. Orange County Fire Authority (OCFA) Report (0410-40) 

  

Recommended Action: Receive the report. 

 

20. El Toro Reuse Planning Authority (ETRPA) Report (0640-30) 

  

 Recommended Action: (1) Receive the report, and (2) adopt Resolution 07-XX Terminating the El 

Toro Reuse Planning Authority. 

 

21. Foothill/Eastern Transportation Corridor Agency Report (0410-40) 

  

Recommended Action: Receive the report. 

 

22. San Joaquin Hills Transportation Corridor Agency Report (0410-40) 

  

 Recommended Action: Receive the report. 

 

23. Vector Control Board Report (0410-40) 

 

 Recommended Action: Receive the report 

 

STAFF REPORTS 
 

City Manager’s Report 

 

24. Urban Land Institute (ULI) Technical Advisory Panel (TAP) Workshop for Mission Viejo 

Village Center Area Generally Located in Vicinity of the Intersection of Marguerite Parkway 

and La Paz Road (0660-20) 

 

 Recommended Action: (1) Receive presentation from representatives of ULI; (2) if interested, review 

and comment on the proposed draft TAP Workshop Scope of Work; and (3) determine the role of the 

City Council in the TAP process.  

 

City Attorney’s Report 

 

COUNCIL MEMBER COMMENTS 
 

25. Council Member Reports of Events and Activities Attended (AB 1234) (0480-70) 

 

 Recommended Action: Receive reports. 

 

Council Member Kelley 

 

26. Response to CUSD Plan for Blanket Environmental Impact Report for District-Wide School 

Facilities (0150-67) 

 

Recommended Action: Send a letter to CUSD asking for rescission of the prior Board of Trustees 



City Council Agenda 7 February 5, 2007 
 

approval authorizing the preparation of an Environmental Impact Report covering every CUSD 

school. 

 

Council Member MacLean 

 

Council Member Ury 

 

Mayor Pro Tempore Ledesma 

 

27. Introduction and Consideration of a Loitering Ordinance (0480-20) 

 

 Recommended Action: Introduce Ordinance 07-XXX Adding Section 11.16.090 to Chapter 11.16 of 

Title 11 of the Mission Viejo Municipal Code Prohibiting Trespass on Private Property. 

 

Mayor Reavis 

 

28. Economic Development Committee (0120-80) 

 

 Recommended Action:  Appoint members to an Economic Development Committee. 

 

 

ADJOURNMENT TO FEBRUARY 19, 2007, AT 5:00 P.M. 
 

 

NOTE: At the hour of 9:30 p.m., the City Council will review the remaining agenda items and make a 

decision regarding the items to be considered before the 11:00 p.m. adjournment and the items to be 

continued to the next meeting.  









































 

City Council Minutes                              1   January 15, 2007 
12/14/07 11:49 AM 
 

 

MISSION VIEJO MINUTES  
City Council, Community Development Agency,  
Community Development Financing Authority, 

 Public Improvement Corporation,  
and Library Board of Trustees*  

January 15, 2007  

 

A Regular Meeting of the City Council, the Community Development Agency, the Community 
Development Financing Authority, the Public Improvement Corporation, and the Library Board 
of Trustees of the City of Mission Viejo, California, was called to order by Mayor Reavis at 5:01 
p.m., on January 15, 2007, at 200 Civic Center, Mission Viejo, California. 

A complete copy of the agenda for the meeting containing all items as shown herein was posted 
by 5:00 p.m. on January 10, 2007, on the outdoor bulletin board at City Hall. Copies were also 
posted at the Montanoso Recreation and Fitness Center, 25800 Montanoso Drive, and the 
Norman P. Murray Community and Senior Center, 24932 Veterans Way.  

*All Board and Agency memberships are reflected in the title "Council Member." 

CALL TO ORDER—CITY COUNCIL, COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 

AGENCY, COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT FINANCING AUTHORITY, 

PUBLIC IMPROVEMENT CORPORATION, AND LIBRARY BOARD OF 

TRUSTEES  
 

Present:  Council Member Kelley  
Council Member MacLean  
Council Member Ury  
Mayor Pro Tempore Ledesma  
Mayor Reavis  
  

Absent:  None  
  

Staff Present:  Dennis Wilberg, City Manager  
Irwin Bornstein, Assistant City Manager/Director of Administrative Services 
William P. Curley III, City Attorney  
Karen Hamman, City Clerk   
 

Pledge of Allegiance: Mayor Pro Tempore Ledesma  
 

Invocation: Mayor Reavis  
   



 

City Council Minutes                              2   January 15, 2007 
12/14/07 11:49 AM 
 

RECESS TO CLOSED SESSION  
 
Mayor Reavis recessed the meeting to Closed Session at 5:03 p.m.  
 

CLOSED SESSION  
 

CS1. Conference with the City’s Real Property Negotiator (City Manager/Executive 

Director Dennis Wilberg and City Attorney William Curley) Pursuant to Government 

Code Section 54956.8 Concerning Real Property Located Adjacent to the Eastern 

Boundary of Saddleback College Between Crown Valley Parkway and Avery 

Parkway (Assessors Parcel Number 740-112-35) in the City of Mission Viejo.  The 

Negotiating Parties Are the City of Mission Viejo and Spectrum Housing, LLC (Its 

General Partners).  Under Negotiation Will Be the Price and Terms of Payment for 

the Property Interest to Be Acquired. Final action, if any, on this matter will be taken 

in public session at a future Council Meeting following Public Comments.  
 

CS2. Conference with Legal Counsel—Anticipated Litigation. Potential Litigation 

Pursuant to Subdivision (c) of Government Code Section 54956.9. Two Cases Under 

Consideration.  
 

RECONVENE  
 
Mayor Reavis reconvened the meeting at 6:05 p.m.  All five City Council Members were 
present. 
 

REPORT OF CLOSED SESSION  
 
City Attorney Bill Curley announced that the Council provided direction to the City's negotiators 
for CS1 but there was no reportable action.  For Closed Session item CS2, there was no 
reportable action on the first case under consideration.  Regarding the second case, the City 
Council directed the City Attorney to contact Southern California Edison to ask for information 
in support of Edison’s presentation to the City regarding improvements and re-phasing of the 
Viejo System line.  Upon receipt of that information, the City Council will decide what course of 
action to take.  
 

PRESENTATIONS  
 

P1.  Oath of Office for Newly Appointed Planning and Transportation Commissioners, 

Investment Advisory Commissioners, and Community Services Commissioners  
 

 

City Clerk Karen Hamman administered the Oath of Office and Mayor Reavis presented 
Certificates of Appointment to (1) Community Services Commissioners Patricia 
Bennett, Ron Harris, Ronald Ruef, and Brian Skalsky; (2) Investment Advisory 
Commissioners Mary Hugar and Patrick Imburgia; and (3) Planning and Transportation 
Commissioners Richard Atkinson, Mynette Beauchamp, David Leckness, Rick Sandzimier, 
and Richard Schweinberg.  Community Services Commissioners Anna Boyce and Tim 



 

City Council Minutes                              3   January 15, 2007 
12/14/07 11:49 AM 
 

Reid and Investment Advisory Commissioners Duncan Merritt and Kevin Moran were 
unable to attend and will receive their oaths at a later date.  

 

P2.  Recognize Citywide Volunteers for Their 1,000 Hours of Volunteer Service (0410-80) 

 

 

Library Assistant Patrice Rand, Leslie McDonald and Mayor Reavis presented certificates 
of appreciation to (1) Richard McConaughy for volunteer hours at the Mission Viejo 
Library; (2) Barbara Otaki for volunteer hours at the Mission Viejo Library and the 
Norman P. Murray Community and Senior Center; and (3) Carmen Chasiquiza for 
volunteer hours at the Norman P. Murray Community and Senior Center.  

 

PUBLIC COMMENTS  
 
Larry Gilbert, M.V.: read from a press release issued by the City on October 30, 2006, regarding 
Mission Viejo’s “Safest City” designation and expressed concern about a recent rash of auto 
thefts and burglaries at the Shops at Mission Viejo. 
 
Terry Graham, Saddleback Neighborhood Alliance, Lake Forest: asked the City Council to take 
care of the day laborer problem at Los Alisos and Jeronimo before it gets out of hand like it did 
in the City of Lake Forest.   
 
Lisa Schoeneberger, Lake Forest: expressed concern with day laborers congregating at Jeronimo 
Plaza and surrounding areas.  Asked the City to work with the business owners at Jeronimo Plaza 
to prevent a problem before it gets out of control.  
 
Bob Holtzclaw, Minute Man Project, Lake Forest: discussed the City of Lake Forest’s ordinance 
to prevent day laborers from congregating in certain areas and encouraged the City of Mission 
Viejo to consider a similar ordinance.  

Sandra Sweet, M.V.: expressed dismay with the day laborer problem at the corner of Jeronimo 
and Los Alisos and announced that concerned citizens will stage a protest on Saturday, from 8:00 
to 11:00 a.m. 

Vincent Burke, M.V.: asked the City Council to consider enacting a day laborer ordinance 
similar to the City of Lake Forest’s. 

Cathy Schlicht, M.V.: asked why the public was kept in the dark about a 53% increase in car 
thefts that began last summer. 

Joe Holtzman, M.V.: discussed an editorial in the OC Register entitled “Not Very Bright Ideas 
From Edison” and expressed his concern with misconduct and misinformation from SCE. 

Steven Guess, M.V.: stated that the last election campaign was the most negative in our city’s 
history and that we need to work together as a community to resolve differences. 

Christiane Dudzinski, M.V.: expressed concern with overgrown trees that block the view from 
her home and asked the City for assistance. 



 

City Council Minutes                              4   January 15, 2007 
12/14/07 11:49 AM 
 

CONSENT CALENDAR  
 

Motion made by Mayor Pro Tempore Ledesma, seconded by Council Member MacLean, 
to approve the Consent Calendar as described below.  
  
On roll call, said motion carried by the following vote:  
 
AYES: Kelley, MacLean, Ury, Ledesma, Reavis 
NOES: None 
ABSENT: None 
 

1.  Waive Reading of Ordinances and Resolutions 

 

 
Approved the reading by title of all ordinances and resolutions and declared that said titles 
which appear on the public agenda shall be determined to have been read by title and 
further reading waived.  

 

2.  City Council Minutes (0410-60) 

 

 
Approved the Open Session Minutes for the Regular Meeting of January 2, 2007, as 
presented.  

 

3.  Summary of Fiscal Year 2006-2007 Budget Amendments to Date (0330-30) 

 
 Received and filed the report.
 

4.  Check Register Dated December 15, 2006, in the Amount of $1,997,916.29 (0300-30) 

 
 Ratified the accompanying check register. 
 

5.  Check Register Dated December 22, 2006, in the Amount of $1,804,080.80 (0300-30) 

 
 Ratified the accompanying check register. 
 

6.  City Treasurer’s Monthly Report for November 2006 (0320-80) 

 
 Received and filed the report.
 

7.  Community Development Agency (CDA) Treasurer’s Report for November 2006 

(0320-80)  
 
 Received and filed the report.
 

8.  Community Development Financing Authority (CDFA) Treasurer’s Report for 

November 2006 (0320-80)  
 
 Received and filed the report.



 

City Council Minutes                              5   January 15, 2007 
12/14/07 11:49 AM 
 

 

9.  Retirement Actuarial Consulting Services (0400-10) 

 

 
Approved the Second Amendment with Bartel Associates, LLC for actuarial consulting 
services in the amount of $5,000.  

 

10.  Number not used

 

11.  Number not used

 

12.  Budget Amendment to Increase Fiscal Year 2006-2007 Property Tax Estimates (0330-

30)  
 

 
Adopted Resolution 07-02 Amending the Fiscal Year 2006-2007 Budget to Increase 
Property Tax Revenue Estimates. 

 

ITEMS REMOVED FROM THE CONSENT CALENDAR  
 

PUBLIC HEARINGS  
 

13.  Proposed Draft Ordinance Amending Regulations Applicable to Signs and Amending 

Portions of Chapter 9.29 (Sign Standards) of the City’s Municipal Code (0480-20)  
 

 

Director of Community Development Chuck Wilson presented the staff report. 
 
Mayor Reavis opened the public hearing at 7:36 p.m.  

Cathy Schlicht, M.V.: discussed her concern with various signage throughout the city and 
asked the City Council to stop the spread of visual blight, especially at Kaleidoscope 
center. 

Bob Bunyan, Robert Bunyan and Associates, M.V.: representing a property owner in town, 
outlined their concern with two proposed areas in the sign ordinance regarding square 
footage requirements for monument signs and the number of tenants per sign.
 
Hearing no further comments, the Mayor closed the public hearing. 

The City Council requested Commission reconsideration of the following sign code topics: 
 
1. For a business freestanding monument sign, reconsider definition of major tenant with 
 a gross lease space equal to or greater than 10,000 sq. ft.   Some Council Members felt 
 the  10,000 sq. ft. standard should be reduced to a lower square footage such as 5,000 
 sq. ft. 
 
2. For window signs, reconsider standard requiring window signs not exceed 25% of the 
 window (pane of glass).   Some Councilmember felt the pane of glass standard was too 
 restrictive. 



 

City Council Minutes                              6   January 15, 2007 
12/14/07 11:49 AM 
 

 
3. For temporary promotional signs, reconsider allowing promotional posters in the 
 window.  Some Council Members felt requiring promotional signs to be only designed 
 in the form of a banner was too restrictive.  
 
4. For lighted open/closed signs, reconsider permitting open signs to be designed with 
 neon lighting. 
 
5. Consider allowing more flexibility for exterior signage at commercial highway oriented 
 centers. 
 
6. Consider allowing off-site signage to promote auto dealerships. 
 
7. For commercial real estate signs, consider removing the bond requirement for these 
 signs. 
 
8. Define LED signs and consider a standard for brightness.  These signs should be steady 
 burning (i.e. no flashing or moving illumination).  

Motion made by Council Member MacLean, seconded by Mayor Pro Tempore Ledesma, to 
direct that this matter be returned to the Planning and Transportation Commission so the 
new members will have an opportunity to review the recommendations, address the City 
Council’s concerns, and return with their input within 60 days. 

On roll call, said motion carried by the following vote: 

AYES:  Kelley, MacLean, Ury, Ledesma, Reavis 
NOES:  None 
ABSENT: None 

 

OLD BUSINESS  
 

14.  Community Services Commission and Investment Advisory Commission 

Appointments (0120-75) (0120-90)  

Motion made by Mayor Pro Tempore Ledesma, seconded by Mayor Reavis, to 
appoint Gloria Heer to the Community Services Commission.  

On roll call, said motion carried by the following vote: 

AYES:  Kelley, MacLean, Ury, Ledesma, Reavis 
NOES:  None 
ABSENT: None 

Motion made by Mayor Pro Tempore Ledesma, seconded by Council Member Ury,  
to appoint Morgan Christen to the Investment Advisory Commission. 



 

City Council Minutes                              7   January 15, 2007 
12/14/07 11:49 AM 
 

On roll call, said motion carried by the following vote: 

AYES:  Kelley, MacLean, Ury, Ledesma, Reavis 
NOES:  None 
ABSENT: None 

 

15.  Resolution Repealing a Portion of City Council Resolution 99-42 and Acknowledging 
the City Council’s Resumption of Economic Development Responsibilities (0410-05)  

 

 

Cathy Schlicht, M.V.: expressed opposition to the Council's intention to remove economic 
development duties from the Planning and Transportation Commission. 
 
Motion made by Council Member MacLean, seconded by Mayor Reavis, to adopt 
Resolution 07-07 Repealing a Portion of City Council Resolution 99-42 and 
Acknowledging the City Council’s Resumption of Economic Development Responsibilities 
in the City of Mission Viejo. 
 
On roll call, said motion carried by the following vote: 
 
AYES:  Kelley, MacLean, Ledesma, Reavis 
NOES:  Ury 
ABSENT: None 

  

NEW BUSINESS  
 

MAYOR’S, COMMISSION, AND COMMITTEE REPORTS  
 

16.  Orange County Fire Authority (OCFA) Report (0410-40) 

 
 Received the report from Council Member Kelley. 
 

17.  Foothill/Eastern Transportation Corridor Agency Report (0410-40) 
 
 Received the report from Council Member MacLean. 
 

18.  San Joaquin Hills Transportation Corridor Agency Report (0410-40) 

 

 
Mayor Reavis announced that there has not been a recent meeting of the San Joaquin Hills 
Transportation Corridor Agency and there was nothing to report at this time.  

 

STAFF REPORTS  
 

City Manager’s Report  

 

19.  Solid Waste Ad Hoc Committee (0410-45) 

 
 By consensus, the City Council reinstated the Construction & Demolition (C&D) Ad Hoc 



 

City Council Minutes                              8   January 15, 2007 
12/14/07 11:49 AM 
 

Committee and changed the name to the Solid Waste Ad Hoc Committee.  Mayor Reavis 
appointed Mayor Pro Tem Ledesma and Council Member MacLean to serve on the ad-hoc 
committee.  

 
City Attorney’s Report  

 

COUNCIL MEMBER COMMENTS  
 

20.  Council Member Reports of Events and Activities Attended (AB 1234) (0480-70) 

 

 

The City Council Members acknowledged the accuracy of their event and activities 
calendars as presented in the staff report.  Mayor Reavis and Mayor Pro Tempore Ledesma 
announced that they have changes to their reports and will submit updates to the City Clerk 
for the public record. 

 

Council Member Kelley  

 
Announced that she and Council Member MacLean attended the League of Cities 
conference in Sacramento last week and she found it a great opportunity to network with 
officials from other cities and to meet newly elected officials.  Outlined her attendance at 
the Elks Appreciation Dinner where various members of law enforcement and firefighter 
teams were honored.  Stated that she feels very comfortable knowing that these public 
servants are out there protecting us and she thanked the Elks for honoring them with such a 
nice event.  Reminded members of the senior community that the senior transportation 
program is being launched and more information is available by calling (949) 470-8412.  
Announced that the Relay for Life kickoff will be held on February 9, 2007, and she 
invited those interested in serving on the committee or finding out how to be involved, to 
contact her for more information.  Reminded residents that Fun with Chips, a fundraiser in 
preparation for Fun with Chalk, will be held on February 24, 2007.  Thanked the 
volunteers who serve the City and asked the community to pause and remember Martin 
Luther King, Jr., on this day, his birthday.  
 

Council Member MacLean  

 
Stated that he brought back some valuable information from the League of Cities 
conference in Sacramento and he has shared it with staff and his colleagues, hoping that 
we can institute a more effective, open government. 
 

Council Member Ury  

 
Asked Mayor Reavis to adjourn the meeting in memory of Cindy Stokes, former Mission 
Viejo library employee.  
 

Mayor Pro Tempore Ledesma  

 
Requested that tonight’s meeting be adjourned in memory of Martin Luther King, Jr., in 
addition to the other citizens the Mayor plans to recognize.  



 

City Council Minutes                              9   January 15, 2007 
12/14/07 11:49 AM 
 

Mayor Reavis  

 
Discussed her attendance at the Elks Lodge dinner and congratulated the well-deserving 
Sheriff's Department and Orange County Fire Authority award recipients.  Announced that 
the City will host a Disaster Preparedness Training course on February 4, 2007, and that 
more information is available by calling the City Manager’s office.  In conjunction with 
the City’s disaster preparedness plan, emergency kits will be distributed to seniors at the 
Norman P. Murray Community and Senior Center in 2007.  Congratulated the participants 
in the Model UN program and stated that it was very fulfilling to see young people talking 
about world events in such an intelligent and insightful way.  Announced that the 
Chambers of Commerce will host their annual “This is our Town” breakfast on Thursday 
February, 19, 2007, at 7:30 a.m. at the Mission Viejo Country Club.  
 

ADJOURNMENT  
 
At the hour of 8:49 p.m., Mayor Reavis adjourned the meeting in memory of Major Megan 
McClung, Cynthia Stokes, Larry Sherry, and Martin Luther King Jr., to January 29, 2007, at 5:00 
p.m. for a Master Financial Plan/Long Range Goals Workshop.  
 
   
 
_________________________________ 
Karen Hamman, City Clerk 



 

     
 
 

     AGENDA REPORT 

 

 
Meeting Date 

 
February 5, 2007 
 

 
Agenda Title 

 
CHECK REGISTER DATED JANUARY 5, 2007, IN THE AMOUNT OF $1,103,702.59 
 
 
 
Recommended Action 

 
Ratify the accompanying check register. 
 
 
Executive Summary 
 

Government Code sections 37208(b) and 37209 provide that accounts payable warrants or checks drawn in 
payment of demands certified or approved by the finance director as conforming to a budget approved by ordinance 
or resolution of the legislative body need not be audited by the legislative body prior to payment.   
City Council Policy #300-4 authorizes the Director of Administrative Services to audit the demands prior to 
payment and calls for such checks to be issued on a weekly basis and the check register for each of the weekly pay 
cycles to be submitted to the City Council for ratification at the next regular Council meeting.  Demands for 
payment of those invoices which do not conform to an approved budget will be presented to the City Council for 
approval, prior to payment, on a Preliminary Check Register. 
 
The following checks have been certified to be in accordance with the City’s approved budget. The checks have 
been issued and the check register is presented to the City Council for ratification. 
 
In addition, Government Code section 37208(a) provides that payroll warrants or checks need not be audited by the 
legislative body prior to payment.  Payrolls shall be presented to the legislative body for ratification and approval at 
the first meeting after delivery of the payroll warrants or checks.  The sum total of any payroll checks issued within 
the week prior to the date of the check register is also noted on the accompanying check register. 
 
 
Previous Relevant Council Actions for This Item 

 
October 22, 1990 – Approved Council policy 300-4 
February 2, 2004 – Approved the revision of Council policy 300-4 
 
Attachments 

 
Exhibit 
 
Fiscal Impact: 
 

Amount Requested  $ 
Sufficient Budgeted Funds Available?:  Yes __  No __    (If no, see attached fiscal analysis) 
Prog/Fund # ________  Category:  Pers. ___  Optg. ___  Cap. ___   -or-   CIP#______  Fund#______ 

 
 
Prepared By 
 

 
 

Irwin Bornstein 
Asst City Mgr/Dir of Admin Svcs 

 
Reviewed By 
 

 
 

Irwin Bornstein 
Asst City Mgr/Dir of Admin Svcs 

 
Reviewed By 
 

 
 

William P. Curley III 
City Attorney 

 
Submitted By 
 

 
Dennis R. Wilberg 
City Manager 

 











































 

     
 
 

     AGENDA REPORT 

 

 
Meeting Date 

 
February 5, 2007 
 

 
Agenda Title 

 
CHECK REGISTER DATED JANUARY 12, 2007, IN THE AMOUNT OF $1,849,720.35 
 
 
 
Recommended Action 

 
Ratify the accompanying check register. 
 
 
Executive Summary 
 

Government Code sections 37208(b) and 37209 provide that accounts payable warrants or checks drawn in 
payment of demands certified or approved by the finance director as conforming to a budget approved by ordinance 
or resolution of the legislative body need not be audited by the legislative body prior to payment.   
City Council Policy #300-4 authorizes the Director of Administrative Services to audit the demands prior to 
payment and calls for such checks to be issued on a weekly basis and the check register for each of the weekly pay 
cycles to be submitted to the City Council for ratification at the next regular Council meeting.  Demands for 
payment of those invoices which do not conform to an approved budget will be presented to the City Council for 
approval, prior to payment, on a Preliminary Check Register. 
 
The following checks have been certified to be in accordance with the City’s approved budget. The checks have 
been issued and the check register is presented to the City Council for ratification. 
 
In addition, Government Code section 37208(a) provides that payroll warrants or checks need not be audited by the 
legislative body prior to payment.  Payrolls shall be presented to the legislative body for ratification and approval at 
the first meeting after delivery of the payroll warrants or checks.  The sum total of any payroll checks issued within 
the week prior to the date of the check register is also noted on the accompanying check register. 
 
 
Previous Relevant Council Actions for This Item 

 
October 22, 1990 – Approved Council policy 300-4 
February 2, 2004 – Approved the revision of Council policy 300-4 
 
Attachments 

 
Exhibit 
 
Fiscal Impact: 
 

Amount Requested  $ 
Sufficient Budgeted Funds Available?:  Yes __  No __    (If no, see attached fiscal analysis) 
Prog/Fund # ________  Category:  Pers. ___  Optg. ___  Cap. ___   -or-   CIP#______  Fund#______ 

 
 
Prepared By 
 

 
 

Irwin Bornstein 
Asst City Mgr/Dir of Admin Svcs 

 
Reviewed By 
 

 
 

Irwin Bornstein 
Asst City Mgr/Dir of Admin Svcs 

 
Reviewed By 
 

 
 

William P. Curley III 
City Attorney 

 
Submitted By 
 

 
Dennis R. Wilberg 
City Manager 

 











































































 

     
 
 

     AGENDA REPORT 
 

 
Meeting Date 

 
February 5, 2007 
 

 
Agenda Title 

 
CHECK REGISTER DATED JANUARY 19, 2007, IN THE AMOUNT OF $2,438,862.97 
 
 
 
Recommended Action 

 
Ratify the accompanying check register. 
 
 
Executive Summary 
 

Government Code sections 37208(b) and 37209 provide that accounts payable warrants or checks drawn in 
payment of demands certified or approved by the finance director as conforming to a budget approved by ordinance 
or resolution of the legislative body need not be audited by the legislative body prior to payment.   
City Council Policy #300-4 authorizes the Director of Administrative Services to audit the demands prior to 
payment and calls for such checks to be issued on a weekly basis and the check register for each of the weekly pay 
cycles to be submitted to the City Council for ratification at the next regular Council meeting.  Demands for 
payment of those invoices which do not conform to an approved budget will be presented to the City Council for 
approval, prior to payment, on a Preliminary Check Register. 
 
The following checks have been certified to be in accordance with the City’s approved budget. The checks have 
been issued and the check register is presented to the City Council for ratification. 
 
In addition, Government Code section 37208(a) provides that payroll warrants or checks need not be audited by the 
legislative body prior to payment.  Payrolls shall be presented to the legislative body for ratification and approval at 
the first meeting after delivery of the payroll warrants or checks.  The sum total of any payroll checks issued within 
the week prior to the date of the check register is also noted on the accompanying check register. 
 
 
Previous Relevant Council Actions for This Item 

 
October 22, 1990 – Approved Council policy 300-4 
February 2, 2004 – Approved the revision of Council policy 300-4 
 
Attachments 

 
Exhibit 
 
Fiscal Impact: 
 

Amount Requested  $ 
Sufficient Budgeted Funds Available?:  Yes __  No __    (If no, see attached fiscal analysis) 
Prog/Fund # ________  Category:  Pers. ___  Optg. ___  Cap. ___   -or-   CIP#______  Fund#______ 

 
 
Prepared By 
 

 
 

Irwin Bornstein 
Asst City Mgr/Dir of Admin Svcs 

 
Reviewed By 
 

 
 

Irwin Bornstein 
Asst City Mgr/Dir of Admin Svcs 

 
Reviewed By 
 

 
 

William P. Curley III 
City Attorney 

 
Submitted By 
 

 
Dennis R. Wilberg 
City Manager 

 



G:\CD|WP|ccreport\Planning Commission Meeting Time-Rpt  

     

 

 

AGENDA REPORT  
 

     FROM PLANNING & TRANSPORTATION COMMISSION 
 

 
Meeting Date 

 

 

February 5, 2007 

 
Agenda Title 

 

Change in Meeting Time for Regular Planning Commission Meetings  
 
 
Recommended Action 

 

Adopt Resolution 07-XX Changing the Established Meeting Time for the Planning Commission.  

  
 
Executive Summary 

 

The Planning Commission expressed a desire to change the meeting time for regular Planning Commission meetings 

from their current 7:00 p.m. starting time.  At the January 22, 2007 Planning Commission meeting, the Commission by 

a unanimous 5-0 vote recommended to the City Council changing the regular Planning Commission meeting start time 

to 6:30 p.m.  The Commission will continue to meet on the second and fourth Monday of each month.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 
Previous Relevant Council Actions for This Item 

None. 
 
Attachments 

Draft Resolution. 

Exhibit – Planning Commission Staff Report and related attachments and minutes for background information. 

 
 
Fiscal Impact: 
 

Amount Requested  $ n/a 

Sufficient Budgeted Funds Available?:  Yes __  No __    (If no, see attached fiscal analysis) 

Prog/Fund # ________  Category:  Pers. ___  Optg. ___  Cap. ___   -or-   CIP#______  Fund#______ 
 
Prepared By 

 

 
 

Charles E. Wilson 

Community Development Director 

 
Reviewed By 

 

 
 

Irwin Bornstein 

Asst City Mgr/Dir of Admin Svcs. 

 
Reviewed By 

 

 
 

William P. Curley III 

City Attorney 

 
Submitted By 

 

 
Dennis R. Wilberg 

City Manager  

 















 
 

 RESOLUTION 2007-XX 

 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF MISSION VIEJO 

CHANGING THE ESTABLISHED MEETING TIME FOR THE PLANNING 

COMMISSION 

 

 

   THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF MISSION VIEJO DOES HEREBY RESOLVE 

AS FOLLOWS: 

 

 Section 1. Establishing Meeting Time.  The Planning Commission shall hold regularly 

scheduled meetings on the second and fourth Monday of each month at the hour of 6:30 p.m. 

 

 Section 2. This action supersedes any previous action setting the date and time of 

Planning Commission meetings. 

 

 Section 3. This resolution shall not become effective until March 1, 2007. 

 

 Section 4. The City Clerk shall certify to the adoption of this Resolution. 

 

PASSED, APPROVED AND ADOPTED this __day of ______, 2007. 

 

 

________________________________________ 

Gail Reavis, Mayor 

 

 

I hereby certify that the foregoing Resolution was duly adopted by the City Council of the City of 

Mission Viejo at a regularly scheduled meeting thereof, held on the __ day of _____, 20__ by the 

following vote of the Council: 

 

AYES: 

NOES: 

ABSENT: 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

__________________________________ 

Karen Hamman, City Clerk                     
 

 

 

 

 

G:\WP\CD\ccreport\Planning Commission Meeting Time-Res.doc 





 

 

 

     AGENDA REPORT 

 

 
Meeting Date 

 

February 5, 2007 

 
Agenda Title 

Norman P. Murray Community and Senior Center Expansion Project (CIP 994) 

 
 
Recommended Action 

 

Award the alarm services contract for the subject project to Pyro-Comm Systems, Inc. in the amount of $23,010. 

 
 
Executive Summary 

 

This professional services contract is for the purchase and installation of equipment including conduit, 

security/access control system and fire alarm system hardware for the community center expansion.  This is 

the same alarm company who installed and monitors the current alarm system at the Norman P. Murray 

Community and Senior Center thus this was a sole source proposal.   

 

On September 18, 2006, City Council awarded the construction contract for the Norman P. Murray 

Community and Senior Center Expansion; approved the proposal for various inspections, material testing, and 

engineering services; and increased the purchase order for geotechnical services.  At that time, staff indicated 

alarm services, audio visual equipment/services, communications services, and additional design services were 

not included.  
    
Previous Relevant Council Actions for This Item 

November 15, 2004 - Directed staff to issue RFQ’s for architectural and construction management services; 

March 7, 2005 - Awarded architect and construction management contracts and amended budget; June 6, 2005 

- Awarded contract for CEQA compliance; July 5, 2005 - Approved Concept Plan and Change Orders No. 1 & 

No. 2 to Architect; December 5, 2005 - Approved Planned Development PDP2005-154; March 6, 2006 - 

Directed staff to include grading of the entire site, reconstruction of one soccer field, and related site 

improvements in the project scope of work; April 3, 2006 - Approved Change Order No. 3 to Architect; June 

19, 2006 - Approved bid specifications, authorized staff to advertise for bids, & set a special meeting to award 

construction contract; September 18, 2006 - Awarded the construction contract, approved the inspections, 

testing, and engineering services proposal, increased purchase order for geotechnical investigative services, 

and amended the budget; November 6, 2006 - Approved Change Order #4 to Architect. 
 
Attachments:   
Exhibit A – Budget Summary and Exhibit B – Pyro-Comm Systems, Inc. Contract  
 
Fiscal Impact: 
Amount Requested  $23,010 
      Sufficient Budgeted Funds Available?:  Yes _x_  No_     
      Prog/Fund # __  Category:  Pers. ___  Optg. ___  Cap. ___   -or-   CIP# 994  Fund  101 General  
Prepared By 

 

 
 

M. Kelly Doyle, Director 

Recreation & Community Services 

 
Reviewed By 

 

 
 

Irwin Bornstein 

Asst City Mgr/Dir of Admin Svcs. 

 
Reviewed By 
 

 
 

William P. Curley III 

City Attorney 

 
Submitted By 
 

 
Dennis Wilberg 

City Manager 

 



Exhibit A 

g:rcs/wp/council reports/npm expansion pyro comm budget summary 1-15-07 

 

NORMAN P. MURRAY CENTER EXPANSION PROJECT 

BUDGET SUMMARY 

        

Budget - Funding Sources      

$3,000,000.00  State Urban Parks Grant (FY 2005)     

$400,000.00  General Fund (FY 2005)   

$250,000.00  CDBG Fund  (FY 2006)   

$125,000.00  General Fund (FY 2006)   

$3,601,370.00  General Fund (FY 2007)   

$225,000.00  Mission Viejo Foundation (FY 2007)   

$1,965,000.00  Park Development Fees (FY 2007)   

$9,566,370.00  Grand Total Budget    

     

Expenses/Encumbrances      

$658,950.00  Robert R. Coffee (Architect)   

$348,850.00  Friess Construction (Construction Manager)   

$29,807.99  Hodge & Associates (Environmental Studies)   

$62,955.00  PETRA Geotechnical, Inc. (Geotechnical Studies)   

$9,566.44  RJM Design Group (Sportsfield Options & Site Plan Development)   

$77.15  OCB Reprographics 

$70.52  Consolidated Reprographics   

$2,115.51  Inspection Services (Permits)  

$300.16  O.C. Register  

          $307.01  Federal Express  

$22,073.00  Charles Abbott Assoc.  

$8,210,887.00  Douglas E. Barnhart, Inc.  

$3,404.85  TV Magic (Time Lapse Photography)  

$6,178.00  Santa Margarita Water District  

$222.97  Board of Equalization  

$9,355,765.60  Total Expenses/Encumbrances  

    

    

Budget Balance    

$9,566,370.00  Grand Total Budget  

$9,355,765.60  Total Expenses/Encumbrances  

$210,604.40  Budget Balance   

$23,010.00  Pyro-Comm Systems (Pending Council Approval)  

$25,256.00  Douglas E. Barnhart C.O. #2 (Pending Council Approval)  

$162,338.40  Budget Balance  























































 
 

     

 

 

     AGENDA REPORT 

 

 
Meeting Date 

 

February 5, 2007 

 

 
 
Agenda Title 

Norman P. Murray Community and Senior Center Expansion (CIP 994) 
 
Recommended Action 

Approve Change Order No. 2 to Douglas E. Barnhart, Inc. in the amount of $25,256 for additional 

construction costs for the Norman P. Murray Center Expansion. 
 
Executive Summary 

On September 18, 2006, City Council awarded the contract for the Norman P. Murray Center Expansion 

construction services to Douglas E. Barnhart, Inc. in the amount of $8,202,599. Since that time, the City 

Manager authorized Change Order #1 in the amount of $8,288 for providing a 30-day landscape maintenance 

period, additional designated disabled parking to remain until April 7, 2007, plus removal and disposal of 7 

palm trees instead of relocating them. Due to the inclusion of a large trellis and construction of a building pad 

subdrain as required by geotechnical inspectors, it is recommended to approve Change Order #2 to Douglas E. 

Barnhart, Inc. in a not to exceed amount of $25,256. 

 
 
Previous Relevant Council Actions for This Item 

November 15, 2004 - Directed staff to issue RFQ’s for architectural and construction management services; 

March 7, 2005 - Awarded architect and construction management contracts and amended budget; 

June 6, 2005 - Awarded contract for CEQA compliance 

July 5, 2005 - Approved Concept Plan and Change Orders No. 1 & No. 2 to Architect 

December 5, 2005 – Approved Planned Development PDP2005-154 

March 6, 2006 – Directed staff to include grading of the entire site, reconstruction of one soccer field, and 

related site improvements in the project scope of work 

April 3, 2006 – Approved Change Order No. 3 to Architect 

June 19, 2006 – Approved bid specifications, authorized staff to advertise for bids, & set a special meeting to 

award construction contract 

September 18, 2006 – Awarded the construction contract, approved the inspections, testing, and engineering 

services proposal, increased purchase order for geotechnical investigative services, and amended the budget 

November 6, 2006 – Approved Change Order No. 4 to Architect 
 
Attachments 

Draft Change Order #2 – Douglas E. Barnhart, Inc.; Exhibit A - Budget Summary 
 
Fiscal Impact: 
 

Amount Requested:  $25,256 
Sufficient Budgeted Funds Available?:  Yes _x_  No __    (If no, see attached fiscal analysis) 
Prog/Fund # ______ Category:  Pers. ___  Optg. ___  Cap. ___   -or-   CIP# 994  Fund# 101 

 
Prepared By 
 

 
M. Kelly Doyle 

Director of Recreation & Comm. Serv. 
 

 
Reviewed By 
 

 
 

Irwin Bornstein 

Asst City Mgr/Dir of Admin Services 

 
Reviewed By 
 

 
 

William P. Curley, III 

City Attorney 

 
Submitted By 
 

 
Dennis Wilberg 

City Manager 

 











Exhibit A 

g:rcs/wp/council reports/npm expansion barnhart budget summary 2-5-07 

 

NORMAN P. MUURAY CENTER EXPANSION PROJECT 

BUDGET SUMMARY 

        

Budget - Funding Sources      

$3,000,000.00  State Urban Parks Grant (FY 2005)     

$400,000.00  General Fund (FY 2005)   

$250,000.00  CDBG Fund  (FY 2006)   

$125,000.00  General Fund (FY 2006)   

$3,601,370.00  General Fund (FY 2007)   

$225,000.00  Mission Viejo Foundation (FY 2007)   

$1,965,000.00  Park Development Fees (FY 2007)   

$9,566,370.00  Grand Total Budget    

     

Expenses/Encumbrances      

$658,950.00  Robert R. Coffee (Architect)   

$348,850.00  Friess Construction (Construction Manager)   

$29,807.99  Hodge & Associates (Environmental Studies)   

$62,955.00  PETRA Geotechnical, Inc. (Geotechnical Studies)   

$9,566.44  RJM Design Group (Sportsfield Options & Site Plan Development)   

$77.15  OCB Reprographics 

$70.52  Consolidated Reprographics   

$2,115.51  Inspection Services (Permits)  

$300.16  O.C. Register  

          $307.01  Federal Express  

$22,073.00  Charles Abbott Assoc.  

$8,210,887.00  Douglas E. Barnhart, Inc.  

$3,404.85  TV Magic (Time Lapse Photography)  

$6,178.00  Santa Margarita Water District  

$222.97  Board of Equalization  

$9,355,765.60  Total Expenses/Encumbrances  

    

    

Budget Balance    

$9,566,370.00  Grand Total Budget  

$9,355,765.60  Total Expenses/Encumbrances  

$210,604.40  Budget Balance   

$25,256.00  Douglas E. Barnhart C.O. #2 (Pending Council Approval)  

23,010.00  Pyro=Comm Systems (Pending Council Approval)  

$162,338.40  Budget Balance  











     

 

 

     AGENDA REPORT 

 

 
Meeting Date 

 

February 5, 2007 

 

 
Agenda Title 

Donation Policy for City Parks and Recreation Facilities and Programs 
 
Recommended Action 

Adopt Resolution 07-XX Adopting Council Policy 0700-7 Donation Policy for City Parks and Recreation 

Facilities and Programs 
 
Executive Summary 

Currently the City does not have a policy for donations or memorials in city parks and recreation facilities and 

programs. The City Council directed staff to develop a policy that is reflected in a donation/gifts catalog for the 

public, at their November 6, 2006 meeting.   

 

The attached draft policy (Exhibit A) provides for the above mentioned items. The policy includes donations for 

park improvement items and equipment plus recreation facility improvement items and equipment and/or 

recreation program enhancements.  Dedication or memorial plaques are included according to specific donation 

sums and under specific applications.  The policy lists the purpose for the acceptance of donations of cash or 

tangible items, criteria for the receipt of donations, establishment of a gift donation catalog and acknowledgements 

and criteria for plaques. 

 

Also attached is a Donations Catalog list (Exhibit B).  This list provides recommended donations for the 

community to consider.  It is recommended that the gift catalog be the tool for donations and that the items are 

periodically reviewed by the Community Services Commission.  A sample brochure from Newport Beach is also 

attached to illustrate a possible design of the donations catalog (Exhibit C). 

 

The Community Services Commission, at their December 19, 2006 meeting, approved the policy and 

recommended approval by the City Council (Exhibit D). 

 

The resident who previously requested an improvement in Birchwood Park in memory of his mother-in-law has 

asked for a delay of the donation pending further discussions with his wife.   

   
 
Previous Relevant Council Actions for This Item 
 

November 6, 2006 - directed staff to develop a policy that is reflected in a donation/gifts catalog for the public  
 
 
Attachments 
 

Exhibit A – Donations Policy; Exhibit B – Donations Catalog List; Exhibit C – Sample Brochure; Exhibit D – 

Community Services Commission Minutes 12/19/06; Draft Resolution 
 
Fiscal Impact: 
 

Amount Requested  $ NA 
Sufficient Budgeted Funds Available?:  Yes __  No __    (If no, see attached fiscal analysis) 
Prog/Fund # ________  Category:  Pers. ___  Optg. ___  Cap. ___   -or-   CIP#______  Fund#______ 

 
Prepared By 
 

 
 

M. Kelly Doyle, Director 

Recreation & Community Services 

 
Reviewed By 
 

 
 

Irwin Bornstein 

Asst City Mgr/Dir of Admin Svcs 

 
Reviewed By 
 

 
 

William P. Curley III 

City Attorney 

 
Submitted By 
 

 
Dennis Wilberg 

City Manager 

 

 



  

1 

Exhibit B 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

DONATION CATALOG 

 
Gifts For A Better Mission Viejo 

 
 
 

Community Partnership Opportunities 

 
Become a community partner-help to provide new facilities and programs for a 
better Mission Viejo. 

 

Dear Prospective Donor, 

 
This catalog is designed to provide individuals, service clubs, organizations and 
businesses with suggestions of gifts that will benefit the entire community.  Each 
gift is identified with an estimated price listing.  Gifts may be ordered by calling 
our office.   

 
Donations include a variety of items that would enhance our parks and recreation 
facilities and community recreation programs.    

 
Please contact the City of Mission Viejo for more information @ 949-470-3061. 

 
Appreciatively, 

 
Mission Viejo Recreation & Community Services Department 
 



  

2 

DONATIONS THAT ENHANCE PARKS 

 
Benches 
 Selected Locations 

Price: $900 - $3,000 
 
 Benches/Tables with Partial Shelter/Sunshade 
  Price: $5,000 
  

Seating Areas 
  Selected Locations 
  Price: $8,000 - $15,000 

 
Trees (24” box minimum) 

Price: $500-$1,200 
 

Dog Bag Dispensers 
Price: $500 

 
Picnic Tables 

Price: $1,500 
 

Bar-B-Que Grills 
Price: $500 

 
Portable Bleachers 

Price: $2,500 
 

Permanent Bleachers 
Price: $6,000 

 
Drinking Fountain 

Price: $5,000 
 
Picnic Pavilion 

As per design 
Price: depends on size 

 
Concrete Trash Receptacles 

Price: $800 
 
Concrete Walkways 

Depends on location 
Price:  varies 

 
 



  

3 

Basketball Court Replacement 
Resurface, backboards 
Price: $35,000 

 
Flagpole 

Price: $2,500 
 

Park Identification Signs 
Price: $9,000 

 
Playground Equipment 

Price: $200,000 
 

DONATIONS THAT ENHANCE FACILITIES 

 
Tables 

Price: $200 
 
Chairs  

Stacking 
Price: $75 

 
Computer 

For training, recreation programs/classes 
Price: $1,500 

 
 Piano 
  Price: $25,000 
 

DONATIONS THAT ENHANCE PROGRAMS 

 
Fitness Equipment 

  Price:  $2,500 - $5,000 
 
Special Events Shirt Sponsor 
 Price: varies 
 
After School Program and Games 
 Price: varies 
 
Sponsor Monthly Concert 

Price: $2,000 
 
 
 
 



  

4 

 
 
 
 

DONATION PLAQUE INFORMATION 

 
1. In some cases, plaques may be authorized as a form of 

acknowledgement.  Information on a plaque is a non-public forum and 
is not open for general public discourse.   
 
The Department Director shall review all wording submitted for a 
plaque and have final decision as to the information to be displayed on 
the plaque. 
  
Plaques are reserved for donations meeting the following criteria: 

 
a. Donors providing donations valued at $5,000 to less than $9,999 

may elect to provide a dedicatory plaque not exceeding 2” x 6” 
with a name and date designated by the donor preceded by one of 
the following:  “Donated by”, “Donated for”, or “In recognition 
of”, “in memory of”. 

 
b. Donors providing donations valued at $10,000 to less than 

$14,999 may elect to provide a dedicatory plaque not exceeding 
5” x 7” with name and date designated by the donor preceded by 
one of the following:  “Donated by”, “Donated for”, “In 
recognition of”, or “In memory of”. 

 
c. Donors providing donations valued at $15,000 or higher in value 

may elect to provide a dedicatory plaque not exceeding 8 ½” x 
11” with name and designated by the donor proceeded by one of 
the following:  “Donated by”, “Donated for”, “In recognition of”, 
or “In memory of”.  Additional wording, not exceeding 25 
words, may be included on the plaque.  The plaque content must 
be recommended for approval by the Community Services 
Commission. 

  
 

 
 
 
 
 
G:\RCS\WP\Community Services Commission\Commission Reports\Donation Policy Gifts.doc 



Exhibit A 

City of Mission Viejo 
 

COUNCIL POLICY 
 

SUBJECT 
 

  Donation Policy for City Parks, Recreation Facilities & 

  Recreation Programs 

RES. NO. 
 

XX-XX 

POLICY NO. 
 

0700-7 

EFF. DATE 
 

2/05/2007 

PAGE 

 

 

 

 

1 of 2 

PURPOSE 
 
The City Council recognizes the need to promote community involvement and active participation in quality of life components 
throughout the community, and the need to establish a fair, equitable, and uniform procedure for which gifts may be donated to the 
City.  This policy establishes criteria for donations to assure area compatibility, attractiveness, usefulness, and the capability to be 
maintained.  Each donation considered for inclusion in the City parks, facilities and recreation programs will be subject to established 
limitations and guidelines for the particular area. 
 

POLICY 
 

A. Acceptance of donations of cash or tangible items 
 

1. Based on the value of the donation, appropriate City staff will review the acceptability of any donation and 
determine if the benefits to be derived warrant acceptance of the donation. 

 
2. Criteria for evaluation includes consideration of any immediate or initial expenditure required in order to accept 

the donation, the potential and extent of the City’s obligation to maintain the donation, and the community 
benefit to be derived from the donation. 

 
B. Receipt of Donations 
 

Acceptance of donations shall be for the benefit of the community at large.  Donations may be received in the form of 
cash, real, or personal property.  Restricted donations are those donations that the donor specifies for a particular City 
location or purpose.  Unrestricted donations are those donations that are given to the City for unspecified use. 

 
a. Donation of cash or items valued at or below $15,000 may be accepted by the City Manager.  
 
b. Before acceptance, donations are subject to the review, approval and determined to be appropriate by the 

City Manager or designee. 
 

c. Gifts of funds may be designated for restricted or unrestricted use. 
 

d. Gifts of funds accepted by the City imply no other obligation besides using donated funds for the 
specified purpose. 

 
e. Donations received for City parks, facilities, recreation programs and other city-owned property will be 

identified in the City Donation Catalog. 
 

C. Right to Decline 
 

The City of Mission Viejo reserves the right to decline any donation if, upon review, acceptance of the donation is 
determined to be not in the best interest of the City. 

 
D. Special Privileges 

 
Making a donation or co-sponsoring a special event does not entitle a donor to any special privileges other than those 
stated in this policy such as recognition, plaques or displays at events, unless otherwise agreed upon and approved by the 
Department Director or the City Manager or City Council when appropriate. 



Exhibit A 

City of Mission Viejo 
 

COUNCIL POLICY 
 

SUBJECT 
 

  Donation Policy for City Parks, Recreation Facilities & 

  Recreation Programs 

RES. NO. 
 

XX-XX 

POLICY NO. 
 

0700-7 

EFF. DATE 
 

2/05/2007 

PAGE 

 

 

 

 

2 of 2 

E. Gift Donation Catalog 
 

The Department Director shall review and present to the Community Services Commission periodically the City 
Donation Catalog containing ideas for public donations. 

 
F. Acknowledgements/Plaques 

 
Donations shall be for the benefit of the community at large and will receive appropriate acknowledgement. 

 
1. Letter of acceptance of donation will be sent to donor. 
 
2. In some cases, recognition of donations may be given at Commission or Council Meetings.   

 
3. In some cases, plaques may be authorized as a form of acknowledgement.  Information on a plaque is a non-

public forum and is not open for general public discourse.   
 
The Department Director shall review all wording submitted for a plaque and have final decision as to the 
information to be displayed on the plaque. 
  
 
Plaques are reserved for donations meeting the following criteria: 

 
a. Donors providing donations valued at $5,000 to less than $9,999 may elect to provide a dedicatory 

plaque not exceeding 2” x 6” with a name and date designated by the donor preceded by one of the 
following:  “Donated by”, “Donated for”, or “In recognition of”, “in memory of”.  

 
b. Donors providing donations valued at $10,000 to less than $14,999 may elect to provide a dedicatory 

plaque not exceeding 5” x 7” with name and date designated by the donor preceded by one of the 
following:  “Donated by”, “Donated for”, “In recognition of”, or “In memory of”. 

 
c. Donors providing donations valued at $15,000 or higher in value may elect to provide a dedicatory 

plaque not exceeding 8 ½” x 11” with name and designated by the donor proceeded by one of the 
following:  “Donated by”, “Donated for”, “In recognition of”, or “In memory of”.  Additional wording, 
not exceeding 25 words, may be included on the plaque.  In addition to the Department Director, the 
content for these plaques must be recommended for approval by the Community Services Commission. 

  
d. Plaques are at the expense of the donor, the City will assume ownership and maintenance of the donated 

item and plaque however, and the City does not assume replacement costs due to vandalism or theft.  
Plaques will remain on a donate item during its useful life.  The City reserves the right to remove and/or 
relocate the donated item. 

 
e. Plaque information will be entered on the Gift Donation Catalog application form and ordered by the City. 

 
f. Plaques should be placed appropriately with donations from which the plaque can be attached to in 

 most cases. 
 
 





















  

RESOLUTION 07-XX 

 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

MISSION VIEJO, CALIFORNIA, ADOPTING COUNCIL POLICY  

0700-7 RELATING TO THE DONATION POLICY FOR CITY PARKS,  

RECREATION FACILITIES AND RECREATION PROGRAMS 

AND AMENDING THE CITY COUNCIL POLICY MANUAL 

 

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Mission Viejo is charged with the responsibility of 

establishing municipal policies to guide the various functions of the City, and where necessary, 

establishing procedures by which functions are performed; and 

 

WHEREAS, on October 22, 1990, the City Council of the City of Mission Viejo established 

procedures for the preparation, distribution, and maintenance of a Council Policy Manual; and 

 

WHEREAS, the City Council desires to adopt the Donation Policy for City Parks, Recreation 

Facilities and Recreation Programs and amend the Council Policy Manual as set forth in Exhibit “A” 

attached and incorporated by reference; 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF MISSION VIEJO, CALIFORNIA, 

DOES HEREBY RESOLVE, AS FOLLOWS: 

 

Section 1.  That all of the above recitals are true and correct; 

 

Section 2.  That attached as Exhibit “A” and incorporated by reference is a Council Policy adopting 

the Donation Policy for City Parks, Recreation Facilities and Recreation Programs. 

 

Section 3.  This Resolution shall take effect upon its adoption by this City Council. 

 

PASSED, APPROVED AND ADOPTED this 5
th
 day of February, 2007.                 . 

 

 

_________________________________________ 

Gail Reavis 

Mayor 

 

I hereby certify that the foregoing Resolution was duly adopted by the City Council of the City of 

Mission Viejo at a regularly scheduled meeting thereof, held on the fifth day of February, 2007 

by the following vote of the Council: 

 

AYES: 

NOES: 

ABSENT: 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

__________________________________ 

Karen Hamman 

City Clerk 









 

       
 AGENDA REPORT 

 

          

                              

  
Meeting Date 
 
 

February 5, 2007 

 
Agenda Title 
 

Mission Viejo Paleontological Fossil Contract Agreement 

 
 
Recommended Action 
 

Enter into a Contract Agreement with Saddleback College for the preservation and restoration of the Mission 

Viejo Paleontological Fossil Collection. 

 
 
Executive Summary 

 

At their May 14, 2004 meeting, the City Council passed a motion to consider the Heritage Committee and the 

Community Services Commission’s recommendation to explore entering into a partnership with Saddleback 

College for the preservation and restoration of the Mission Viejo Paleontological Fossil Collection and directed 

staff to identify funding for the project (Exhibit A). 

 

Staff and Heritage Committee members met with representatives from Saddleback College and drafted an 

Agreement for Care and Preservation of the Mission Viejo Paleontological Resources (Exhibit B).  The agreement 

was reviewed by the City Attorney and was presented and approved by the South Orange County Community 

College District. 

 

Funding for the project was approved in the FYs 2005-06 and 2006-07 budgets in the amount of $4,000 each 

fiscal year to stabilize and store fossils. 

 

 
 
Previous Relevant Council Actions for This Item 

May 14, 2004 – Authorized exploring entering into a partnership with Saddleback College 
 
Attachments 

Exhibit A –Council Action - May 17, 2004 

Exhibit B – Contract Agreement 

 
Fiscal Impact: 
 

Amount Requested  $ NA 
Sufficient Budgeted Funds Available?:  NA 
Prog/Fund # ________  Category:  Pers. ___  Optg. ___  Cap. ___   -or-   CIP#______  Fund#______ 

 
Prepared By 
 

 

 
 

M. Kelly Doyle, Director 

Recreation & Community Services 

 

 
Reviewed By 
 

 

 
 

Irwin Bornstein 

Asst City Mgr/Dir of Admin Svcs 

 
Reviewed By 
 

 

 
 

William P. Curley III 

City Attorney 

 
Submitted By 
 

 
 

Dennis R. Wilberg 

City Manager 



 

 

Mission Viejo Paleontological Fossil Collection                                                                       Page 2 

 

Discussion: 
 

At their May 14, 2004 meeting, the City Council passed a motion to consider the Heritage 

Committee and the Community Services Commission’s recommendation to explore entering into a 

partnership with Saddleback College for the preservation and restoration of the Mission Viejo 

Paleontological Fossil Collection and directed staff to identify funding for the project (Exhibit A). 

 

Staff and Heritage Committee members met with representatives from Saddleback College and 

drafted an Agreement for Care and Preservation of the Mission Viejo Paleontological Resources.  

The agreement was reviewed by the City Attorney and was presented to and approved by the South 

Orange County Community College District (Exhibit B). 

 

Funding for the project was approved in the FYs 2005-06 and 2006-07 budgets in the amount of 

$4,000 each fiscal year to stabilize and store the fossils.       

 

During the past couple of years, members of the Heritage Committee, staff and college faculty have 

worked on identifying and listing the thousands of resources (jackets) which had to be accomplished 

to include as Exhibit A to the Contract Agreement between the City of Mission Viejo and South 

Orange College Community College District (Saddleback College).  The agreement states that the 

College agrees to manage, curate and display the fossil resources.    

 

The following has been accomplished to date: 

 

In 2004 fossil jackets were transferred from the storage container below Curtis Park to Saddleback 

College.  The jackets were placed in an unused secured portable building (K Building) on the lower 

campus.   

 

In 2005, a building at the entrance to the campus was dedicated specifically for use as a 

Paleontology laboratory.  In the fall of 2005, the College staff began working remodeling that 

building to prepare it for the processing of the fossil jackets. 

 

In the spring and fall of 2006 students began on the preparation of the materials in the jackets 

through courses at Saddleback College. 

 

Over the past year and a half, the new building has been remodeled including tile and paint. An air 

conditioning system was installed.  In addition, approximately one third of all the jackets have been 

moved to the new facility.  It is anticipated that the K building on the lower campus will continue to 

be used for storage of the larger jackets through 2007.  In the spring of 2007 it is anticipated that a 

fence around the yard associated with the new Paleontology lab will be installed.  This new yard 

(approximately 600 square feet) will provide an appropriate area for the preparation of the larger 

jackets, which will not fit through the door of the lab.  

 

 

 



 

 

Mission Viejo Paleontological Fossil Collection                                                                       Page 3 

 

 

The collaboration between the College and the Los Angeles Museum of Natural History continues.  

Final preparation and identification of the fossil materials is done by scientists from this museum 

and will be carried out in their laboratory.  It is anticipated that at least two papers on materials from 

this collection will be presented for publication during 2007. 

 

Also, many of the boxes of the completed materials will be transferred to the storage facility on 

Presiados. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 









































     

 

 

     AGENDA REPORT 

 

 
Meeting Date 

 

February 5, 2007 

 

 
Agenda Title 

 

Youth Athletic Park – Change of Time for Ball Field Lights  

 
 
Recommended Action 
 

Adopt Resolution 07–XX Establishing a Turn Off Time for Ball Field Lights at Youth Athletic Park at 10:15 

PM. 

 
 
Executive Summary 

 

Currently the ball field lights at Youth Athletic Park are turned off no later than 9:15 PM Monday through Saturday 

with no ball field light use allowed on Sundays.  Practices and games are to be completed by 9:00 PM.  These 

requirements are stated in City Council Resolution 2000-86, Section 3 – Conditions of Approval -  Numbers 2, 3 and 

7 (Exhibit A) which was approved by the City Council at their May 15, 2000 meeting.  This is different than the other 

five sports parks (Alicia, Beebe, Curtis, Gilleran and Oso Viejo/World Cup) which have a turnoff time of 10:15 PM 

seven days a week, Monday through Sunday.  Games and practices are to be completed by 10:00 PM at these other 

parks.  Adoption of the attached Resolution will make Youth Athletic Park consistent with the other sports parks in 

the City.  Initially, the Planning and Transportation Commission approved the lighting of two fields (#1 and #8) at 

Youth Athletic Park in January 1997 with the lighting conditions listed as above.  The Planning and Transportation 

Commission did not approve the lighting of a third field (#5) at their February 28, 2000 meeting. The proposed 

lighting was appealed to the City Council at their May 15, 2000 meeting who approved the lighting of the third field 

subject to the above conditions.  

   
 
Previous Relevant Council Actions for This Item 

 

May 15, 2000 – Approved lighting of Field # 5 and a turn off of lights at 9:15 PM 

 
 
Attachments 

 

Exhibit A – Resolution 2000-86;  Draft Resolution  07-XX 

 
 
Fiscal Impact: 
 

Amount Requested  $ NA 
Sufficient Budgeted Funds Available?:  Yes __  No __    (If no, see attached fiscal analysis) 
Prog/Fund # ________  Category:  Pers. ___  Optg. ___  Cap. ___   -or-   CIP#______  Fund#______ 

 
Prepared By 
 

 
 

M. Kelly Doyle, Director 

Recreation & Community Services 

 
Reviewed By 
 

 
 

Irwin Bornstein 

Asst City Mgr/Dir of Admin Svcs 

 
Reviewed By 
 

 
 

William P. Curley III 

City Attorney 

 
Submitted By 
 

 
Dennis Wilberg 

City Manager 

 

 



  

RESOLUTION 07-XX 

 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

MISSION VIEJO, CALIFORNIA, ESTABLISHING A TURN OFF 

TIME FOR BALL FIELD LIGHTS AT YOUTH ATHLETIC PARK 

AT 10:15 PM 

 

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Mission Viejo is charged with the responsibility of 

establishing municipal policies to guide the various functions of the City, and where necessary, 

establishing procedures by which functions are performed; and 

 

WHEREAS, the City Council desires to establish a turn off time for ball field lights at Youth 

Athletic Park at 10:15 p.m. 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF MISSION VIEJO, CALIFORNIA, 

DOES HEREBY RESOLVE, AS FOLLOWS: 

 

Section 1.  That use of the ball field lights at Youth Athletic Park shall be limited to the period from 

dusk to 10:15 p.m. Monday through Sunday for youth baseball and youth soccer.  Use of the ball 

field lights shall be limited to youth sports. 

 

Section 2.  That use of the ball lighting system for evening youth sports programs shall be regulated 

by the Recreation and Community Services Director to assure that hours of use do not extend beyond 

10:15 p.m.  All games and practices shall be scheduled to end by 10:00 p.m. 

 

Section 3.  That the City shall install an override system that automatically turns off the ball field 

lights at 10:15 p.m., in the event the leagues do not manually turn off the lights. 

 

Section 4.  This Resolution shall take effect upon its adoption by this City Council. 

 

PASSED, APPROVED AND ADOPTED this 5
th
 day of February, 2007.                 . 

 

 

_________________________________________ 

Gail Reavis 

Mayor 

 

I hereby certify that the foregoing Resolution was duly adopted by the City Council of the City of 

Mission Viejo at a regularly scheduled meeting thereof, held on the fifth day of February, 2007 

by the following vote of the Council: 

 

AYES: 

NOES: 

ABSENT: 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

__________________________________ 

Karen Hamman 

City Clerk 

















C:\Program Files\Neevia.Com\Document Converter\temp\34129.doc 12/14/07 10:39 AM 

 

 

 

     AGENDA REPORT 
 

 
Meeting Date 

 

February 5, 2007 

 
Agenda Title 

Solid Waste Franchise Agreement with Waste Management of Orange County 
 
Recommended Action 

(1) Expand the responsibility of the Solid Waste Ad Hoc Committee to include matters related to the extension of 

the Solid Waste Franchise Agreement; and (2) direct staff and the Ad Hoc Committee to begin discussions with 

Waste Management of Orange County regarding a two-year extension of the Integrated Solid Waste Franchise 

Agreement and report back to Council in 90 days. 
 
Executive Summary 

The City of Mission Viejo and Waste Management of Orange County (WMOC) entered into a franchise 
agreement for exclusive solid waste services on August 21, 2000.  Services commenced on January 1, 2001, and 
will expire on December 31, 2008.  Per the terms of the agreement, an extension may be permitted up to a 
maximum of two additional years at the sole discretion of the City.  Staff recently received a letter from David 
Ross, Senior District Manager, of WMOC, which expressed his interest to begin discussions with the City 
regarding a two-year extension of the solid waste contract. 
 

Over the last six years, WMOC and the City have enjoyed a very good working relationship.  WMOC provides 
excellent service to both residential and commercial customers in Mission Viejo and gives tremendous support to 
the City and community.  In a community opinion survey conducted by the City in May 2006, trash collection and 
recycling service was identified by residents as the third most important service of 16 specific services provided 
by the City; furthermore, trash collection and recycling service ranked third in customer satisfaction of the same 
16 services.  WMOC supports numerous community organizations and City events through monetary donations 
and in-kind services.  
 

Waste Management has played a vital role in helping Mission Viejo reach the State-mandated diversion goal of 
50%.  Staff has recently learned that the City’s 2005 State Diversion Rate is 51%.  Reaching this diversion goal 
can be directly attributed to the many recycling and diversion programs provided by WMOC including the 
diversion of construction and demolition waste, a waste-to-energy program, and business recycling.  During the 
term of the contract, WMOC has willingly worked with staff to make adjustments to the contract that best meet 
the needs of the City.  As a result, the City now has At-the-Door Household Hazardous Waste Collection and a 
Battery Recycling Program.  Waste Management also assisted the City in bringing a Sharps Disposal by Mail 
Program to Mission Viejo, which is the first of its kind in Orange County.  
 

This issue comes well in advance of the contract expiration because the process of preparing a request for 
proposals and selecting a new trash hauler may take 18 months or longer.  Staff recommends the City Council 
direct staff to begin discussing a two-year extension to the contract and report back to Council in 90 days.   
 
Previous Relevant Council Actions for This Item 

N/A 
 
Attachments 

Exhibit A [WMOC Letter] 
 
Fiscal Impact: 
 

Amount Requested:  N/A 
  

Prepared By 

 
Loren E. Anderson 

Director of Public Works 

 
 Reviewed By 

 
 

Irwin Bornstein 

Asst City Mgr/Dir of Admin Srvcs 

 
Reviewed By 

 

 
William P. Curley III 

City Attorney 

 
Submitted By 

 
Dennis R. Wilberg 

City Manager 

 





C:\Program Files\Neevia.Com\Document Converter\temp\34135.doc 12/14/07 10:39 AM 

 

 

 

     AGENDA REPORT 
 

 
Meeting Date 

 

February 5, 2007 

 
Agenda Title 

 

Rate Adjustment for Solid Waste Delivered to Southeast Resource Recovery Facility 

 
 
Recommended Action 

 

Adopt Resolution 07-XX Approving the Proposed Rate Adjustment for Solid Waste Delivered to Southeast 

Resource Recovery Facility (Waste-to-Energy) for Disposal (from $45.26 to $58.10) Effective Immediately. 
 
Executive Summary 

 

The California Integrated Waste Management Board regulations allow a city to take 100% diversion credit for 

solid waste tons taken to a transformation/waste-to-energy facility up to a maximum of 10% of a city’s total waste 

generation.  In July 2004 in an effort to increase Mission Viejo’s diversion rate, Waste Management of Orange 

County (WMOC) began taking all non-C&D roll-off loads to Southeast Resource Recovery Facility (SERRF) a 

waste-to-energy plant in Long Beach.  Since the inception of the waste-to-energy program, WMOC has taken 

14,500 tons of solid waste to SERRF. 

 

The disposal rate charged by WMOC to the customers has been fixed at $45.26 (this is the same rate charged for 

construction and demolition waste processing) since the inception of the program even though SERRF has raised 

tipping fees several times.  WMOC has informed the City in writing that a rate increase is necessary if the City 

wants the program to continue.  The new rate will be $58.10 per ton.  See Exhibits A and B for a breakdown of 

costs. 

 

Staff has recently learned that the City’s 2005 State Diversion Rate is 51%; however, without the SERRF 

diversion credit this program provides, the City would be at 49% for 2005.  Staff expects higher diversion credit 

from SERRF in 2006 because more solid waste was delivered to the facility.  The SERRF program has shown 

positive results on the City’s diversion while only impacting about 17 local businesses (see page 2 of Exhibit A). 

 

Staff recommends that the Council approve the proposed rate of $58.10. 
 
Previous Relevant Council Actions for This Item 

 

N/A 
 
Attachments 

 

Draft Resolution Exhibit B [WMOC’s Proposed Rate Adjustment Worksheet] 

Exhibit A [WMOC’s Letter] Exhibit C [City of Long Beach Notice of Rate Increase] 
 
Fiscal Impact: 
 

Amount Requested:  N/A 

 
 
Prepared By 

 
Loren E. Anderson 

Director of Public Works 

 
 Reviewed By 

 
 

Irwin Bornstein 

Asst City Mgr/Dir of Admin Srvcs 

 
Reviewed By 

 

 
William P. Curley III 

City Attorney 

 
Submitted By 

 
Dennis R. Wilberg 

City Manager 

 



C:\Program Files\Neevia.Com\Document Converter\temp\34137.doc 

RESOLUTION NO. 07-XX 

 

 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

MISSION VIEJO APPROVING THE PROPOSED RATE 

ADJUSTMENT FOR SOLID WASTE DELIVERED TO 

SOUTHEAST RESOURCE RECOVERY FACILITY (WASTE-TO-

ENERGY) FOR DISPOSAL (FROM $45.26 TO $58.10) 

EFFECTIVE IMMEDIATELY.  

 

WHEREAS, the City of Mission Viejo entered into a Franchise Agreement with Waste 

Management of Orange County on the 21
st
 day of August 2000; and  

 

WHEREAS, Waste Management of Orange County implemented a waste-to-energy program 

in July 2004; and 

 

WHEREAS, the tipping fees/gate rate at Southeast Resource Recovery Facility has increased; 

and 

 

WHEREAS, the terms of the Franchise Agreement allow Waste Management to request a 

rate increase based on unusual changes in the cost of providing service including changes in 

components of the gate rate;  

 

NOW, THEREFORE, THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF MISSION VIEJO, 

CALIFORNIA, DOES HEREBY RESOLVE AS FOLLOWS: 

 

SECTION 1.  Approve the proposed trash rate adjustment for  solid waste delivered to 

Southeast Resource Recovery Facility (waste-to-energy) for disposal effective immediately. 

 

SECTION 2.  The City Clerk shall certify the adoption of this resolution. 

 

PASSED, APPROVED, AND ADOPTED this 5
th
 day of February, 2007. 

 

 

 

              

Gail Reavis 

Mayor 

 



C:\Program Files\Neevia.Com\Document Converter\temp\34137.doc 

I hereby certify that the foregoing Resolution was duly adopted by the City Council of the 

City of Mission Viejo at a regularly scheduled meeting thereof, held on the 5
th
 day of  February, 2007 

by the following vote of the Council: 

 

AYES:   

NOES:   

ABSENT:  

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

 

       

Karen Hamman 

City Clerk 







E
X

H
IB

IT
 B

C
IT

Y
 O

F
 M

IS
S

IO
N

 V
IE

J
O

C
o
n
s
tr

u
c
ti
o
n
 &

 D
e
m

o
li
ti
o
n
 H

a
u
l 
R

a
te

P
R

O
P

O
S

E
D

 R
A

T
E

 A
D

J
U

S
T
M

E
N

T
 -
 E

F
F
E

C
T
IV

E
 F

E
B

R
U

A
R

Y
 1

, 
2
0
0
7

J
u
n
e
 2

0
0
4
 P

ro
d
u
c
e
rs

 P
ri

c
e
 I
n
d
e
x
 (
P

P
I)
 f
o
r 

F
in

is
h
e
d
 G

o
o
d
s
:

1
4
8
.7

J
u
n
e
 2

0
0
6
 P

ro
d
u
c
e
rs

 P
ri

c
e
 I
n
d
e
x
 (
P

P
I)
 f
o
r 

F
in

is
h
e
d
 G

o
o
d
s
:

1
6
1
.8

C
h
a
n
g
e
 i
n
 I
n
d
e
x

1
3
.1

P
e
rc

e
n
t 
C

h
a
n
g
e
 i
n
 I
n
d
e
x

8
.8

1
%

J
u
n
e
 2

0
0
4
 D

is
p
o
s
a
l 
T
ip

p
in

g
 F

e
e
 a

t 
L
o
n
g
 B

e
a
c
h
 S

E
R

R
F

3
3
.6

3
$
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

F
e
b
ru

a
ry

 2
0
0
7
 D

is
p
o
s
a
l 
T
ip

p
in

g
 F

e
e
 a

t 
L
o
n
g
 B

e
a
c
h
 S

E
R

R
F

4
5
.0

0
$
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

C
h
a
n
g
e
 i
n
 F

e
e

1
1
.3

7
$
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

P
e
rc

e
n
t 
C

h
a
n
g
e
 i
n
 I
n
d
e
x

3
3
.8

1
%

D
is

p
o
s
a
l 
R

a
te

 p
e
r 

T
o
n

2
0
0
6

2
0
0
7

T
o
ta

l
In

c
re

a
s
e

N
e
w

R
a
te

$
T
o
ta

l 
R

a
te

%
 I
n
c
re

a
s
e

T
ra

n
s
fe

r 
S

ta
ti
o
n
 P

ro
c
e
s
s
in

g
3
.1

7
$
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

0
.2

8
$
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

3
.4

5
$
  
  
  
  
  
 

8
.8

%

F
re

ig
h
t 
to

 L
o
n
g
 B

e
a
c
h
 S

E
R

R
F

6
.2

0
$
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

0
.5

5
$
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

6
.7

5
$
  
  
  
  
  
 

8
.8

%

S
E

R
R

F
 T

ip
p
in

g
 F

e
e

3
3
.6

3
$
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

1
1
.3

7
$
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

4
5
.0

0
$
  
  
  
  
 

3
3
.8

%

C
it
y
 F

ra
n
c
h
is

e
 F

e
e
s
 @

 5
%

2
.2

6
$
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

0
.6

4
$
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

2
.9

1
$
  
  
  
  
  
 

2
8
.4

%
T
o
ta

l 
D

is
p
o
s
a
l 
R

a
te

 P
e
r 
T
o
n

4
5
.2

6
$
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

1
2
.8

4
$
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

5
8
.1

0
$
  
  
  
  
 

C
:\
P

ro
g
ra

m
 F

ile
s
\N

e
e
v
ia

.C
o
m

\D
o
c
u
m

e
n
t 
C

o
n
v
e
rt
e
r\
te

m
p
\3

4
1
4
1
.x

ls





C:\Program Files\Neevia.Com\Document Converter\temp\34147.doc 12/14/07 10:38 AM 

 

 

 

     AGENDA REPORT 
 

 
Meeting Date 

 

February 5, 2007 

 
Agenda Title 

 

Felipe Road Resurfacing Project (CIP 837) 

 

 
 
Recommended Action 

 

Approve the bid specifications and authorize staff to advertise for construction bids for the subject project.  

 

 
 
Executive Summary 

 

This year’s arterial highway resurfacing project (CIP 837) is the resurfacing of Felipe Road.  The construction 

documents are now complete, and the project is ready to be advertised for construction bids.  The scope of work 

consists of the removal and replacement of deficient curb, gutter, sidewalk, and pavement followed by a 

rubberized slurry seal.   

 

The total estimated construction cost is approximately $440,000, which is within the currently available budget of 

approximately $450,000.  Staff intends to return to City Council with a construction contract award 

recommendation at the first meeting in April.  Work is scheduled to commence around the first of May and be 

completed sometime in July.  This project is categorically exempt from the provisions of CEQA. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 
Previous Relevant Council Actions for This Item 

 

None 
 
Attachments 

 

Map  Bid Specifications [on file in City Clerk's office] 
 
Fiscal Impact: 
 

Amount Requested:  $-0- 
Sufficient Funds Available:  N/A  

Prepared By 

 
Loren E. Anderson 

Director of Public Works 

 
 Reviewed By 

 
 

Irwin Bornstein 

Asst City Mgr/Dir of Admin Srvcs 

 
Reviewed By 

 

 
William P. Curley III 

City Attorney 

 
Submitted By 

 
Dennis R. Wilberg 

City Manager 

 



 

C:\Program Files\Neevia.Com\Document Converter\temp\34149.doc 

 

 

FELIPE ROAD RESURFACING PROJECT (CIP 837) 
LA PAZ ROAD TO MARGUERITE PARKWAY 

FELIPE 

ROAD 



C:\Users\dmeyer\Desktop\AgendaFixes\105\Bid Specs.docx 

 
 

CITY OF MISSION VIEJO 
CALIFORNIA 

 
SPECIFICATIONS 

 

FOR 
 

 
 

  
 

 
 

PREPARED BY 
CITY OF MISSION VIEJO 

200 CIVIC CENTER 
MISSION VIEJO, CALIFORNIA 92691 

(949) 470-3091 
 
 

 
February 2007 

 



C:\Users\dmeyer\Desktop\AgendaFixes\105\Bid Specs.docx  

CITY OF MISSION VIEJO 
CALIFORNIA 

 
SPECIFICATIONS 

 
FOR 

 
 

 
FELIPE ROAD 

PAVEMENT RESURFACING 
 
 

CIP 837 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
Approved By: 
 
 
 
              
RICHARD SCHLESINGER, City Engineer     Date 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



C:\Users\dmeyer\Desktop\AgendaFixes\105\Bid Specs.docx 

CITY OF MISSION VIEJO 
TABLE OF CONTENTS 

 
FELIPE ROAD 

PAVEMENT RESURFACING 
 
 

 
 
NOTICE INVITING SEALED BIDS ....................................................................................... NB-1 
INSTRUCTIONS TO BIDDERS ............................................................................................. IB-1 
PROPOSAL DOCUMENTS 

Proposal  ..................................................................................................................... P-1 
Bidder's Information  .................................................................................................... P-2 
List of Subcontractors  ................................................................................................. P-3 
References  ................................................................................................................. P-4 
Designation of Sureties  .............................................................................................. P-4 
Bidder's Statement of Past Contract Disqualifications  ................................................. P-5 
Non-Collusion Affidavit  ............................................................................................... P-7 
Bid Bond  ..................................................................................................................... P-8 
Proposal Bid Sheets  ................................................................................................. P-10 
Vendor Approval Application 
Request for Taxpayer Identification Number and Certification 

CONTRACT DOCUMENTS 
Contract Agreement  ................................................................................................. CA-1 
Faithful Performance Bond  ....................................................................................... CA-3 
Labor and Material Payment Bond  ........................................................................... CA-5 
Compensation Insurance Certificate  ......................................................................... CA-7 

GENERAL SPECIFICATIONS 
Scope of Work  ......................................................................................................... GS-1 
Location of Work  ..................................................................................................... GS-1 
Time of Completion  ................................................................................................. GS-1 
Traffic Requirements  ............................................................................................... GS-1 
Utility Requirements  ................................................................................................ GS-1 
Flow and Acceptance of Water  ................................................................................ GS-2 
Removal of Water  .................................................................................................... GS-2 
Standard Specifications  ........................................................................................... GS-3 
Wage Rates and Labor Code Requirements  ........................................................... GS-4 
Clayton Act and Cartwright Act  ................................................................................ GS-4 
Substitution of Securities  ......................................................................................... GS-4 

 Water Pollution Control  ............................................................................................ GS-5 
SPECIAL PROVISIONS 

PART I — GENERAL PROVISIONS  ........................................................................ SP-1 
PART II — CONSTRUCTION MATERIALS  ............................................................ SP-10 
PART III — CONSTRUCTION METHODS  ............................................................. SP-15 

APPLICABLE STANDARD PLANS  .......................................................................... APPENDIX 
 
PLANS .............................................................................................. SEPARATE DOCUMENTS 



C:\Program Files\Neevia.Com\Document Converter\temp\34153.doc NB-1 

CITY OF MISSION VIEJO 
NOTICE INVITING SEALED BIDS 

 
FELIPE ROAD 

PAVEMENT RESURFACING 
 
 
NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that sealed bids will be received by the City of Mission Viejo, as 
Agency, for furnishing all materials, equipment, tools, labor and incidentals as required for the 
above-stated project in strict accordance with the specifications and drawings on file at the 
office of the City Clerk of the City of Mission Viejo. 
 
Bids will be received at the office of the City Clerk, City of Mission Viejo, until the hour of 2:00 
p.m. on Thursday, March 15, 2007, at which time and place the bids will be publicly opened 
and read aloud.  Bids shall be submitted in sealed envelopes marked on the outside, "SEALED 
BID FOR FELIPE ROAD PAVEMENT RESURFACING”. 
 
The work to be constructed hereunder is located in the City of Mission Viejo.  The work 
generally consists of demolition and removals, PCC curb, gutter, sidewalk, driveway aprons and 
access ramps, partial-depth cold-planing, asphalt paving, crack sealing, utility cover 
adjustments, traffic paint removal, Type II REAS slurry seal, striping and pavement markings, 
traffic control, and all appurtenant work. 
 
The Agency reserves the right, after opening bids, to reject any or all bids, or to make award to 
the lowest responsible bidder and reject all other bids; to waive any informality in the bidding; 
and to accept any bid or portion thereof; and to take all bids under advisement for a period of 45 
days.  Bids will be compared on the basis of the Engineer's estimate of the quantities of the 
several items of work as shown on the Bid Sheets.  Only such plans, specifications, and items 
of work as are appropriate shall apply to the work as bid. 
 
At the time of contract award, the contractor shall possess a Class A Contractor's License or a 
combination of Class C Specialty Contractor's License(s) adequate to perform the work herein 
described. 
 
Each bid must be accompanied by a certified or cashier's check, or by a corporate surety bond 
on the form furnished by the AGENCY, as a guarantee that the bidder will, if an award is made 
to him in accordance with the terms of his bid, promptly secure workmen's compensation 
insurance and liability insurance, execute a contract in the required form, and furnish 
satisfactory bonds for the faithful performance of the contract and for the payment of claims of 
material and laborers thereunder.  Said check or bidder's bond shall be in an amount not less 
than 10% of the amount of the bid.  The Performance Bond shall be not less than 100% of the 
total amount of the bid price named in the contract.  The Payment Bond shall be not less than 
100% of the total amount of the bid price named in the contract.  The AGENCY reserves the 
right to reject any bond if, in the opinion of the AGENCY Attorney, the Surety's acknowledgment 
is not in the form included in the contract documents or in another form substantially as 
prescribed by law. 
 
In accordance with provisions of Section 1773.2 (amended 1977) of the California Labor Code 
copies of the prevailing rate of per diem wages as determined by the State Director of Industrial 
Relations are on file in the office of the City Clerk of the City of Mission Viejo.  It shall be 
mandatory upon the Contractor to whom the contract is awarded and upon any subcontractor 



C:\Program Files\Neevia.Com\Document Converter\temp\34153.doc NB-2 

under him to pay not less than said specified rates to all workmen employed by them in the 
execution of the contract. 
 
The City of Mission Viejo hereby notifies all bidders that it will affirmatively insure that in any 
contract entered into pursuant to this advertisement, Disadvantaged Business and Women's 
Business Enterprises will be afforded full opportunity to submit bids in response to this invitation 
and will not be discriminated against on the grounds of race, creed, color, or national origin in 
consideration for an award. 
 
A full set of drawings and specifications is available for inspection without charge at the public 
counter of the City Hall of the City of Mission Viejo. 
 
Complete sets of said contract documents may be purchased at a cost of $50.00 (fifty dollars) 
per set and are obtainable from the City of Mission Viejo, 200 Civic Center, Engineering 
Counter, Mission Viejo, California 92691.  No refund will be made of any charges for sets of 
contract documents.  Plans and specifications can be mailed for an additional $10.00 (ten 
dollars) per set. 
 
Dated this ______ day of _____________, 2007. 
 
 
 
              

Karen Hamman 
City Clerk 
 
City of Mission Viejo 
200 Civic Center 
Mission Viejo, California 92691 
 



C:\Program Files (x86)\Neevia.Com\Document Converter\temp\307469.doc IB-1 

CITY OF MISSION VIEJO 
INSTRUCTIONS TO BIDDERS 

 
FELIPE ROAD 

PAVEMENT RESURFACING 
 
 
1. PROPOSAL FORMS 
 
Bids shall be submitted in writing on the Proposal forms provided by the AGENCY.  All 
information requested therein must be clearly and legibly set forth in the manner and form 
indicated.  The AGENCY will not consider any proposal not meeting these requirements. 
 
2. PROPOSAL GUARANTEE (BID BOND) 
 
Proposals must be accompanied by a proposal guarantee consisting of a certified check or bid 
bond payable to the AGENCY in the minimum amount of ten percent (10%) of the total amount 
bid.  Any proposal not accompanied by such a guarantee will not be considered.  If a bidder to 
whom a contract is awarded fails or refuses to execute the contract documents or furnish the 
required insurance policies and bonds as set forth in those documents, the proposal guarantee 
shall be forfeited to the AGENCY.  The proposal guarantees of all bidders will be held until the 
successful bidder has properly executed all contract documents. 
 
3. NON-COLLUSION AFFIDAVIT 
 
Bidder shall declare that the only persons or parties interested in the proposal as principals are 
those named therein; that no officer, agent, or employee of the AGENCY is personally 
interested, directly or indirectly, in the proposal; that the proposal is made without connection to 
any other individual, firm, or corporation making a bid for the same work; and that the proposal 
is in all respects fair and without collusion or fraud.  The Non-Collusion Affidavit shall be 
executed and submitted with the proposal. 
 
4. PROPOSAL BID SHEET 
 
Bidders shall give unit prices for each and all of the items set forth.  No aggregate bids will be 
considered.  The bidder shall set forth for each item of work, in clearly legible figures, a unit item 
price and a total for the item in the respective spaces provided for this purpose.  The quantities 
listed in the bid sheets are supplied to give an indication of the general scope of work, but the 
accuracy of figures is not guaranteed and the bidder shall make his estimates from the 
drawings.  In case of a variation between the unit price and the totals shown by the bidder, the 
unit price will be considered to be the bid. 
 
5. DELIVERY OF PROPOSAL 
 
Proposals may be mailed or delivered by messenger.  However, it is the bidder's responsibility 
alone to ensure delivery of the proposal to the hands of the AGENCY's designated official prior 
to the bid opening hour stipulated in the "Notice Inviting Sealed Bids."  Late proposals will not be 
considered.  Proposals shall be enclosed in a sealed envelope plainly marked on the outside, 
"SEALED BID FOR FELIPE ROAD PAVEMENT RESURFACING”. 
 



C:\Program Files (x86)\Neevia.Com\Document Converter\temp\307469.doc IB-2 

6. WITHDRAWAL OF PROPOSALS 
 
A proposal may be withdrawn by a written request signed by the bidder.  Such requests must be 
delivered to the AGENCY's designated official prior to the bid-opening hour stipulated in the 
"Notice Inviting Sealed Bids".  The withdrawal of a proposal will not prejudice the right of the 
bidder to submit a new proposal, providing there is time to do so.  Proposals may not be 
withdrawn after said hour without forfeiture of the proposal guarantee. 
 
7. IRREGULAR PROPOSALS 
 
Unauthorized conditions, limitations, or provisions attached to a proposal will render it irregular 
and may cause its rejection.  The completed proposal forms shall be without interlineations, 
alterations, or erasures, unless such changes are confirmed by the City Clerk at the time of bid 
opening.  Alternative proposals will not be considered unless specifically requested.  No oral, 
telegraphic, or telephonic proposal, modification, or withdrawal will be considered. 
 
8. TAXES 
 
No mention shall be made in the proposal of Sales Tax, Use Tax, or any other tax, as all 
amounts bid will be deemed and held to include any such taxes, which may be applicable. 
 
9. DISQUALIFICATION OF BIDDERS 
 
In the event that any bidder acting as a prime contractor has an interest in more than one 
proposal, all such proposals will be rejected, and the bidder will be disqualified.  This restriction 
does not apply to subcontractors or suppliers who may submit quotations to more than one 
bidder. 
 
No contract will be executed unless the bidder is licensed in accordance with the provisions of 
the State Business and Professions Code. 
 
10. INTERPRETATION OF PLANS AND DOCUMENTS 
 
If any person contemplates submission of a bid for the proposed contract and is in doubt as to 
the true meaning of any part of the plans, specifications or other proposed contract documents, 
or finds discrepancies in, or omissions from, the drawings or specifications, he may submit to 
the Engineer of said AGENCY a written request for an interpretation or correction thereof.  The 
person submitting the request will be responsible for its prompt delivery.  Any interpretation or 
correction of the proposed documents shall be made only by addendum duly issued and copy of 
such addendum will be mailed or delivered to each person receiving a set of such documents.  
The Engineer will not be responsible for any other explanation or interpretations of the proposed 
documents. 
 
11. ADDENDA OR BULLETINS 
 
The effect of all addenda to the Contract Documents shall be considered in the bid, and said 
addenda shall be made a part of the contract documents and shall be returned with them.  
Before submitting his bid, each bidder shall inform himself as to whether or not any addenda 
have been issued, and failure to cover in this bid any such addenda issued, may render his bid 
irregular and may result in its rejection by the AGENCY. 
 



C:\Program Files (x86)\Neevia.Com\Document Converter\temp\307469.doc IB-3 

12. LEGAL RESPONSIBILITIES 
 
All proposals must be submitted, filed, made, and executed in accordance with State and 
Federal laws relating to bids for contracts of this nature whether the same are expressly referred 
to herein or not.   
 
Any bidder submitting a proposal shall by such action thereby agree to each and all of the 
terms, conditions, provisions, and requirements set forth, contemplated, and referred to in the 
Plans, Specifications, and Contract Documents, and to full compliance therewith.  
 
13. AWARD OF CONTRACT 
 
Following a review of the bids, the AGENCY shall determine whether to award the contract or to 
reject all bids.  The award of contract, if made, will be to the lowest responsible bidder as 
determined solely by the AGENCY.  At the time of contract award, the successful bidder shall 
hold a Class A Contractor's License or a combination of Class C license(s), as required to 
perform the work, issued by the State of California.  Additionally, the AGENCY reserves the 
right to reject any or all proposals, to accept any bid or portion thereof, to waive any irregularity, 
and to take the bids under advisement for the period of time stated in the "Notice Inviting Sealed 
Bids", all as may be required to provide for the best interests of the AGENCY.  In no event will 
an award be made until all necessary investigations are made as to the responsibility and 
qualifications of the bidder to whom the award is contemplated. 
 
No bidder may withdraw his proposal for a period of forty-five (45) days after the time set for 
opening thereof.  However, the AGENCY will return all proposal guarantees within ten (10) days 
after the award of the contract or rejection of the bids, as the case may be, to the respective 
bidders whose proposals they accompany. 
 
14. LABOR CODE 
 
Pursuant to the provisions of Section 1773 of the Labor Code of the State of California, the 
AGENCY has obtained the general provisions rate of per diem wages and the general prevailing 
rate for holiday and overtime work in this locality for each craft, classification, or type of 
workman needed to execute the contract from the State Director of the Department of Industrial 
Relations.  These rates are on file with the Clerk of the AGENCY, and copies will be made 
available to any interested party on request.  It shall be the responsibility of the prime Contractor 
to comply with all applicable sections of the Labor Code. 
 
Travel and subsistence payments to each workman needed to execute the work shall be made 
as such travel and subsistence payments are defined in the applicable collective bargaining 
agreements filed in accordance with Section 1773.8 of the Labor Code. 
 
The Contractor shall comply with the provisions of Section 1774 of the Labor Code.  Failure to 
comply with the subject section will subject the Contractor to penalty and forfeiture provisions of 
Section 1775 of the Labor Code. 
 
Pursuant to the provisions of Section 1770 of the Labor Code, the general prevailing rate of 
wages has been ascertained (which rate includes employer payments for health and welfare, 
vacation, pension and similar purposes) applicable to the work to be done, for straight time, 
overtime, Saturday, Sunday, and holiday work.  The holiday wage rate listed shall be applicable 



C:\Program Files (x86)\Neevia.Com\Document Converter\temp\307469.doc IB-4 

to all holidays recognized in the collective bargaining agreement of the particular craft, 
classification, or type of workmen concerned. 
 
The AGENCY will not recognize any claim for additional compensation because of the payment 
by the Contractor of any wage rate in excess of the prevailing wage rate or the Federal 
Minimum Wage Rate (whichever is greater) as set forth in the contract.  The possibility of wage 
increases is one of the elements to be considered by the Contractor in determining his bid, and 
will not under any circumstances be considered as the basis of a claim against the AGENCY on 
the contract. 
 
The Contractor and subcontractors shall comply with Section 1777.6 which stipulates that it 
shall be unlawful to refuse to accept otherwise qualified employees as registered apprentices 
solely on the grounds of race, religious creed, color, national origin, ancestry, sex, or age, 
except as provided in Section 3077, of such employee. 
 
15. WORKER'S COMPENSATION CERTIFICATE 
 
Section 3700 of the State Labor Code requires that every employer shall secure the payment 
compensation by either being insured against liability to pay compensation with one or more 
insurers or by securing a certificate of consent to self-insure from the State Director of Industrial 
Relations.  In accordance with this section and with Section 1861 of the State Labor Code, the 
contractor shall sign a Compensation Insurance Certificate, which is included with the Contract 
Agreement, and submit same to City along with the other required contract documents prior to 
performing any work.  Reimbursement for this requirement shall be considered as included in 
the various items of work. 
 
16. CLAYTON ACT AND CARTWRIGHT ACT 
 
In accordance with Section 7103 of the Public Contract Code, in entering into a public works 
contract or a subcontract to supply goods, services, or materials pursuant to a public works 
contract, the contractor or subcontractor offers and agrees to assign to the awarding body all 
rights and interest in and all causes of action it may have under Section 4 of the Clayton Act (15 
U.S.C. Sec. 15) or under the Cartwright Act [Chapter 2 (commencing with Section 16700) of 
Part 2 of Division 7 of the Business and Professions Code], arising from purchases of goods, 
services, or materials pursuant to the public works contract or the subcontract.  This assignment 
shall be made and become effective at the time the awarding body tenders final payment to the 
contractor, without further acknowledgement by the parties. 
 
17. SUBLETTING AND SUBCONTRACTING 
 
Pursuant to the Subletting and Subcontracting Fair Practices Act (commencing with Section 
4100 of the Public Contract Code), bidders are required to list in their proposal the name and 
location of place of business of each subcontractor who will perform work or labor or render 
services in or about the construction of the work or improvement or a subcontractor who 
specially fabricates and installs a portion of the work or improvement according to detailed 
drawings contained in the Plans and Specifications in excess of ½ of 1% of this prime 
Contractor's total bid or $10,000, whichever is greater.  Failure to list a subcontractor for a 
portion of the work means that the prime Contractor will do that portion of the work.  It is the 
AGENCY's intent for the Subletting and Subcontracting Fair Practices Act to apply to all phases 
of the work. 
 



C:\Program Files (x86)\Neevia.Com\Document Converter\temp\307469.doc IB-5 

Attention is directed to the provisions in Sections 10262 and 10262.5 of the Public Contract 
Code and Section 7108.5 of the Business and Professions Code concerning prompt payment to 
subcontractors.  The Contractor shall return all moneys withheld in retention from the 
subcontractor within 30 days after receiving payment for work satisfactorily completed, even if 
the other contract work is not completed and has not been accepted by the Agency.  This 
requirement shall not be construed to limit or impair any contractual, administrative, or judicial 
remedies otherwise available to the Contractor or subcontractor in the event of a dispute 
involving late payment or nonpayment by the Contractor or deficient subcontract performance or 
noncompliance by a subcontractor. 
  
18. INSURANCE 
 
Contractor agrees to provide insurance in accordance with the requirements set forth herein.  If 
Contractor uses existing coverage to comply with these requirements and that coverage does 
not meet the requirements set forth herein, Contractor agrees to amend, supplement or endorse 
the existing coverage to do so.  The following coverages will be provided by Contractor and 
maintained on behalf of the City and in accordance with the requirements set forth herein.  The 
cost of such insurance shall be included in the Contractor’s bid. 
 
Commercial General Liability/Umbrella.  Primary insurance shall be provided on ISO-CGL 
form No. CG 00 01 11 85 or 88.  Total limits shall be no less than $2,000,000.00 per occurrence 
for all coverages and $2,000,000.00 general aggregate.  City and its employees and agents 
shall be added as additional insureds using ISO additional insured endorsement form CG 20 10 
11 85 (in no event will City accept an endorsement form with an edition date later than 1990).  
Coverage shall apply on a primary non-contributing basis in relation to any other insurance or 
self-insurance, primary or excess, available to City or any employee or agent of City. Coverage 
shall not be limited to the vicarious liability or supervisory role of any additional insured. 
 
Umbrella Liability Insurance (if necessary to meet limits requirements) shall apply to bodily 
injury/property damage, personal injury/advertising injury, at a minimum, and shall include a 
“drop-down” provision providing primary coverage above a maximum $25,000.00 self-insured 
retention for liability not covered by primary policies but covered by the umbrella policy.  
Coverage shall be following form to any underlying coverage.  Coverage shall be provided on a 
“pay-on-behalf” basis, with defense costs payable in addition to policy limits.  There shall be no 
cross-liability exclusion.  Policies shall have concurrent starting and ending dates. 
 
Business Auto/Umbrella Liability Insurance.  Primary coverage shall be written on ISO 
Business Auto Coverage form CA 00 01 06 92 including symbol 1 (Any Auto).  Limits shall be 
no less than $1,000,000.00 per accident.  Starting and ending dates shall be concurrent.  If 
Consultant owns no autos, a non-owned auto endorsement to the General Liability policy 
described above is acceptable. 
 
Workers’ Compensation/Employer’s Liability shall be written on a policy form providing 
workers’ compensation statutory benefits as required by law.  Employer’s liability limits shall be 
no less than one million dollars per accident or disease.  Employer’s liability coverage shall be 
scheduled under any umbrella policy described above.  Unless otherwise agreed, this policy 
shall be endorsed to waive any right of subrogation as respect to the City, its employees, or 
agents. 
 



C:\Program Files (x86)\Neevia.Com\Document Converter\temp\307469.doc IB-6 

Deductibles and Self-Insured Retention 
 
Any deductibles or self-insured retention must be declared to and approved by the City.  At the 
option of the City, either, the insurer shall reduce or eliminate such deductibles or self-insured 
retention as respects to the City, its officers, officials, employees, and volunteers; or the 
Contractor shall procure a bond guaranteeing payment of losses and related investigations, 
claim administration and defense expenses. 
 
Other Insurance Provisions 
 
The general liability and automobile liability polices are to contain, or be endorsed to contain, 
the following provisions: 
 
1. The City, its officers, officials, employees, agents, and volunteers are to be covered as 

insured as respects:  liability arising out of activities performed by or on behalf of the 
Contractor, products and completed operations of the Contractor; premises owned, 
occupied or used by the Contractor; or automobiles owned, leased, hired, or borrowed 
by the Contractor.  The coverage shall contain no special limitations on the scope of 
protection afforded to the City, its officers, officials, employees, agents, or volunteers. 

 
2. For any claims related to this project, the Contractor's insurance coverage shall be 

primary insurance as respects to the City, its officers, officials, employees, agents, or 
volunteers.  Any insurance or self-insurance maintained by the City, its officers, officials, 
employees, agents, or volunteers shall be in excess of the Contractor's insurance and 
shall not contribute with it. 

 
3. Any failure to comply with reporting or other provisions of the policies including breaches 

of warranties shall not affect coverage provided to the City, its officers, officials, 
employees, agents, or volunteers. 

 
4. The Contractor's insurance shall apply separately to each insured against whom claim is 

made or suit is brought, except with respect to the limits of the insurer's liability. 
 
5. Each insurance policy required by this clause shall be endorsed to state that coverage 

shall not be suspended, voided, canceled by either party, reduced in coverage or in 
limits except after thirty (30) days' prior written notice by certified mail, return receipt 
required, has been given to the City. 

 
Acceptability of Insurers 
 
Insurance is to be placed with insurers with a current A.M. Best's rating of no less than A:VII. 
 
Verification of Coverage 
 
Contractor shall furnish the City with original endorsements effecting coverage required by this 
clause.  The endorsements are to be signed by a person authorized by that insurer to bind 
coverage on its behalf.  The endorsements are to be on forms provided by the City.  All 
endorsements are to be received and approved by the City before work commences.  As an 
alternative to the City's forms, the Contractor's insurer may provide complete, certified copies of 
all required insurance polices, including endorsements effecting the coverage required by these 
specifications. 



C:\Program Files (x86)\Neevia.Com\Document Converter\temp\307469.doc IB-7 

Subcontractors 
 
Contractor shall include all subcontractors as insureds under its policies or shall furnish 
separate certificates and endorsements for each subcontractor.  All coverage for subcontractors 
shall be subject to all of the requirements stated herein. 
 
19. BINDING ARBITRATION 
 
Applicable Law 
 
The parties of the contract hereby agree that all claims, disputes or matters in question between 
and among the parties arising out of or relating to the contract or the breach thereof will be 
decided by binding arbitration.  Except as provided below, any such arbitration shall be 
governed by Code of Civil Procedure §§1280 et seq.  Should any provision in this "Binding 
Arbitration" section be found to be unenforceable, then such provision shall be severed and the 
parties agree that the remaining provisions shall be binding and enforceable as if adopted 
absent the unenforceable provision. 
 
Selection of Arbitrator 
 
Upon notification of a party's election to proceed with arbitration under this section, the parties 
shall have thirty (30) days to jointly select an arbitrator.  In the event that the parties are unable 
to reach an agreement as to the selection of an arbitrator, an arbitrator will be selected from the 
American Arbitration Association's panel of construction arbitrators.  There shall be no limit on 
the number of arbitrators that a party can disqualify with respect to the American Arbitration 
Association's list of arbitrators. 
 
Amount in Controversy/Discovery 
 
1. If the amount in controversy is less than $50,000, then, notwithstanding any other 

provision of law, the only discovery permitted will be (1) the noticing and taking of one 
deposition (in accordance with Code of Civil Procedure Section 2025) by each party to 
the dispute and (2) inspection demands pursuant to Code of Civil Procedure Section 
2031. 

 
2. If the amount in controversy is equal to or greater than $50,000 but less than $150,000, 

then, notwithstanding any other provision of law, the only discovery permitted will be (1) 
the noticing and taking of no more than three depositions (in accordance with Code of 
Civil Procedure Section 2025) by each party to the dispute and (2) inspection demands 
pursuant to Code of Civil Procedure Section 2031. 

 
3. If the amount in controversy is equal to or greater than $150,000, then all discovery rules 

contained in the California Civil Discovery Act, Code of Civil Procedure Section 2016, et 
seq., shall apply to the arbitration, except each party will only be allowed to propound no 
more than 50 special interrogatories, and no requests for admissions shall be permitted. 

 
The above deposition limits shall not be applicable to expert depositions.  Experts shall be 
designated and deposed in accordance with Code of Civil Procedure §2034. 
 



C:\Program Files (x86)\Neevia.Com\Document Converter\temp\307469.doc IB-8 

Procedure/Evidence 
 
1. General and specific rules of trial procedure and evidence as set forth in the California 

Code of Civil Procedure and the California Evidence Code, respectfully, shall apply 
except that the arbitrator may admit any relevant evidence which he believes should be 
afforded consideration. 

 
2. Motions for summary judgment and/or summary adjudication of issues shall be permitted 

only if the amount in controversy is equal to or greater than $50,000.  Motions for 
summary judgment and/or summary adjudication of issues shall be heard in accordance 
with the Federal Rules of Civil Procedure, Rule 56.  The arbitrator shall also have the 
authority to decide specific legal and/or factual issues by way of a motion for summary 
judgment and/or summary adjudication of issues regardless of whether or not such 
resolve a cause of action. 

 
3. Demurrers and motions for judgment on the pleadings shall not be allowed.  The 

arbitrator shall review the pleadings and in the arbitrator's sole discretion a dismissal 
and/or amendment of a pleading can be ordered. 

 
4. The arbitrator shall conduct a pre-arbitration conference for purposes of coordinating the 

arbitration.  At the pre-trial arbitration conference, all of the following issues shall be 
addressed:  procedural matters, exchange of exhibits, witness lists, motions in limine, 
arbitration briefs, and the potential for narrowing issues and/or factual disputes by 
stipulation or by bifurcating the arbitration.  The arbitrator can bifurcate specific factual 
and/or legal issues in addition to causes of action. 
 

5. The arbitrator will close the arbitration hearing after presentation of the evidence and 
receipt of final briefs, which must be submitted within twenty (20) days from the final 
presentation of evidence.  The time limit within which the award must be filed begins with 
the closing of the hearing. 
 

6. The arbitrator may for good cause reopen the hearing through request of either party, at 
any time, before the award is made. 
 

7. The arbitrator's award must be mailed promptly to the parties, but no later than thirty (30) 
days after the closing of the hearing.  The award will be based upon the evidence 
introduced at the hearing, including all logical and reasonable inferences made 
therefrom.  The arbitrator may grant any remedy that is just and equitable. 

 
Joinder 
 
No arbitration arising out of or relating to the contract documents shall include by consolidation, 
joinder or in any other manner any other person or entity who is not a party to this contract 
unless: 
 
1. the inclusion of such other person or entity is necessary if complete relief is to be 

afforded among those who are already parties to the arbitration, and 
 
2. such other person or entity is substantially involved in a question of law or fact which is 

common to those who are already parties to the arbitration and which will arise in such 
proceedings, and 



C:\Program Files (x86)\Neevia.Com\Document Converter\temp\307469.doc IB-9 

3. the written consent of the other person or entity sought to be included and of City and 
Contractor has been obtained for such inclusion, which consent shall make specific 
reference to this section; but no such consent shall constitute consent to arbitration of 
any dispute not specifically described in such consent or to arbitration with any party not 
specifically identified in such consent. 

 
Costs and Fees 
 
1. Prior to a decision being rendered in the arbitration, the parties shall split the arbitrator's 

fees and be responsible for the prompt payment thereof. 
 
2. The prevailing party shall be awarded its attorney's fees and costs, including, without 

limitation, the arbitrator's fees. 
 
Conclusiveness of Judgment 

 
The arbitration award will be final and binding and there is no direct appeal from the award on 
the grounds of error in the application of the law or based upon the arbitrator's interpretation of 
the facts presented.  The only reasons for challenging the arbitrator's award are those set forth 
in the Code of Civil Procedure, Section 1286.2(a), (b), (c) and/or (f) only.  If any party other than 
the City seeks to challenge the arbitrator's award pursuant to these Code of Civil Procedures 
sections, such party must post a bond in the amount of 150% of the arbitrator's award (including 
the award of costs and fees). 
 
Duration 
 
From the time arbitration proceedings are initiated, such proceedings must be completed within 
six (6) months, unless (1) the amount in controversy equals or exceeds $150,000, the arbitration 
must be completed within one year or (2) the arbitrator extends the completion period for good 
cause or based upon the stipulation of the parties.  Arbitration proceedings shall be deemed 
initiated upon the appointment of the arbitrator. 
 



 BIDDER'S NAME   

C:\Program Files\Neevia.Com\Document Converter\temp\34157.doc P-1 

CITY OF MISSION VIEJO 
PROPOSAL 

 
FELIPE ROAD 

PAVEMENT RESURFACING 
 

 
TO CITY OF MISSION VIEJO, as AGENCY: 
 
In accordance with AGENCY's "Notice Inviting Sealed Bids", the undersigned BIDDER hereby 
proposes to furnish all materials, equipment, tools, labor, and incidentals required for the above-
stated project as set forth in the Plans, Specifications, and Contract Documents therefor, and to 
perform all work in the manner and time prescribed therein. 
 
BIDDER declares that this proposal is based upon careful examination of the work site, Plans, 
Specifications, Instructions to Bidders, and Contract Documents.  If this proposal is accepted for 
award, BIDDER agrees to enter into a contract with AGENCY at the unit and/or lump sum prices 
set forth in the following Proposal Bid Sheets.  BIDDER understands that failure to enter into a 
contract in the manner and time prescribed will result in forfeiture to AGENCY of the Bid Bond 
accompanying this proposal. 
 
BIDDER understands that a bid is required for the entire work, that the estimated quantities set 
forth in the Proposal Bid Sheet are solely for the purpose of comparing bids, and that final 
compensation under the contract will be based upon the actual quantities of work satisfactorily 
completed.  It is agreed that the unit and/or lump sum prices bid include all appurtenant 
expenses, taxes, royalties, and fees.  In the case of discrepancies in the amounts bid, unit 
prices shall govern over extended amounts. 
 
BIDDER agrees and acknowledges that he is aware of the provisions of Section 3700 of the 
Labor Code which requires every employer to be insured against liability for workmen's 
compensation or to undertake self-insurance in accordance with the provisions of that code, and 
that the BIDDER will comply with such provisions of that code before commencing the 
performance of this Contract if awarded to it. 
 
BIDDER certifies that in all previous contracts or subcontracts, all reports that may have been 
due under the requirements of any agency, State, or Federal equal employment opportunity 
orders have been satisfactorily filed, and that no such reports are currently outstanding. 
 
BIDDER declares that the only persons or parties interested in this proposal as principals are 
those named herein; that no officer, agent, or employee of the AGENCY is personally 
interested, directly or indirectly, in this proposal; that this proposal is made without connection to 
any other individual, firm, or corporation making a bid for the same work; and that this proposal 
is in all respects fair and without collusion or fraud. 
 



 

C:\Program Files\Neevia.Com\Document Converter\temp\34157.doc P-2 

BIDDER'S INFORMATION 
 
 
BIDDER certifies that the following information is true and correct: 
 
Bidder's Name   
 
Business Address   
 
Telephone: (            )  
 
State Contractor's License No. and Class   
 
Original Date Issued   Expiration Date   
 
The following are the names, titles, addresses, and phone numbers of all individuals, firm 
members, partners, joint ventures, and/or corporate officers having a principal interest in this 
proposal: 
 
  
 
  
 
  
 
  
 
  
 
The dates of any voluntary or involuntary bankruptcy judgments against any principal having an 
interest in this proposal are as follows: 
 
  
 
  
 
All current and prior DBAs, alias, and/or fictitious business names for any principal having an 
interest in this proposal are as follows: 
 
  
 
  
 
 



 BIDDER'S NAME   

C:\Program Files\Neevia.Com\Document Converter\temp\34157.doc P-3 

LIST OF SUBCONTRACTORS 
 
BIDDER proposes to subcontract certain portions of the work, and to procure materials and 
equipment from suppliers and vendors as follows: 
 

Name of Subcontractor 
 or Supplier 

License 
No. 

Address/Phone # of Office, Mill 
or Shop 

Percent 
of Total 
Contract 

Bid Items 
(List % of Bid Item if 

Portion Only) 

 
  

 

  

 
  

 

  

 
  

 

  

 
  

 

  

 
  

 

  

 
  

 

  

 
  

 

  

 
  

 

  

 
  

 

  

 
 



 BIDDER'S NAME   

C:\Program Files\Neevia.Com\Document Converter\temp\34157.doc P-4 

REFERENCES 
 
The following are the project names, addresses, contact persons, and phone numbers for three 
public agencies for which BIDDER has performed TYPE II REAS SLURRY SEAL within the past 
two years: 
 
  
 
  
 
  
 
  
 
  
 
  
 
  
 
  
 
  
 
  
 
 
DESIGNATION OF SURETIES 
 
The following are the names, addresses, and phone numbers for all brokers and sureties from 
whom BIDDER intends to procure insurance and bonds: 
 
  
 
  
 
  
 
  
 
  
 
  
 
  
 
  
 
  
 
 



 

C:\Program Files\Neevia.Com\Document Converter\temp\34157.doc P-5 

CITY OF MISSION VIEJO 
PUBLIC WORKS DEPARTMENT 

 
BIDDER'S STATEMENT OF PAST CONTRACT DISQUALIFICATIONS 

 
 
The Bidder is required to state any and all instances of being disqualified, removed, or 
otherwise prevented from bidding on or completing any contract for construction. 
 
1. Have you ever been disqualified from any contract? 
 

Yes �  No � 
 
2. If yes, explain the circumstances: 
 
   
 
   
 
   
 
   
 
   
 
   
 
   
 
   
 
   
 
 
 
 
       
Signature of Bidder 
 
 
 



 

C:\Program Files\Neevia.Com\Document Converter\temp\34157.doc P-6 

PROPOSAL 
 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, Bidder executes and submits this proposal with the names, titles, 
hands and seals of all forenamed principals this _____day of     , 2007. 
 
 
BIDDER   
 
   
 
   
 
   
 
Subscribed and sworn to this   day of   , 2007. 
 
 
 
NOTARY PUBLIC   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
AGENCY acknowledges that this proposal was received and opened at the time and in the 
place specified, and that it was accompanied by the required guarantee in the amount of ten 
percent (10%) of the total bid. 
 
By:   
 
Title   
 
 
 



 

C:\Program Files\Neevia.Com\Document Converter\temp\34157.doc P-7 

NON-COLLUSION AFFIDAVIT 
TO BE EXECUTED BY BIDDER AND SUBMITTED WITH BID 

 
 
STATE OF CALIFORNIA ) 

) ss 
COUNTY OF   ) 
 
 
                                                                              , being first duly sworn, deposes and says that 
he or she is                                                               of 
_______________________________________ the party making the foregoing bid that the bid 
is not made in the interest of, or on behalf of, any undisclosed person, partnership, company, 
association, organization, or corporation; that such bid is genuine and not collusive or sham; 
that said bidder has not directly or indirectly induced or solicited any other bidder to put in a 
false or sham bid, and has not directly or indirectly colluded, conspired, connived, or agreed 
with any bidder or anyone else to put in a sham bid, or that anyone shall refrain from bidding; 
that the bidder has not in any manner, directly or indirectly, sought by agreement, 
communication, or conference with anyone to fix the bid price of the bidder or any other bidder, 
or to fix any overhead, profit, or cost element of the bid price, or of that of any other bidder, or to 
secure any advantage against the public body awarding the contract of anyone interested in the 
proposed contract; that all statements contained in the bid are true; and further, that the bidder 
has not, directly or indirectly, submitted his or her bid price or any breakdown thereof, or the 
contents thereof, or divulged information or data relative thereto, or paid, and will not pay, any 
fee to any corporation, partnership, company association, organization, bid depository, or to any 
member or agency thereof to effectuate a collusive or sham bid." 
 
 
Signed    
 
   
 Print Name 
   
  Title 
 
 
Subscribed and sworn to before me this ______ day of _____________, 2007. 
 
 
 
  
Signature of Notary Public 
 
 
 
            (SEAL) 
 



(10% of the Proposal Amount) Bond #  
 
 

C:\Program Files\Neevia.Com\Document Converter\temp\34157.doc P-8 

CITY OF MISSION VIEJO 
BID BOND 

 
FELIPE ROAD 

PAVEMENT RESURFACING 
 
 
KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS that we        
   as “Principal/Bidder,” and        
  as “Surety,” are held and firmly bound unto City of Mission Viejo as “Agency” in the 
penal sum of           Dollars ($  
 ), for the payment of which sum well and truly to be made, we bind ourselves, our 
heirs, executors, administrators and successors, jointly and severally, firmly by these presents. 
 
The conditions of this obligation are such that whereas the Principal/Bidder submitted to the 
Agency a certain Proposal, attached hereto and hereby made a part hereof, to enter into a contract 
in writing for the            
       and will furnish all required certificates of insurance 
and bonds as required by the Contract. 
 
NOW THEREFORE, if said Proposal shall be rejected; or in the alternate, if said Proposal shall be 
accepted, and the Principal/Bidder shall execute and deliver a contract in the prescribed Form of 
Agreement, shall deliver certificates evidencing that the required insurance is in effect and shall 
execute and deliver Performance and Payment Bonds in the forms prescribed, and shall in all other 
respects perform the agreement created by the acceptance of said Proposal, then this obligation 
shall be void; otherwise, this obligation shall remain in force and effect, it being expressly 
understood and agreed that the liability of the Surety for any and all default of the Principal/Bidder 
hereunder shall be the amount of this obligation as herein stated.  In the event suit is brought upon 
this bond by Agency and judgment is recovered, Surety shall pay all costs incurred by Agency in 
said suit, including a reasonable attorney's fee to be fixed by the court. 
 
The Surety, for the value received, hereby stipulates and agrees that the obligations of said Surety 
and its bond shall in no way be impaired or affected by an extension of the time within which the 
Agency may accept such a proposal; and said Surety does hereby waive notice of any such 
extension. 
 



BID BOND (Page Two) 

C:\Program Files\Neevia.Com\Document Converter\temp\34157.doc P-9 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the above-bounded parties have executed this instrument under their 
several seals this _______ day of ____________________, 2007, the name and corporate seal of 
each corporate party being hereto affixed and these presents duly signed by its undersigned 
representative, pursuant to authority of its governing body. 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 (Principal/Bidder)    
 
 (Address)    
 
     
 
 (By)    
 
 (Title)    
 
NOTE:  SIGNATURE OF CORPORATE OFFICIALS MUST BE NOTARIZED 
 
 
ATTEST:  
 
 (Surety)    
 
 (Address)      
 
      
 
 (By)    
 
 (Title)    
 
NOTE:  SIGNATURE OF SURETY OFFICIALS MUST BE NOTARIZED 
 
 
 
BOND APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
 
       
William P. Curley III, City Attorney 
City of Mission Viejo 
 



 

C:\Program Files\Neevia.Com\Document Converter\temp\34157.doc P-10 

CITY OF MISSION VIEJO 
PROPOSAL BID SHEET 

 
FELIPE ROAD 

PAVEMENT RESURFACING 
 
 
The following estimate of quantities of work to be done and materials to be furnished are 
approximate only.  It is given as a basis for comparison of bids and the City does not expressly 
or by implication agree that the actual amount of work will correspond therewith. 
 
BID SCHEDULE  
 
Item 
No. 

Item Description Unit Quantity Unit Price 
Total 

Amount  

1 
Mobilization (incl. Public Notification 
Signs) 

LS 1 $ $ 

2* 
Remove and Replace PCC Curb & 
Gutter (incl. 12” AC Slot Patch) 

LF 500 $ $ 

3 Remove & Replace 4” PCC Sidewalk SF 500 $ $ 

4 Root Barrier LF 50 $ $ 

5 Remove & Replace PCC Access Ramp SF 5,300 $ $ 

6 
Remove & Replace PCC Driveway 
Apron 

SF 350 $ $ 

7 Cold-Plane and Repave AC (2” depth) SF 20,000 $ $ 

8 Cold-Plane and Repave AC (4” depth) SF 4,500 $ $ 

9 Crack Sealing LS 1 $ $ 

10 
Remove Existing Striping & Pavement 
Markings 

LS 1 $ $ 

11 Type II REAS Slurry Seal 
Gallons 
RPME 

36,000 $ $ 

12 
Adjust Manhole Frame and Cover to 
Grade 

EA 2 $ $ 

13 
Adjust Water Valve Frame and Cover 
to Grade 

EA 2 $ $ 

14 Striping & Pavement Markings LS 1 $ $ 

Total Bid Amount $ 

 
*  This bid item includes the curb and gutter replacement associated with the access ramp 

improvements.  
 
As part of bid item 1 above, the Contractor shall provide and install four “Public Notification 
Signs”.  The signs shall be placed in the public right-of-way prior to the start of the project at 
each end of the project and at Oso Parkway.  The City’s inspector will specify the exact 
locations.  The signs shall be removed at the completion of the project, or earlier if requested by 



 

C:\Program Files\Neevia.Com\Document Converter\temp\34157.doc P-11 

the City.  The signs shall be professionally fabricated 4’ x 8’ aluminum with black letters (3” to 4” 
high) on white background, mounted on two 4” x 4” wooden posts with a 7’ clearance to the 
bottom of sign.  The bases of the posts may require “A” frame stands for surface mounting 
(weighted down with sandbags) if there are no practical post burial locations.  The City will 
specify the exact wording, but all four signs will be the same, and will include the project title, 
completion date (month and year), ‘Measure M’ funding logo, City logo, and the five City Council 
members’ names.  The logos are on file with “A Good Sign” in Mission Viejo (949-458-6661).  
 
NOTE: The City places special emphasis on the presence of the Contractor's representative at 
all times while work is being performed.  A representative from the prime Contractor shall be 
present at all times.  The Contractor must include this cost in its bid. Failure to have the prime 
Contractor's representative present in accordance with Section 7-6 of the Standard 
Specifications shall result in the deduction of $1,000 per day from progress payments to the 
Contractor.  The unit quantities listed in the Proposal Bid Sheet(s) are approximate only.  Upon 
completion of construction, if the actual quantities show either an increase or decrease from the 
quantities given in the Proposal Bid Sheet(s), the Contract Unit Prices will prevail subject to the 
provisions of Subsection 3-2.2.1 (unless otherwise specified).  Payment will not be made for 
materials wasted or disposed of in a manner not called for under the Contract; this includes 
rejected material not unloaded from vehicles, material rejected after is has been placed and 
material placed outside of the Plan lines.  No compensation will be allowed for disposing of 
rejected or excess material. 
 
In case of a variation between the unit price and the totals shown by Bidder, the unit price will 
be considered to be the bid. 
 
The unit price or lump sum prices to be paid for the items listed in the Proposal Bid Sheet shall 
include full compensation for furnishing all labor, materials, tools, and equipment, and doing all 
work involved in furnishing and installing the materials complete and in place, in accordance 
with the details as shown on the plans and as specified herein.  Any work shown on the plans, 
for which there is no specific bid item, shall be considered as appurtenant.  All costs shall be 
included within the appropriate item of the Contractor's bid. 
 
Proposals must be accompanied by a proposal guarantee consisting of a certified check or bid 
bond payable to the AGENCY in the amount of ten percent (10%) of the total amount bid. 
 
Bidder's Name         
 
Telephone No.         



C:\Program Files\Neevia.Com\Document Converter\temp\34159.doc CA-1 

CITY OF MISSION VIEJO 
CONTRACT AGREEMENT 

 
FELIPE ROAD 

PAVEMENT RESURFACING 

 
 
THIS CONTRACT AGREEMENT is made and entered into for the above stated project this 
______ day of ______________, 2007, BY AND BETWEEN THE CITY OF MISSION VIEJO, 
as AGENCY, and         , as CONTRACTOR. 
 
WITNESSETH that AGENCY and CONTRACTOR have mutually agreed as follows: 
 

ARTICLE I 
 
The contract documents for the aforesaid project shall consist of the Notice Inviting Sealed 
Bids, Instructions to Bidders, Proposal, General Specifications, Standard Specifications, Special 
Provisions, Plans, and all referenced specifications, details, standard drawings, and 
appendices; together with this Contract Agreement and all required bonds, insurance 
certificates, permits, notices, and affidavits; and also including any and all addenda or 
supplemental agreements clarifying, amending, or extending the work contemplated as may be 
required to insure its completion in an acceptable manner.  All of the provisions of said contract 
documents are made a part hereof as though fully set forth herein. 
 

ARTICLE II 
 
For and in consideration of the payments based on the Contract award amount of 
____________ [in words] ($__________) and agreements to be made and performed by 
AGENCY, CONTRACTOR agrees to furnish all materials and perform all work required for the 
above stated project, and to fulfill all other obligations as set forth in the aforesaid contract 
documents. 
 

ARTICLE III 
 
CONTRACTOR agrees to receive and accept the prices set forth in the Proposal as full 
compensation for furnishing all materials, performing all work, and fulfilling all obligations 
hereunder.  Said compensation shall cover all expenses, losses, damages, and consequences 
arising out of the nature of work during its progress or prior to its acceptance including those for 
well and faithfully completing the work and the whole thereof in the manner and time specified 
in the aforesaid contract documents; and also including those arising from actions of the 
elements, unforeseen difficulties or obstructions encountered in the prosecution of the work, 
suspension or discontinuance of the work, and all other unknowns or risks of any description 
connected with the work. 
 

ARTICLE IV 
 
AGENCY hereby promises and agrees to employ, and does hereby employ, CONTRACTOR to 
provide the materials, do the work, and fulfill the obligations according to the terms and 
conditions herein contained and referred to, for the prices aforesaid, and hereby contracts to 
pay the same at the time, in the manner, and upon the conditions set forth in the contract 
documents. 
 



C:\Program Files\Neevia.Com\Document Converter\temp\34159.doc CA-2 

ARTICLE V 
 
CONTRACTOR acknowledges the provisions of the State Labor Code requiring every employer 
to be insured against liability for worker's compensation, or to undertake self-insurance in 
accordance with the provisions of that code, and certifies compliance with such provisions. 
 

ARTICLE VI 
 
CONTRACTOR agrees to indemnify and hold harmless AGENCY and all of its officers and 
agents from any claims, demands, or causes of action, including related expenses, attorney's 
fees, and costs, based on, arising out of, or in any way related to the work undertaken by 
CONTRACTOR hereunder. 
 

ARTICLE VII 
 
CONTRACTOR affirms that the signatures, titles, and seals set forth hereinafter in execution of 
this Contract Agreement represent all individuals, firm members, partners, joint ventures, and/or 
corporate officers having a principal interest herein. 
 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF the parties hereto have caused this Agreement to be executed the 
day and year first written. 
 
CITY OF MISSION VIEJO    CONTRACTOR:  
 
 
 
              
Dennis R. Wilberg     Name: 
City Manager      Title: 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
              
Karen Hamman     Name: 
City Clerk      Title: 
 
NOTE: SIGNATURES OF CORPORATE OFFICIALS MUST BE NOTARIZED. 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
_________________________________________ 
William P. Curley III 
City Attorney 



C:\Program Files\Neevia.Com\Document Converter\temp\34159.doc CA-3 

Premium $  BOND NO.   
Premium will be based on final contract amount. 

 
CITY OF MISSION VIEJO 

FAITHFUL PERFORMANCE BOND 
 

FELIPE ROAD 

PAVEMENT RESURFACING 
 
 

THAT, WHEREAS, the City of Mission Viejo, State of California, entered into a contract 
dated     , 2007, hereinafter called "Contract," with:     
           (Name and Address 
of Contractor) hereinafter called "Principal," for the work described as follows: 
 

Demolition and removals, PCC curb, gutter, sidewalk, driveway aprons, and 
access ramps, cold-planing, asphalt paving, crack sealing, utility cover 
adjustments, traffic paint removal, Type II REAS slurry seal, striping and 
pavement markings, traffic control, and all appurtenant work. 

 
WHEREAS, the said Principal is required under the terms of said Contract to furnish a 

bond for the faithful performance of said Contract. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, WE, the Principal, and       

    duly authorized to transact business under the laws of the State of 
California, as Surety, hereinafter called "Surety," are held and firmly bound unto the City of 
Mission Viejo in the penal sum of           
Dollars ($                 ), lawful money of the United States, said sum being not less than one-
hundred percent (100%) of the estimated amount payable by the said City of Mission Viejo 
under the terms of the Contract for the payment of which we bind ourselves, our heirs, 
executors, administrators, successors, and assigns, jointly and severally, firmly by these 
presents. 
 

THE CONDITION OF THIS OBLIGATION is such that, if the Principal, his or its heirs, 
executors, administrators, successors or assigns, shall in all things stand to, abide by, and well 
and truly keep and perform the covenants, conditions, and agreements in the said Contract, 
and in any alteration thereof made as therein provided, on his or its part to be kept and 
performed, at the time and in the intent and meaning, and shall indemnify and save harmless 
the City of Mission Viejo, its officers and agents, as therein stipulated, then this obligation shall 
be come null and void; otherwise it shall be and remain in full force and virtue. 
 

As part of the obligation secured hereby and in addition to the face amount specified, 
costs and reasonable expenses and fees shall be included, including reasonable attorney's fees 
incurred by the City of Mission Viejo in successfully enforcing the obligation, all to be taxed as 
costs and included in any judgment rendered. 

 
The Surety, hereby stipulates and agrees that no change, extension of time, alternation, 

or addition to the terms of the Contract, or to the work to be performed thereunder, or to the 
specifications accompanying the same, shall in anyway affect its obligations on this bond, and it 
does hereby waive notice of any such change, extension of time, alteration, or addition to the 
terms of the Contract, or to the work, or to the specifications. 



C:\Program Files\Neevia.Com\Document Converter\temp\34159.doc CA-4 

FAITHFUL PERFORMANCE BOND (Page 2) 
 
 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, this instrument has been duly executed by the Principal and 
Surety above names, on     , 2007. 
 
 
(Seal)       (Seal) 
 
 
 
 
SURETY      PRINCIPAL 
 
 
By:       By:       
 
Name:       Name:       
 
Title:       Title:       
 
 
 
By:       By:       
 
Name:       Name:       
 
Title:       Title:       
 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
 
       
William P. Curley III 
City Attorney 
 
 



C:\Program Files\Neevia.Com\Document Converter\temp\34159.doc CA-5 

Premium $  BOND NO.   
Premium will be based on final contract amount. 

 
CITY OF MISSION VIEJO 

LABOR AND MATERIAL PAYMENT BOND 
 

FELIPE ROAD 
PAVEMENT RESURFACING 

 
 

KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS: 
 

THAT, WHEREAS, the City of Mission Viejo has awarded to     
         (Contractors Name and Address) 
hereinafter called "Contractor," a contract for the work described as follows: 
 

Demolition and removals, PCC curb, gutter, sidewalk, driveway aprons, and 
access ramps, cold-planing, asphalt paving, crack sealing, utility cover 
adjustments, traffic paint removal, Type II REAS slurry seal, striping and 
pavement markings, traffic control, and all appurtenant work. 

 
WHEREAS, said Contractor is required by the provisions of Sections 3247-3252 of the 

Civil Code to furnish a bond in connection with said Contract, as hereinafter set forth. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, WE, the undersigned Contractor as Principal, and    
        duly authorized to transact business under 
the laws of the State of California, as Surety, hereinafter called "Surety" are held and firmly 
bound unto the City of Mission Viejo, California, and all contractors, subcontractors, laborers, 
material men, and other persons employed in the performance of the aforesaid Contract and 
referred to in Title 15 of the Civil Code, in the penal sum of      
        Dollars ($              ), lawful money of the 
United States, said sum being not less than one-hundred percent (100%) of the estimated 
amount payable by the said City of Mission Viejo under the terms of the Contract, for the 
payment of which, we bind ourselves, our heirs, executors, administrators, successors, and 
assigns, jointly and severally, firmly by these presents. 
 

THE CONDITION OF THIS OBLIGATION is such that, if said Contractor, his or its heirs, 
executors, administrators, successors, and assigns, or subcontractors, shall fail to pay for any 
materials, provisions, provender or other supplies, or teams, implements or machinery, used in, 
upon, for or about the performance of the work under the Contract to be done, or for any work 
or labor thereon of any kind or for amounts due under the Unemployment Insurance Code with 
respect to such work or labor, as required by the provisions of Chapter 7 of Title 5 of part 4 of 
Division 3 of the Civil Code, and provided that the claimant shall have complied with the 
provisions of said Civil Code, the Surety shall pay for the same in an amount not exceeding the 
sum specified in this bond, otherwise the above obligation shall be void.   
 
As part of the obligation secured hereby and in addition to the face amount specified, costs and 
reasonable expenses and fees shall be included, including reasonable attorney's fees incurred 
by the City of Mission Viejo in successfully enforcing the obligation, all to be taxed as costs and 
included in any judgment rendered. 



C:\Program Files\Neevia.Com\Document Converter\temp\34159.doc CA-6 

LABOR AND MATERIAL PAYMENT BOND (Page 2) 
 

This bond shall inure to the benefit of any and all persons, companies, and corporations 
entitled to file claims under Section 3181 of the Civil Code, so as to give a right of action to 
them or their assigns in any suit brought upon this bond, and shall also cover payment for any 
amounts required to be deducted, withheld, and paid over to the Employment Development 
Department from the wages of employees of the Contractor or his or its subcontractors 
pursuant to Section 13020 of the Unemployment Insurance Code. 
 

The Surety hereby stipulates and agrees that no change, extension of time, alteration, 
or addition to the terms of the Contract, or to the work to be performed thereunder, or to the 
specifications accompanying the same, shall in anyway affect its obligations on this bond.  The 
Surety hereby waives notice of any such change, extension of time, alternation or addition to 
the terms of the Contract, or to the work to be performed thereunder, or to the specifications 
accompanying the same. 
 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, this instrument has been duly executed by the Principal and 
Surety above named, on     , 2007. 
 
 
(Seal)       (Seal) 
 
 
 
 
SURETY      PRINCIPAL 
 
 
By:       By:       
 
Name:       Name:       
 
Title:       Title:       
 
 
 
By:       By:       
 
Name:       Name:       
 
Title:       Title:       
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
 
       
William P. Curley III 
City Attorney 



C:\Program Files\Neevia.Com\Document Converter\temp\34159.doc CA-7 

COMPENSATION INSURANCE CERTIFICATE 
 
 
Pursuant to Section 1861 of the State Labor Code, each contractor to whom a public works 
contract has been awarded shall sign the following certificate and shall submit same to the City 
prior to performing any work on the contract: 
 
I am aware of the provisions of Section 3700 of the Labor Code, which requires every employer 
to be insured against liability for Worker's Compensation or to undertake self-insurance in 
accordance with the provisions of that Code, and I will comply with such provisions before 
commencing the performance of work of this contract.  
 
 

       
Contractor  

 
By        
 (Print) 
 

       
(Signature) 
 
       
Title  
 
       
Date  

 
Section 3700 of the State Labor Code reads as follows: 
 

"Every employer except the State shall secure the payment of compensation in one or more 
of the following ways: 

 
(a)  By being insured against liability to pay compensation in one or more insurers duly 

authorized to write compensation insurance in this state. 
 
(b)  By securing from the Director of Industrial Relations a certificate of consent to self-

insure, which may be given upon furnishing proof satisfactory to the Director of Industrial 
Relations of ability to self-insure and to pay any compensation that may become due to 
his employee." 

 
 

(Amended by Stats. 1978, C. 1379, P. 4571) 
 

COMPENSATION INSURANCE CERTIFICATE 
 

TO BE SUBMITTED WITH CONTRACT AGREEMENT 
 



C:\Program Files\Neevia.Com\Document Converter\temp\34161.doc GS-1 

CITY OF MISSION VIEJO 
GENERAL SPECIFICATIONS 

 
FELIPE ROAD 

PAVEMENT RESURFACING 
 
 
SCOPE OF WORK 
 
The work to be done consists of furnishing all materials, equipment, tools, labor, and incidentals 
as required by the Plans, Specifications, and Contract Documents for the above-stated project. 
 
LOCATION OF WORK 
 
The general location of the work is Felipe Road from Marguerite Parkway to La Paz Road.   
 
TIME OF COMPLETION 
 
The Contractor shall complete all work in every detail within fifty (50) working days after the date 
of the Notice to Proceed.  The City intends to award the construction contract on March 19, 
2007, such that the Contractor can commence work in April.  The first coat of striping and 
pavement markings shall be in place within five days of completion of the slurry seal. 
 
TRAFFIC REQUIREMENTS 
 
The Contractor shall provide delineation in accordance with the WATCH Manual or as directed 
by the Engineer.  The Contractor shall be permitted to close only one through lane in each 
direction at a time, providing a minimum of one through lane and one left-turn lane.  See 
Section 6-7.2 of the Special Provisions for limitations on lane closure hours. 
 
UTILITY REQUIREMENTS 
 
The Contractor is advised of the existence of the utility notification service provided by 
UNDERGROUND SERVICE ALERT (USA).  USA member utilities will provide the Contractor 
with the precise locations of their substructures in the construction area when the Contractor 
gives at least 48 hours notice to Underground Service Alert by calling 1 (800) 422-4133.  
Contractor shall provide the Agency with proof of contact with USA upon request. 
 
The Contractor shall notify the following agencies at least 48 hours in advance of excavating 
around any of their structures.  The utility companies listed below can be contacted as indicated. 
 
 
Southern California Gas Company 
1919 South State College 
Anaheim, California 92803 
Steve Alcala (714) 634-3185 
 

Cox Communications 
29947 Avenida de las Banderas 
Rancho Santa Margarita, California 92688 
Cooper Charlton (949) 546-2812 

Pacific Bell 
1452 Edinger Avenue, Room 1331 
Tustin, California 92680 
Chris Rutherford (714) 666-5748 
 

City of Mission Viejo 
Public Services Department 
27204 East La Paz Road 
Mission Viejo, California 92692 
(949) 470-3064 



C:\Program Files\Neevia.Com\Document Converter\temp\34161.doc GS-2 

San Diego Gas and Electric 
661 Camino De Los Mares 
San Clemente, California 92673 
Patti Good 
(949) 361-8047 
 

Santa Margarita Water District 
Rancho Santa Margarita, California 92688 
Bart Lantz  
(949) 459-6505 
 

 
The California Public Utilities Commission mandates that, in the interest of public safety, main 
line gas valves be maintained in a manner to be readily accessible and in good operating 
condition.  The Contractor shall notify the Southern California Gas Company's Headquarters 
Planning Office at (714) 369-0680 at least two (2) working days prior to the start of construction. 
 
The Contractor shall exercise extreme care to protect all existing utilities in place whether 
shown on the plans or not, and shall assume full responsibility for all damage resulting from his 
operations.  The Contractor shall coordinate with each utility company as to the requirements 
and methods for protection of their facilities during the construction period and shall be 
responsible for preparation and processing of any required plans or permits.  The Contractor 
shall assume full responsibility to maintain uninterrupted service for all utilities. 
 
By submitting a bid, the Contractor acknowledges the above-referenced utility work to be done 
in conjunction with this project.  The Contractor shall schedule his work and conduct his 
operations so as to permit access and time for the required utility work to be accomplished 
during the progress of the work.  
 
The Contractor shall coordinate with each utility company as to the extent of required work and 
the time required to do so.  The Contractor shall include this time in his schedule.  Payment for 
the above, if any, shall be deemed as included in the items of work as shown on the proposal 
bid sheet and no additional compensation will be allowed. 
 
FLOW AND ACCEPTANCE OF WATER 
 
It is anticipated that storm, surface, or other waters will be encountered at various times and 
locations during the work herein contemplated.  The Contractor, by submitting a bid, 
acknowledges that he has investigated the risk arising from such waters and has prepared his 
bid accordingly, and Contractor, by submitting a bid, assumes all of said risk. 
 
REMOVAL OF WATER 
 
The Contractor shall provide and maintain at all times during construction ample means and 
devices to promptly remove and properly dispose of all water entering the excavations or other 
parts of the work.  No concrete footing or floor shall be laid in water nor shall water be allowed 
to rise over them until the concrete or mortar has set at least two (2) hours.  Water shall not be 
allowed to rise unequally against any walls for a period of twenty-eight (28) days.  Dewatering 
for the structures and pipelines shall commence when ground water is first encountered, and 
shall be continuous until such time as water can be allowed to rise in accordance with the above 
statement.  Dewatering shall be accomplished by well points or some other method which will 
insure a dry hold and preservation of final lines and grade of the bottoms of excavation, all 
subject to the approval of the Engineer. 
 
Dewatering methods and disposal of water from dewatering operations shall be the sole 
responsibility of the Contractor and shall conform to the requirements of the State Regional 
Water Quality Control Board, the requirements of the National Pollution Discharge Elimination 
System (NPDES), and the Federal Clean Water Act.  Full compensation for dewatering shall be 



C:\Program Files\Neevia.Com\Document Converter\temp\34161.doc GS-3 

considered as included in the contract prices paid for the related items of work, and no 
additional compensation will be allowed therefor. 
 
STANDARD SPECIFICATIONS 
 
The Standard Specifications of the Agency are contained in the most recent edition of the 
Standard Specifications for Public Works Construction, including all supplements, as written and 
promulgated by the Joint Cooperative Committee of the Southern California Chapter of the 
American Public Works Association and the Southern California District of the Associated 
General Contractors of California.  Copies of these Standard Specifications are available from 
the publisher:  
 

Building News, Incorporated 
P. O. Box 3031 Terminal Annex  
Los Angeles, California 90051 
(213) 202-7775 

 
The Standard Specifications set forth above will control the provisions for this contract except as 
amended by the Plans, General Specifications, Special Provisions, or other contract documents. 
 
The section numbers of the following Special Provisions coincide with those of the said 
Standard Specifications.  Only those sections requiring amendment or elaboration, or specifying 
options, are called out. 
 
In case of conflict between the Standard Specifications and the General Specifications or 
Special Provisions, the General Specifications and Special Provisions shall take precedence 
over and be used in lieu of such conflicting portions of the Standard Specifications. 
 
References in the Special Provisions to "Caltrans Standard Specifications" shall mean the 
Standard Specifications (July 2004) of the State of California, Department of Transportation.  
Copies of these specifications and standard drawings may be obtained from: 
 

State of California - Department of Transportation 
Central Publication Distribution Unit 
6002 Folsom Boulevard 
Sacramento, California 95819 
 

References in the Special Provisions to Standard Plans shall mean the Standard Plans of the 
City of Mission Viejo and, where applicable, the Standard Plans of the County of Orange 
RDMD and State Department of Transportation, 2004 edition.  Applicable Standard Plans for 
this project are contained in the Appendix of these Specifications. 
 
Where the Plans or Specifications describe portions of the work in general terms but not in 
complete detail, it is understood that the item is to be furnished and installed complete and in 
place and that only the best general practice is to prevail and that only materials and 
workmanship of the first quality are to be used.  Unless otherwise specified, the Contractor shall 
furnish all labor, materials, tools, equipment, and incidentals, and do all the work involved in 
executing the contract.  
 



C:\Program Files\Neevia.Com\Document Converter\temp\34161.doc GS-4 

WAGE RATES AND LABOR CODE REQUIREMENTS 
 
Wage Rates 
 
Minimum wage rates for this project have been predetermined by the Secretary of Labor.  If 
there is a difference between the minimum wage rates predetermined by the Secretary of Labor 
and the prevailing wage rates as determined by the State for similar classifications of labor, the 
Contractor and his subcontractors shall pay not less than the higher wage rate.  Copies of the 
State prevailing wage rates and the latest revisions thereto are on file in the office of the City 
Clerk and are available for review upon request. 
 
Attention is directed to the provisions of Sections 1776, 1777.5, and 1777.6 of the State Labor 
Code.  Section 1776 requires the Contractor and all Subcontractors to keep accurate payroll 
records, specifies the contents thereof, their inspection and duplication procedures, and certain 
notices required of the Contractor pertaining to their location.  
 
Apprentices 
 
Section 1777.5 requires the Contractor or Subcontractor employing tradesmen in any 
apprenticeable occupation to apply to the Joint Apprenticeship Committee nearest the site of the 
public works project and which administers the apprenticeship program in that trade for a 
certificate of approval.  The certificate will also fix the ratio of apprentices to journeymen to be 
used in the performance of the contract. 
 
The Contractor is required to make contributions to funds established for the administration of 
apprenticeship programs if he employs registered apprentices or journeymen in any 
apprenticeable trade and if other contractors on the public works site are making such 
contributions. 
 
Information relative to apprenticeship standards, contributions, wage schedules, and other 
requirements may be obtained from the State Director of Industrial Relations or from the 
Division of Apprenticeship Standards. 
 
CLAYTON ACT AND CARTWRIGHT ACT 
 
Section 4551 of the State Government Code specifies that in executing a public works contract 
with the City to supply goods, services, or materials the Contractor or subcontractors offer and 
agree to assign to the City all rights, title, and interest in and to all causes of action it may have 
under Section 4 of the Clayton Act (15 USC Section 15) or under the Cartwright Act (Chapter 2 
commencing with Sec. 16700) of Part 2 of Division 7 of the Business and Professional Code 
arising from purchase of goods, services, or materials pursuant to the contract or subcontract.  
This assignment shall become affective when the City tenders final payment to the Contract 
without further acknowledgement by the parties. 
 
SUBSTITUTION OF SECURITIES 
 
In conformance with the State of California Government Code Chapter 13, Section 4590, the 
Contractor may substitute securities for any monies withheld by the City to ensure performance 
under the contract. 
 
At the request and expense of the Contractor, securities equivalent to the amount withheld shall 
be deposited with the City or with a State- or Federally-chartered bank as the escrow agent who 
shall pay such monies to the Contractor upon notification by City of Contractor's satisfactory 
completion of the contract. 



C:\Program Files\Neevia.Com\Document Converter\temp\34161.doc GS-5 

The type of securities deposited and the method of release shall be approved by the City 
Attorney's office. 
 
WATER POLLUTION CONTROL (NPDES COMPLIANCE) 
 
The City of Mission Viejo, in conformance with the City’s National Pollutant Discharge 
Elimination System (NPDES) Permit issued by the San Diego Regional Water Quality Control 
Board (SDRWQCB) (Permit No. R9-2002-0001) is dedicated to the elimination of water pollution 
as a result of construction projects.  In order to comply with the NPDES Permit requirements, 
the City of Mission Viejo in conjunction with the County of Orange has developed a 
“Construction Runoff Guidance Manual.” This document is available for download on the City 
Website at www.cityofmissionviejo.org.  The Contractor shall comply with all requirements of the 
“Construction Runoff Guidance Manual” during the construction of the project.  In addition, the 
City has developed a Water Quality Local Implementation Plan (LIP), which contains 
Construction Best Management Practices (BMPs).  Copies of these BMPs can be downloaded 
from the California Stormwater Best Management Practice Construction (BMP) Handbook 
available for free at http://www.cabmphandbooks.com.  The Contractor shall implement and 
maintain all appropriate BMPs necessary or as required by the Engineer to eliminate illicit 
discharges, prevent potential illicit discharges, and prevent debris/dirt/trash, etc. from entering 
drainage systems.  Drainage inlets and/or catch basins within the construction work area and 
immediately adjacent to the work area shall be protected at all times with appropriate BMPs to 
prevent debris/dirt/trash, etc from entering said devices.  In addition, the Contractor shall comply 
with the City of Mission Viejo’s Water Quality and Grading Ordinances, and construct those 
facilities as specified by these documents, as required by law, or as directed by the Engineer, as 
necessary to eliminate water pollution.  Said items are intended to provide prevention, control, 
and abatement of water pollution into storm drain systems, streams, oceans, and other bodies 
of water as a result of the Contractor’s operations.  The Contractor is advised that under no 
circumstances (except for the exemptions listed in Permit No. R9-2002-0001) is the 
Contractor permitted to discharge any water into the storm drain system, gutter, street, 
or to any other area which ultimately may allow the water to migrate to the storm drain 
system.  These requirements are supplemental to those required of the Contractor in Section 7-
8 “Project Site Maintenance” of the Standard Specifications for Public Works Construction. 
 
In addition, listed below are BMPs related to common construction activities that shall be 
utilized: 
 
1. Concrete and Mortar Products  
 
 The Contractor shall prevent the discharge of pollutants into storm water or storm water 

systems from concrete waste by conducting washouts at appropriate off-site locations, 
performing on-site washouts in a designated area, and providing appropriate training for 
employees and subcontractors. 

 
 The Contractor shall store and mix dry and wet materials either off-site or under cover, 

away from drainage areas. 
 
 For washout of concrete trucks, the Contractor shall provide appropriate off-site 

locations or designated contained areas at least 50 feet away from storm drains, open 
ditches, streets, or streams. 

 



C:\Program Files\Neevia.Com\Document Converter\temp\34161.doc GS-6 

 The Contractor shall prevent run-off from designated washout areas by constructing a 
temporary pit or bermed area large enough to handle all produced liquid and solid waste. 
When concrete sets, break up and dispose of concrete in construction fills per direction 
of the soils engineer or dispose of it as solid waste and/or recycle. 

 
 The Contractor shall inform concrete suppliers and subcontractors of the designated 

washout locations and disposal sites for concrete and mortar products and shall be 
responsible for ensuring that all workers use it appropriately. 

 
2. Asphalt and Bituminous Products  
 
 The Contractor shall prevent the discharge of pollutants from asphalt and bituminous 

operations by preventing run-on and run-off of water during paving operations and 
providing appropriate training for employees and subcontractors.  In addition, the 
Contractor shall: 

 
a. Avoid prime or tack coating during wet weather. 
b. Store materials away from drainage courses. 
c. Cover catch basins and manholes when applying seal coat, tack coat, slurry seal, 

fog seal, etc. 
d. Make sure sand or gravel placed over new asphalt does not wash into storm 

drains, streets, or creeks. 
e. Dispose of old asphalt properly and collect and remove all broken asphalt from 

the site and recycle whenever possible.  
f. Not dispose of asphalt products into waterways.  
g. Follow the storm water permitting requirements for industrial activities if paving 

involves an on-site mixing plant. 
 
3. Construction Water   
 
 The Contractor shall eliminate excessive construction water that may cause erosion and 

carry pollutants from the site.  In addition, the Contractor shall: 
 

a. Store construction water in leak-proof tanks located away from drainage 
systems.  

b. Use construction water conservatively. 
c. Whenever possible, dispose of excess water on-site by allowing it to soak into 

the ground. 
 
4. Sawcutting Water Runoff 
 
 Sawcutting water runoff contains pollutants that must be contained and disposed of 

properly. The Contractor shall:  
 

a. Prevent sawcut water runoff from entering catch basins, manholes, and storm 
drains.  

b. Direct water into a temporary pit and dispose of the water by vacuuming the 
water into a truck and removing the water from the site.   

c. Place drip pans or absorbent materials under sawcutting equipment when not in 
use.  



C:\Program Files\Neevia.Com\Document Converter\temp\34161.doc GS-7 

d. Clean up spills with absorbent materials rather than burying.  Dispose of 
absorbent material properly. 

 
5. Housekeeping/Cleanup  
 
 The Contractor shall prevent pollution of storm water from clean-up and disposal 

operations by using good housekeeping methods.  When fluids or dry materials spill, 
clean-up should be immediate, thorough, and routine. The Contractor shall never 
attempt to “wash them away” with water or bury them.  The Contractor shall report 
significant spills to the appropriate spill response agencies immediately.  The Contractor 
shall recognize that different types of materials have different disposal requirements and 
follow appropriate practices.  The Contractor shall confine non-hazardous debris to 
dumpsters, covered at night or during wet weather, and take the debris to a landfill for 
recycling or disposal.  The Contractor shall handle hazardous debris in accordance with 
specific laws and regulations and dispose of them properly.  A separate permit may be 
required.  Common hazardous debris found on construction sites are:  Liquid residues 
from paints, thinners, solvents, glues, and cleaning fluids; leaching agents from lumber 
such as formaldehyde, arsenic, copper, creosote, and chromium; motor oil; gear oil; 
antifreeze fluids; brake fluids; etc.; and unused pesticides. 

 
6. Sanitary Waste Management  
 
 The Contractor shall prevent the discharge of sanitary waste into storm water systems 

by providing convenient, properly located, well-maintained facilities.  The Contractor 
shall hire a licensed portable sanitary facility leasing company, which will clean the 
facilities regularly and keep them in good working order.  The Contractor shall make sure 
that portable sanitary facilities are located on relatively level ground away from traffic 
areas, drainage courses, storm drain courses, and storm drain inlets and install 
protective BMPs where appropriate.  The Contractor shall regularly inspect the facilities 
for any leaks, and have defective units replaced. 

 
7. Vehicle and Equipment Management  
 
 The Contractor shall use and maintain construction vehicles and equipment in a manner 

that prevents leaks and spills of fluids, contains wash waters, and controls off-site 
tracking.  The Contractor shall not allow leaking vehicles and equipment on-site and 
shall inspect equipment and vehicles frequently for leaks and repair them immediately.  
The Contractor shall clean up spills and leaks promptly with absorbent materials, and 
shall not flush said spills with water. 

 
 The Contractor shall fuel, maintain, and repair vehicles and equipment off-site whenever 

possible, and on-site only in designated areas.  The Contractor shall prevent run-on and 
run-off from designated areas and provide cover as well as containment devices as 
necessary. 

 
 The Contractor shall wash vehicles and equipment on-site in designated, contained 

areas, allowing wash waters to infiltrate into the ground.  The Contractor shall use 
phosphate-free, biodegradable soaps, and limit steam cleaning to confined areas only. 

 



C:\Program Files\Neevia.Com\Document Converter\temp\34161.doc GS-8 

 When not in use, the Contractor shall store equipment and vehicles in designated, 
contained areas and place drip pans and absorbent material under stored equipment 
that is prone to leaking and dripping (e.g., paving equipment). 

 
 If the Contractor must drain and replace motor oil, radiator coolant, or other fluids on-

site, use drip pans or drop cloths to catch drips and spills and have appropriate spill 
containment devices in place.  The Contractor shall collect all spent fluids, store in 
separate containers, and recycle whenever possible.  Note:  For recycling purposes, 
such liquids must not be mixed with other fluids.  Non-recycled fluids generally must be 
disposed of as hazardous waste. 

 
8. Surface and Subsurface Water Control  
 
 The Contractor shall prevent the discharge of pollutants into storm water or storm water 

systems as a result of surface and subsurface water control operations by using the 
following methods: 

 
 For surface water control operations where the flow is routed to bypass the construction 

area, establish stable (erosion resistant) conveyance routes for the diverted flow.  Trap 
any significant sediment (e.g., mud) generated by the rerouted flow in a sediment trap, 
filtering berm, or basin or other approved BMP. 

 
 In subsurface pumping or other subsurface water control operations where significant 

amounts of sediment (e.g., mud) are present in the removed water, capture the sediment 
in a sediment trap, filtering berm, or basin or other approved BMP. 

 
 If a sediment trap or basin is required for the surface or subsurface water control 

operations, the facility should be designed such that the sediment is settled or trapped in 
the facility prior to discharging of the water. 

 
 In areas suspected of groundwater pollution, sample the groundwater near the 

excavation/pumping site and have the water tested for known or suspected pollutants at 
a certified laboratory. 

 
 Any proposed discharge of groundwater may be subject to requirements of the Regional 

Water Quality Control Board. 
 
Except as otherwise provided for in the Standard Specifications or elsewhere in these Special 
Provisions, full compensation for conforming to the requirements of this section including 
furnishing all labor, tools, equipment, and materials necessary for doing the work, shall be 
considered as included in the prices paid for the various contract items of work and no 
additional compensation will be allowed therefor. 
 



C:\Program Files\Neevia.Com\Document Converter\temp\34163.doc SP-1 

CITY OF MISSION VIEJO 
SPECIAL PROVISIONS 

 
FELIPE ROAD 

PAVEMENT RESURFACING 
 
 
PART I—GENERAL PROVISIONS 
 
SECTION 1—TERMS, DEFINITIONS, ABBREVIATIONS AND SYMBOLS 
 
1-2 DEFINITIONS  [Add the following:] 
 
Agency/City - City of Mission Viejo 
Board - City Council 
Caltrans - California Department of Transportation 
County - County of Orange 
Engineer - City Engineer 
Federal  - United States of America 
State - State of California 
 
SECTION 2—SCOPE AND CONTROL OF THE WORK 
 
2-1 AWARD AND EXECUTION OF CONTRACT  [Replace with the following:] 
 
Within ten (10) working days after the date of the Notice of Award, the Contractor shall execute 
and return the following contract documents to the Agency: 
 

Contract Document 
Faithful Performance Bond 
Payment Bond 
Public Liability and Property Damage Insurance Certificate 
Workmen's Compensation Insurance Certificate 

 
Failure to comply with the above will result in annulment of the award and forfeiture of the 
Proposal Guarantee at the sole discretion of Agency. 
 
The Contract Agreement shall not be considered binding upon the Agency until executed by the 
authorized Agency officials.  A corporation to which an award is made may be required, before 
the Contract Agreement is executed by the Agency, to furnish evidence of its corporate 
existence, of its right to enter into contracts in the State of California, and that the officers 
signing the contract and bonds for the corporation have the authority to do so. 
 
2-4 CONTRACT BONDS  [Add the following:] 
 
Both the Faithful Performance Bond and the Labor and Material Bond shall each be for not less 
than one hundred percent (100%) of the total contract amount.  The Labor and Material Bond 
shall remain in force until thirty-five (35) days after the date of recordation of the Notice of 
Completion.  The Faithful Performance Bond will be held for one year after said date. 
 



C:\Program Files\Neevia.Com\Document Converter\temp\34163.doc SP-2 

2-5 PLANS AND SPECIFICATIONS 
 
2-5.1 General  [Replace the first paragraph with the following:] 
 
The Contractor shall maintain a control set of Plans and Specifications on the project site at all 
times.  All final locations determined in the field, and any deviations from the Plans and 
Specifications, shall be marked legibly and to scale in red on this control set to show the as-
constructed conditions.  Upon completion of all work, the Contractor shall return the control set 
to the Engineer.  Final payment will not be made until this requirement has been met. 
 
SECTION 3—CHANGES IN WORK 
 
3-3.2.3 Markup  [Add the following as the first paragraph:] 
 
The markups mentioned hereinafter shall include, but are not limited to, all costs for the services 
of superintendents, project managers, timekeepers, and other personnel not working directly on 
the change order and pickup or yard trucks used by the above personnel.  These costs shall be 
reported as labor or equipment elsewhere except when actually performing work directly on the 
change order and then shall only be reported at the labor classification of the work performed. 
 
3-5 DISPUTED WORK  [Delete second sentence and add the following:] 
 
If the Contractor considers any work demanded of him to be outside the requirements of the 
contract, or if he considers any instruction, ruling, or decision of the inspector or Engineer to be 
unfair, he shall within ten (10) working days after any such demand is made, or instruction, 
ruling, or decision is given, file a written protest with the Engineer, stating clearly and in detail 
his objections and reasons therefor.  Except for such protests and objections as are made of 
records, in the manner and within the time above stated, the Contractor shall be deemed to 
have waived and does hereby waive all claims for extra work, damages, and extensions of time 
on account of demands, instructions, rulings, and decisions of the Engineer.  Upon receipt of 
any such protest from the Contractor, the Engineer shall review the demands, instruction, ruling, 
or decision objected to and shall promptly advise the Contractor, in writing, of his final decision, 
which shall be binding on all parties, unless, within ten (10) days thereafter, the Contractor shall 
file with the City Council a formal protest against said decision of the Engineer.  The City 
Council shall consider and render a final decision on any such protest within thirty (30) days of 
receipt of same. 
 
SECTION 4—CONTROL OF MATERIALS 
 
4-1 MATERIALS AND WORKMANSHIP 
 
4-1.3.1 General  [Add the following:] 
 
The Agency will pay for inspection and materials testing.  The Contractor shall pay for re-tests 
and re-inspection due to failure to meet specifications. 
 
TESTING LABORATORY SERVICES FURNISHED BY THE CITY 
 
The City shall pay all charges of testing laboratories for quality control tests made in the field or 
laboratory on concrete, asphalt mixtures, moisture-density (Proctor), and relative density tests 
on embedment, fill, and backfill materials, in-place field density tests on embedments and fills, 
and other materials and equipment, during and after their incorporation in the work.  Field 
sampling and testing will be performed by engineering personnel, in the general manner 
indicated in the Specifications, with minimum interference with construction operations.  



C:\Program Files\Neevia.Com\Document Converter\temp\34163.doc SP-3 

Engineer shall determine the exact time and location of field sampling and testing, and may 
require such additional sampling and testing as necessary to determine that materials and 
equipment conform with data previously furnished by Contractor and with the Contract 
Documents. 
 
Arrangements for delivery of samples and test specimens to the testing laboratory will be made 
by the City.  The testing laboratory shall perform all laboratory tests within a reasonable time. 
 
Contractor shall furnish all sample materials and cooperate in the sampling and field testing 
activities, interrupting the work when necessary.  When sampling or testing activities are 
performed in the field by Engineer, Contractor shall furnish personnel and facilities to assist in 
the activities as required. 
 
TRANSMITTAL OF TEST REPORTS 
 
Written reports of tests and engineering data furnished by Contractor for Engineer's review of 
materials and equipment proposed to be used in the work shall be submitted as specified for 
Shop Drawings. 
 
The testing laboratory retained by the Engineer will furnish three copies of a written report of 
each test performed by laboratory personnel.  Two copies of each test report will be transmitted 
to the Engineer and one copy to the Contractor within three working days after each test is 
completed. 
 
SECTION 5—UTILITIES 
 
5-1 LOCATION  [Add the following paragraph:] 
 
The Contractor shall notify the utilities designated in the General Specifications at least 48 hours 
in advance of excavating around any of their structures. 
 
SECTION 6—PROSECUTION, PROGRESS, AND ACCEPTANCE OF THE WORK 
 
6-1 CONSTRUCTION SCHEDULE AND COMMENCEMENT OF WORK 
 [Replace the first paragraph with the following:] 
 
The Contractor's proposed Construction Schedule shall be submitted to the Engineer within ten 
(10) working days after the date of the Notice of Award of Contract.  The schedule shall be 
supported by written statements from each supplier of materials or equipment indicating that all 
orders have been placed and acknowledged, and setting forth the dates that each item will be 
delivered.  It shall also show the Contractor’s critical path (controlling items of work). 
 
Prior to issuing the Notice to Proceed, the Engineer will schedule a pre-construction meeting 
with the respective Contractor to review the proposed Construction Schedule and delivery 
dates, arrange the utility coordination, discuss construction methods, and clarify inspection 
procedures. 
 
The Contractor shall submit periodic Progress Reports to the Engineer by the tenth day of each 
month.  The report shall include an updated Construction Schedule.  Any deviations from the 
original schedule shall be explained.  Progress payments will be withheld pending receipt of any 
outstanding reports. 
 



C:\Program Files\Neevia.Com\Document Converter\temp\34163.doc SP-4 

6-7 TIME OF COMPLETION 
 
6-7.1 General  [Add the following:] 
 
The time for completion shall be as set forth in the General Specifications.  
 
6-7.2 Working Day  [Add the following:] 
 
The Contractor's activities shall be confined to the hours between 8:30 a.m. and 4:30 p.m., 
Monday through Friday, unless otherwise directed by the City.  The full width of the roadways 
shall be open for use by public traffic by 4:30 p.m.  
 
Work shall be prohibited at all times on Saturday, Sunday, State holidays or Federal holidays.  
Deviation from these hours will not be permitted without the prior consent of the Engineer, 
except in emergencies involving immediate hazard to persons or property. 
 
In the event of either a requested or emergency deviation, inspection service fees will be 
charged against the Contractor.  The service fees will be calculated at overtime rates including 
benefits, overhead, and travel time.  The service fees will be deducted from any amounts due 
the Contractor. 
 
6-9 LIQUIDATED DAMAGES  [Replace with the following:] 
 
It is agreed by the parties to the Contract that time is of the essence and that in the case that all 
the work is not complete before or upon the expiration of the time limit set forth, damage will be 
sustained by the City.  For each consecutive calendar day in excess of the time specified for the 
completion of the work, the Contractor shall pay to the Agency Five Hundred Dollars ($500.00).  
In addition, the City shall have the right to charge to the Contractor and to deduct from 
payments for the work the actual cost to the City of engineering, inspection, superintendence, 
and other overhead expenses, which are directly chargeable to the Contract and which accrue 
during the period of such delay.  The expenses and damages described above shall be 
deducted from any money due the Contractor under this contract.  The Contractor and his 
sureties shall be liable for any excess cost. 
 
SECTION 7—RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE CONTRACTOR 
 
7-1 CONTRACTOR'S EQUIPMENT AND FACILITIES  [Add the following:] 
 
A noise level limit of 86 dBA at a distance of fifty feet (50') shall apply to all construction 
equipment on or related to the job whether owned by the Contractor or not.  The use of 
excessively loud warning signals shall be avoided except in those cases required for the 
protection of personnel. 
 
7-2 LABOR   
 
7-2.2 Laws  [Add the following:] 
 
The Contractor and all subcontractors, suppliers, and vendors shall comply with all Agency, 
State, and Federal orders regarding affirmative action to ensure equal employment 
opportunities and fair employment practices.  Failure to file any report due under said orders will 
result in suspension of periodic progress payments. 
 



C:\Program Files\Neevia.Com\Document Converter\temp\34163.doc SP-5 

The Contractor shall ensure unlimited access to the job site for all equal employment 
opportunity compliance officers. 
 
7-3 LIABILITY INSURANCE  [Replace the entire Subsection with the following:] 
 
7-3.1 Indemnification  
 
The Contractor shall indemnify and save harmless the City of Mission Viejo, from all claims or 
suits for damages arising from his prosecution of the contract work, as more fully described in 
Subsection 7-3.2 "Contractor's Liability". 
 
The Contractor shall maintain during the life of the contract a protective liability policy.  See 
Section 18 of Instructions to Bidders. 
 
7-3.2 Contractor's Liability 
 
The City of Mission Viejo, its officers, employees, agents and volunteers shall not be 
answerable or accountable in any manner, for any loss or damage that may happen to the work 
or any part thereof; or for any of the materials or other things used or employed in performing 
the work; or for injury to any person or persons, either workmen or the public; or for damage to 
adjoining property from any cause which might have been prevented by the Contractor, or his 
workmen, or anyone employed by him; against all of which injuries or damages to persons and 
property the Contractor having control over such work must properly guard.  The Contractor 
shall be responsible for any damage to any person or property resulting from defects or 
obstructions at any time before its completion and final acceptance, and shall indemnify and 
save harmless the City of Mission Viejo, its officers, employees, agents, and volunteers from 
all suits or actions of every name and description, brought for, or on account of, any injuries or 
damages received or sustained by any person or persons, by the Contractor, his servants or 
agents, in the construction of the work or by or in consequence of any negligence in guarding 
the same, in improper materials used in its construction, or by or on account of any act or 
omission of the Contractor or his agents, and so much of the money due the Contractor under 
and by virtue of the Contract as shall be considered necessary by the City may be retained by 
the City until disposition has been made of such suits or claims for damages aforesaid. 
 
If, in the opinion of the Engineer, the precautions taken by the Contractor are not safe or 
adequate at any time during the life of the Contract, he may order the Contractor to take further 
precautions; and if the Contractor shall fail to do so, the Engineer may order the work done by 
others and charge the Contractor for the cost thereof, such cost to be deducted from any 
moneys due or becoming due the Contractor.  Failure of the Engineer to order such additional 
precautions, however, shall not relieve the Contractor from his full responsibility for public 
safety. 
 
From time to time during the period of this contract, the City may be served with claims as a 
result of conduct by Contractor, which claims are for property damage or other damage in 
amounts of $500.00 or less.  These claims may be resolved informally by City, within City's 
discretion, and charged back against Contractor by funds held in retention to meet these claims.  
The City will appoint a Claims Administrator who will act on behalf of the City and Contractor.  
The Administrator will recommend to City the resolution of any claim.  The Claims 
Administrator's recommendation for payment shall be paid by Contractor within 30 days of the 
date of the recommendation.  If Contractor fails to make payment to claimant within 30 days of 
the Administrator's decision, the City may make payment to the claimant and withhold, as 
retention, sufficient funds to reimburse City upon completion of the contract.  Prior to making his 
recommendation, the Administrator will obtain from Contractor all evidence relevant to the claim. 
Contractor will have ten days from the date requested by the Administrator to submit any 



C:\Program Files\Neevia.Com\Document Converter\temp\34163.doc SP-6 

evidence in the defense of the claim.  Failure to do so waives any objection by Contractor to 
payment of the claim if, after an independent investigation, it is the opinion of the Administrator 
to make payment of that claim. 
 
7-5 PERMITS  [Replace with the following:] 
 
Prior to the start of any work, the Contractor shall take out the applicable Agency permits and 
make arrangements for Agency inspections.  Requests for inspections shall be made to the City 
of Mission Viejo, as lead Agency, 24 hours in advance of need.  The Contractor and all 
subcontractors shall each obtain any and all other permits, licenses, inspections, certificates, or 
authorizations required by any governing body or public utility.  Payment for this work shall be 
included in the bid items of work and no additional compensation will be allowed.  The City of 
Mission Viejo will waive its usual permit fees. 
 
7-7 COOPERATION AND COLLATERAL WORK  [Add the following:] 
 
The Contractor is advised as to the possibility of other construction projects within the proposed 
construction zone by the City of Mission Viejo, other governing agencies, or private 
enterprises.  In the event of such projects, the Contractor shall coordinate with the applicable 
parties as to the extent of any time required to complete their work and shall schedule his work 
and conduct his operations so as to permit access and time as required for the concurrent work.  
The Contractor shall immediately notify the Engineer in the event of a delay in scheduling 
caused solely by this concurrent work.  Payment for the above, if any, shall be deemed as 
included in the items of work as shown on the proposal bid sheet and no additional 
compensation will be allowed. 
 
7-10 PUBLIC CONVENIENCE AND SAFETY 
 
7-10.1 Traffic and Access  [Add the following paragraph:] 
 
When entering or leaving roadways carrying public traffic, the Contractor's equipment, whether 
empty or loaded, shall in all cases yield to public traffic. 
 
At least partial driveway access shall be maintained at all times, unless otherwise 
approved by the City.  Complete driveway access shall be restored outside of working 
hours. 
 
Pedestrian access shall be maintained during access ramp re-construction. 
 
The Contractor shall notify in writing all affected property owners of the proposed construction 
schedule a minimum of 48 hours, but not more than 72 hours, in advance of any limitation or 
closure of access to their property.  Form of said notice shall be as approved by the Engineer 
and shall contain the date and time of the closure.  In the event of delay, whether beyond the 
control of the Contractor or not, the Contractor shall notify all affected property owners as to the 
extent of the delay and his revised schedule.  In the event of delay over 72 hours, the 
Contractor shall re-notify the property owners as described above.  Payment for notification and 
coordination as per Section 7-10 as modified herein shall be included in the compensation paid 
for the various items of work and no additional compensation will be allowed.  The "Notices" will 
be furnished by the Contractor. 
 



C:\Program Files\Neevia.Com\Document Converter\temp\34163.doc SP-7 

7-10.2 Storage of Equipment and Materials in Public Streets   
 [Replace with the following:] 
 
No storage of equipment or materials shall be allowed within the public right-of-way outside of 
working hours.  The City will provide a small staging area (large enough to stage the slurry 
operation) on the east side of Felipe Road at its intersection with La Paz Road.  It will be the 
Contractor’s responsibility to secure the area with a 6’-high screened fence, and the City will 
accept no liability associated with the Contractor’s use of the property.  The Contractor shall 
maintain the site in an orderly condition and shall return the site to the same or better condition 
prior to the release of final payment.   
 
The Contractor may, at his own expense, maintain and operate an additional work and storage 
area outside of the public right-of-way.  In such case the Contractor shall submit to Agency 
written authorization from the owners of the subject property prior to occupation.  Occupation of 
site without written authorization shall be grounds for immediate suspension of work.  Location 
of the site is to be approved by Agency.  Condition and operation of yard shall conform to these 
Specifications.  The Contractor shall assume full responsibility for all damage to the site 
resulting from his operations and shall repair and/or replace same, at his own expense, to the 
satisfaction of the owner of the subject property.  The Contractor shall vacate site and return it 
to pre-project condition within five (5) working days following application for Notice of 
Completion.  The Contractor shall obtain a written release from the property owner accepting 
the condition of the vacated site and releasing the Contractor from any further clean-up or 
restoration work and shall submit a copy of such release to Agency.  The Notice of Completion 
will not be issued until said release is submitted.  
 
7-10.3 Street Closures, Detours, Barricades  [Add the following:] 
 
The Contractor shall provide and maintain all other signs, barricades, pedestals, flashers, 
delineators, and other necessary facilities for the protection of the public within the limits of the 
construction area.  The Contractor shall also post proper signs to notify the public regarding 
detours and the condition of the roadway, all in accordance with the provisions of the Vehicle 
Code and the current State of California Department of Transportation Manual of Warning 
Signs, Lights, and Devices for Use in Performance of Work Upon Highways. 
 
Special emphasis shall be placed on use of "Construction Zone Ahead" (C18R) signs at the 
beginning, end, and any access and/or intersection streets with roads under construction. 
 
Portable delineators shall be placed as necessary for proper delineation of the travel way.  The 
spacing between delineators shall not exceed 50 feet on tangents or 25 feet on curves except 
when used for lane closure. 
 
When closure of half the roadway requires one-way traffic, the Contractor shall provide two (2) 
flaggers equipped with working two-way radios, one at each end of the work area, with signing 
and delineation as per WATCH Manual. 
 
When used for lane closures, the portable delineators shall be placed at intervals not to exceed 
the following: 
 

Tapers 25 Feet 
 

Edge of Closed Lane: Tangents 50 Feet 
 Curves 50 Feet 

 



C:\Program Files\Neevia.Com\Document Converter\temp\34163.doc SP-8 

If the portable delineators are damaged, displaced, or not in an upright position from any cause, 
said portable delineators shall immediately be replaced or restored to their original location, in 
an upright position, by the Contractor. 
 
The Contractor shall furnish competent flagmen as are necessary to give adequate warning to 
traffic or to the public of any dangerous conditions to be encountered.  Flagmen, while on duty 
and assigned to give warnings to the public that the highway is under construction and of any 
dangerous conditions to be encountered as a result thereof, shall perform their duties and shall 
be provided with the necessary equipment in accordance with the current "Instructions to 
Flagmen," of the Department of Transportation.  The equipment shall be furnished and kept 
clean and in good repair by the Contractor, at his expense.  
 
Should the Contractor appear to be neglectful or negligent in furnishing warning and protective 
measures as provided, the Engineer may direct attention to the existence of a hazard and the 
necessary warning and protective measures shall be furnished and installed by the Contractor 
at his expense.  Should the Engineer point out the inadequacy of warning and protective 
measures, such action on the part of the Engineer shall not relieve the Contractor from 
responsibility for public safety or abrogate his obligation to furnish and pay for these devices. 
 
Contractor shall notify the following entities at least forty-eight (48) hours in advance of any 
street closure or restriction to access. 
 

1. City Engineer 
2. Orange County Fire Authority  
3. Orange County Sheriff’s Department 
4. Schools and School Bus Organizations 
5. Trash Collectors 
6. Post Office 
7. Orange County Transportation Authority 

 
Full compensation for conforming to this article shall be considered as included in the various 
items of work, and no additional compensation will be allowed therefor. 
 
All existing stop signs, street name signs and regulatory signs shall be maintained in visible 
locations during construction. 
 
7-10.4.1 Safety Orders  [Add the following paragraph:] 
 
The Contractor shall comply with the provisions of any Agency ordinances or regulations 
regarding requirements for the protection of excavations and the nature of such protection. 
 
7-15 PAYROLL RECORDS  [Add new Subsection 7-15 to read:] 
 
Payroll records shall be submitted to the Agency at least once each month.  Progress payments 
will be withheld pending receipt of any outstanding reports. 
 
SECTION 9—MEASUREMENT AND PAYMENT 
 
9-3 PAYMENT 
 
9-3.2 Partial and Final Payment  [Replace the last paragraph with the following:] 
 
The final progress payment will not be released until the Contractor returns the control set of 
Plans and Specifications showing the as-constructed conditions. 



C:\Program Files\Neevia.Com\Document Converter\temp\34163.doc SP-9 

SUBSTITUTION OF SECURITIES  
 
In conformance with the State of California Public Contract Code Section 22300, the Contractor 
may substitute securities for any monies withheld by the AGENCY to ensure performance under 
the contract. 
 
At the request and expense of the Contractor, the Contractor has the option to deposit 
securities, which have been approved by the Agency, and deposited with a State- or Federally 
chartered bank as the escrow agent.  Said securities will be used as a substitute for retention 
earnings required to be withheld by the Agency, pursuant to the construction contract.  Said 
securities shall have no obligation to any other construction contract for substitution of securities 
in lieu of retention.  When the Contractor deposits the Agency-approved securities with the 
escrow agent, the escrow agent shall notify the Agency within ten (10) calendar days of the 
deposit.  Said securities shall be evaluated quarterly by the escrow agent to verify the current 
market value.  If the current market value of said securities falls below the required amount, the 
escrow agent shall notify the Contractor and require additional securities and/or cash to be 
submitted for Agency approval, and be held in the escrow account to meet the Contractor's 
obligations.  Said securities shall be held by the escrow agent until such time as the escrow 
agent receives written notification from the Agency that the Contractor has satisfactorily 
completed his contract obligations. 
 
The type of securities deposited and the method of release shall be approved by the City 
Attorney's office. 
 
The full ten-percent (10%) retention will be deducted from all payments.  The final retention will 
be authorized for payment thirty-five (35) days after the date of recordation of the Notice of 
Completion. 
 
9-3.3 Delivered Materials  [Replace with the following:] 
 
Materials and equipment delivered but not incorporated into the work will not be included in the 
estimate for progress payment, subject to the discretion of the City Engineer. 
 
 



C:\Program Files\Neevia.Com\Document Converter\temp\34163.doc SP-10 

PART II—CONSTRUCTION MATERIALS 
 
SECTION 200—ROCK MATERIALS 
 
200-1 ROCK PRODUCTS 
 
200-1.1 General  [Add the following:] 
 
Unless otherwise indicated by the Special Provisions, Alternate Rock Material Type "S" is 
specified.  Part 4, Section 400, of the Standard Specifications for Public Works Construction will 
be used, as modified by Orange County RDMD Standard Plan 1804. 
 
SECTION 201—CONCRETE, MORTAR, AND RELATED MATERIALS 
 
201-1 PORTLAND CEMENT CONCRETE 
 
201-1.1 Requirements  [Add the following:] 
 
201-1.1.1 The cement utilized shall be Type V.  No substitution of materials shall be 
permitted. 
 
201-1.1.2 The class of concrete shall be 520-C-2500 with a maximum slump of four inches 
(4”) for all sidewalks, access ramps, curbs and gutters, and driveways. 
 
201-1.1.4 Test for Portland Cement Concrete  [Add the following:] 
 
1. All material shall comply with Orange County Standards and American Concrete Institute 

(Act I) and Uniform Building Code. 
 
2. Product Data 
 
 a. Submit complete materials list of items proposed for the work.  Identify materials 

source. 
 
 b. Submit admixture, curing compound, retarder, and accessory item product data. 
 
 c. Submit material certificates for aggregates, reinforcing, and joint fillers. 
 
3. Submit concrete delivery tickets.  Show the following: 
 
 a. Batch number 
 
 b. Mix by class or sack content with maximum size aggregate 
 
 c. Admixture 
 
 d. Air content 
 
 e. Slump 
 
 f. Time of loading 
 
4. Submit concrete test reports. 
 



C:\Program Files\Neevia.Com\Document Converter\temp\34163.doc SP-11 

5. Provide field quality control testing and inspection during concrete operations. 
 
6. Contractor shall provide adequate notice, cooperate with, provide access to the work, 

obtain samples, and assist test agency and their representatives in execution of their 
function. 

 
7. Testing 
 
 a. Provide slump test on first load of concrete delivered each day and whenever 

requested due to changes in consistency or appearance of concrete. 
 
 b. Provide air indicator tests and air meter tests for all air-entrained concrete. 
 
  1) Perform air indicator test with a "Chase" AE 35 or equal air indicator and 

air meter test in accordance with ASTM C231 or C173.  Test first load of 
concrete delivered each day. 

 
  2) Furnish copies of field records and test reports as listed for strength tests. 
 
 c. Strength Testing 
 
  1) Provide one set of three test specimens for each 50 cubic yards placed in 

any one day.  Secure samples in accordance with ASTM C31. 
 
  2) Test one specimen at seven days and two specimens at twenty-nine days 

in accordance with ASTM C39. 
 
  3) Furnish copies of field records and test reports as follows: 
 
   2 copies to City's representative 
   1 copy to Contractor 
   1 copy to Ready Mix supplier 
 
 d. Record the exact location of the concrete in the work represented by each set of 

cylinders and show on test reports. 
 
 e. Provide an insulated moist box for protection of the best cylinders until shipped to 

the laboratory. 
 
201-1.2 Materials 
 
201-1.2.1 Portland Cement [Add the following:] 
 
 1. Lime:  ASTM C207, Type S, containing 85% by weight of calcium oxide. 
 
 2. Lime Putty:  Make from hydrated lime conforming to ASTM C207, pulverized to 

such fineness that 100% will pass a 50-mesh sieve.  Mix lime in water, run 
through screen into box, and age 48 hours. 

 



C:\Program Files\Neevia.Com\Document Converter\temp\34163.doc SP-12 

201-1.4 Mixing 
 
201-1.4.3 Transit Mixers  [Add the following:] 
 
Mixes 
 
 a. Provide ASTM C94 ready-mixed concrete.  Batch mixing at site is not 

acceptable. 
 
 b. Provide an approved water-reducing admixture in all concrete. 
 
 c. Provide an air-entraining admixture in all concrete.  Air content 5% to 7%. 
 
 d. Indicate water added to mix at job site on each delivery ticket.  Show quantity of 

water added.  Site water-tempered mixes exceeding specified slump range will 
be rejected as not complying with specifications requirements. 

 
201-3 EXPANSION JOINT FILLER 
 
Premolded joint filler material.  Type to be determined by City’s recommendation. Provide in 
natural gray color. 
 
SECTION 203—BITUMINOUS MATERIALS 
 
203-6 ASPHALT CONCRETE 
 
203-6.1 General  [Add the following to the end of the subsection:] 
 
Asphalt concrete shall conform to the provisions of Subsection 400-1 "Rock Products" and 
Subsection 400-4 "Asphalt Concrete" as modified by Orange County RDMD Standard Plan 
1805 and herein.  The viscosity grade of paving asphalt shall be AR 4000.  The mix designs and 
asphalt content shall be as follows: 
 
5.8% ½" (III-C-3) Surface Course 
5.4% ¾" (III-B-2) Base Course 
6.8% ⅜" (III-D) Leveling Course, Miscellaneous AC Placement (hand patching) 
 
Composition and Grading 
 
The Contractor shall submit a Job Mix Formula (JMF) for review by the City for each source of 
supply and type of mixture specified.  The JMF shall indicate the percentage aggregate passing 
each specified sieve size and the percent paving asphalt to be used for each asphalt concrete 
mixture incorporated in the work. 
 
The aggregate and paving asphalt portions of the mixture produced shall not vary from the JMF 
by more than the tolerances, which follow, but in any case the allowed tolerance is also 
restricted to conform to the master grading ranges. 
 

Sieve Size Percent by Weight 

No. 4 and larger ±6 

No. 30 ±5 

No. 200 ±2 

Paving Asphalt Material ±0.3 



C:\Program Files\Neevia.Com\Document Converter\temp\34163.doc SP-13 

Sampling and Testing 
 
The City Engineer shall have the right to obtain samples of all materials to be used in the work 
and to test such samples for the purpose of determining specification compliance.  The primary 
sampling point by the testing laboratory will be at the project at the paving machine ahead of all 
rollers.  Other testing may be at the job site, plant, or in trucks as determined by the City 
Engineer. 
 
Materials that failed the tests shall be replaced by the Contractor, and retesting for 
specifications compliance shall be at the Contractor's expense. 
 
The aggregate and mix to be incorporated into the work shall conform to the following quality 
requirements: 
 
Test Test Results 

Loss in LA Rattler per California Test 211 (after 500 revolutions) 45% maximum 

Sand Equivalent per California Test 217 45 minimum 

Stabiliometer Value per California Test 366 35 minimum 

Air Voids Content (mix) % 3% minimum to 5% maximum 
 
SECTION 210—PAINT AND PROTECTIVE COATINGS 
 
210-1 PAINT 
 
210-1.4.1 Paint Materials  [Add the following information to the end of this section:] 
 
Submittals 
 
1. Materials List: 
 
 a. The Contractor shall furnish the articles, equipment, materials, or processes 

specified by name in the drawings and specifications.  No substitution will be 
allowed without prior written approval of the City. 

 
 b. Complete material list shall be submitted prior to performing work.  Material list 

shall include the manufacturer, model number, and description of all materials 
and equipment to be used. 

 
 c. Equipment or materials installed or furnished without prior approval of the City 

may be rejected and the Contractor required to remove such materials from the 
site at his own expense. 

 
d. Approval of any item, alternate, or substitute indicates only that the product or 

products apparently meet the requirements of the drawings and specifications on 
the basis of the information or samples submitted. 

 



C:\Program Files\Neevia.Com\Document Converter\temp\34163.doc SP-14 

210-1.6 Paint for Traffic Striping, Pavement Markings, and Curb Markings 
 
210-1.6.1 General.  [Replace with the following:] 
 
The paint for traffic striping and marking shall be as follows: 
 
Rapid-Dry, Water-Borne Traffic Line Paint; White, Yellow, and Black; California Material 
Specification 8010-20B. 
 
The paint for concrete curbs shall be the following, or an approved equal: 
 
 a. J.E. Bauer Company #2133 A-9 Red. 
 b. J.E. Bauer Company #2134 A-9 Green. 
 c. J.E. Bauer Company #1864 A-9 Blue. 
 
Thinner shall not be mixed with paint.  Paint shall dry "tack-free" within thirty (30) minutes.  Paint 
used for pavement legends shall be a compound of paint and glass beads. 
 
210-1.6.5 Reflective Material 
 [Replace the first sentence of the second paragraph with the following:] 
 
Glass beads for traffic paint shall conform to State Material Specification 751-80-34. 
 
SECTION 214—PAVEMENT MARKERS [Add the following:] 
 
The description, type, sampling, tolerances, packaging, and storage of reflective and non-
reflective pavement markers and bituminous adhesive shall conform to the California 
Department of Transportation Standard Specifications Section 85 "Pavement Markers". 
 
Epoxy adhesive, if used, shall conform to the California Department of Transportation Standard 
Specification Section 95 "Epoxy". 
 
 
 



C:\Program Files\Neevia.Com\Document Converter\temp\34163.doc SP-15 

PART III—CONSTRUCTION METHODS 
 
SECTION 300—EARTHWORK 
 
300-1 CLEARING AND GRUBBING 
 
  (d) Miscellaneous 
 
   In addition to the work outlined in Subsection 300-1 of the Standard 

Specifications, the following items of work are included under Clearing 
and Grubbing unless otherwise covered by a specific bid item. 

 
   (1) Maintain dust control at all times by watering; including developing 

a water supply and furnishing and placing all water required for 
work done in the contract, including water used for extra work. 

 
   (2) Protection of utilities, trees, fences, walls, and other facilities 

within the construction zone, except those specifically directed by 
the Engineer to be removed or relocated. 

 
   (3) Mobilization. 
 

  (4) Clearing and removal of debris from site of work. 
 
   (5) Removal of all USA mark-outs. 
 
300-1.4 Payment  [Add the following:] 
 
Compensation for Clearing and Grubbing shall be considered as included in the various items of 
work and no additional compensation will be allowed. 
 
300-2 UNCLASSIFIED EXCAVATION 
 
300-2.6 Surplus Material  [Add the following:] 
 
All surplus material shall be disposed of in a legal manner at the expense of the Contractor. 
 
300-2.9.1 Payment  [Amend with the following:] 
 
Payment for all unclassified excavation shall be deemed as included in the unit price for the 
related item.  No additional compensation is allowed therefor. 
 
SECTION 301—TREATED SOILS, SUBGRADE PREPARATION AND PLACEMENT OF 

BASE MATERIALS 
 
301-1 SUBGRADE PREPARATION 
 
301-1.3 Relative Compaction  [Add the following  after the first paragraph:] 
 
Payment for the subgrade compaction shall be deemed as included in the unit price for the 
related item.  No additional compensation is allowed therefor. 
 



C:\Program Files\Neevia.Com\Document Converter\temp\34163.doc SP-16 

SECTION 302—ROADWAY SURFACING 
 
302-5 ASPHALT CONCRETE PAVEMENT 
 
302-5.1 General  [Replace the last paragraph with the following:] 
 
Asphalt Concrete shall conform to the requirements of Subsection 203-6.1 as modified by these 
Special Provisions and Orange County RDMD Standard Plan 1805. 
 
302-5.4 Tack Coat 
 
Tack coat material shall be grade SS-1h emulsified asphalt. 
 
302-5.8 Manholes (and Other Structures) [Add the following:] 
 
302-5.8.1 Adjustment of Manholes 
 
Adjustments to grade of manholes shall conform to the requirements of the Santa Margarita 
Water District (SMWD), and these Special Provisions: 
 
The method of adjusting existing manholes in areas of new construction or reconstruction shall 
be as follows: 
 
 1. Upon completion of the asphalt overlay, circular holes shall be cut where the 

manholes exist. 
 
 2. The manhole frames and covers shall then be raised to the proper grade, and the 

pavement shall be replaced with an equivalent asphalt concrete structural 
section.  

 
If the manhole cover is unstable or noisy under traffic, said conditions shall be corrected by 
placing a coil of asphalt-saturated rope, a plastic-type washer, or asphaltic compounds, as 
approved by the Engineer, on the cover seat. 
 
The Contractor will exercise care so that surface materials such as rocks, dirt, and debris do not 
enter sewer lines. 
 
The Contractor shall inform SMWD forty-eight (48) hours prior to beginning work. 
 
302-5.8.2 Adjustment of Water Valve Covers 
 
Existing valve covers shall be adjusted to grade by the Contractor.  Contractor shall provide slip 
cans. 
 
Water valves shall be protected in place and shall be accessible at all times during construction. 
 
The Contractor shall notify SMWD forty-eight (48) hours prior to the beginning of work. 
 
302-5.9 Measurement and Payment  [Add the following:] 
 
Adjust Manhole Cover to Grade, including all appurtenant work, shall be paid at the contract unit 
price bid per EACH. 
 



C:\Program Files\Neevia.Com\Document Converter\temp\34163.doc SP-17 

Adjust Water Valve Cover to Grade, including all appurtenant work, shall be paid at the contract 
unit price bid per EACH. 
 
302-11 BITUMINOUS PAVEMENT CRACK SEALING  

{Add new Subsection 302-11 to read] 
 
302-11.1 General 
 
Bituminous Pavement Crack Sealing consists of furnishing all labor, equipment, and materials 
and performing all operations in connection with bituminous pavement crack sealing for cracks 
¼" wide or wider. 
 
302-11.2 Cleaning 
 
All pavement cracks greater than or equal to ¼" width shall be routed by mechanical means and 
cleaned by air blowing with an air compressor. 
 
302-11.3 Material 
 
The crack sealing material shall be CRAFCO Polyflex Type III sealant or equal.  
 
The sealer shall be forced into the crack by use of a squeegee. 
 
302-11.4 Measurement and Payment 
 
Bituminous Pavement Crack Sealing shall be paid for at the LUMP SUM contract price and shall 
include full compensation for all labor, materials, tools and equipment necessary to seal all 
cracks ¼" or wider, and no additional compensation is allowed therefor. 
 
303-5 CONCRETE CURBS, WALKS, GUTTERS, CROSS-GUTTERS, ALLEY 

INTERSECTIONS, ACCESS RAMPS, AND DRIVEWAYS 
 
303-5.1.1 General  [Add the following paragraph:] 
 
Construction of Portland Cement Concrete curbs and gutter, sidewalk, driveway aprons and 
pedestrian ramps shall be constructed in accordance with the Plans and the Standard 
Specifications as modified herein. 
 
Curing compound shall be Type II conforming to the provisions in Section 201-4 "Concrete 
Curing Compound" of the Standard Specifications.  Contractor shall exercise caution in using 
such curing compounds so as to avoid spraying any cars that may be parked adjacent to the 
work site. 
 
Shapes and sizes of concrete curbs and gutters shall be as indicated on the drawings, and the 
concrete shall conform to all applicable conditions of these documents.  Concrete shall be 
placed in such a manner as to prevent distortion of the forms and shall be vibrated as required 
to insure an acceptable product. 
 
As soon as the concrete will allow, strip the forms and trowel smooth the curb face and top. Tool 
the edges of expansion joints with an approved ⅜” edging tool. 
 



C:\Program Files\Neevia.Com\Document Converter\temp\34163.doc SP-18 

After curing, AC deeplift shall be placed.  The completed curb and gutter shall be protected from 
damage until accepted. 
 
The Contractor shall repair and clean, at his own expense, all concrete damaged or discolored 
during construction.  Where any curb requires repair before acceptance, repair shall be made by 
removing and replacing the entire curb between joints and not by refinishing the damaged 
portions. 
 
The cost of removing existing sidewalk, driveway aprons, ramps and curb and gutter, including 
sawcutting, shall be included in the corresponding unit prices for the related items of work, and 
no additional compensation shall be allowed. 
 
Contractor shall match existing curb face height and gutter width. 
 
303-5.2 Forms 
 
303-5.2.1 Standard Forms  [Add the following:] 
 
 1. Use flexible metal, 1" lumber, or plywood forms to form radius bends. 
 
 2. Install, align, and level forms; stake and brace forms in place.  Maintain following 

grade and alignment tolerances. 
 
  a. Top of Form:  Maximum ⅜" in 10', 0". 
 

b. Vertical Face:  Maximum ¼" in 10', 0". 
 

 3. The Contractor shall include all fine grading and compaction with regard to 
setting forms during concrete placement. 

 
303-5.4.1 General  [Add to the first paragraph:] 
 
 1. Provide expansion joints using premolded joint filler at concrete work abutting 

curbs, walks, and other fixed objects. 
 
  a. Locate expansion joints as indicated.  When not indicated, provide joints 

at maximum 10', 0" on center for curbs and walks.  Align expansion joints 
in abutting curbs and walks. 

 
  b. Install joint fillers full-width and depth of joint.  Recess top edge below 

finish where joint sealants are indicated. 
 
  c. Install joint filler full-width and depth of joint.  Provide top edge flush with 

adjacent finished surface. 
 
  d. Provide joint fillers in single lengths for the full slab width whenever 

possible.  Fasten joint filler sections together when multiple lengths are 
required. 

 
  e. Where intersecting joints occur, join top edge and continue any spliced 

joints without deviation of form line or direction. 
 
  f. Protect the top edge of the joint filler during concrete placement. 
 



C:\Program Files\Neevia.Com\Document Converter\temp\34163.doc SP-19 

303-5.9 Measurement and Payment 
 
Payment for Remove and Replace Concrete Curb and Gutter shall be paid for at the contract 
unit price bid per LINEAR FOOT.  Payment for Remove and Reconstruct Sidewalk, Driveway 
Aprons, and Access Ramps shall be paid for at the contract unit prices bid per SQUARE FOOT.  
The price bid shall be considered to include full payment for all materials, labor, equipment, and 
incidentals required to construct the concrete improvements (including sawcutting, removals, 
and AC slot patching) in accordance with the Contract Documents.   
 
303-8 ROOT PRUNING  [Add new Subsection 303-8 to read:] 
 
303-8.1 General   
 
The work done under this section is the removal of tree roots under the existing sidewalk.  All 
excavation, backfill, and other earthwork incidental to performance of the work shall conform to 
the requirements of "Earthwork" Section 300. 
 
303-8.2 Root Pruning 
 
Areas that are to be repaired due to tree roots. 
 
 1. Cut tree roots along all edges of concrete removal area. 
 
 2. Tree roots shall not be cut up to the base of the trunk. 
 
 3. Cuts shall be four inches (4") wide, eighteen inches (18") deep as measured from 

the top of the new sidewalk. 
 

4. All tree root cutting will be directed by the City Inspector. 
 
Root pruning equipment shall be specifically designed for this purpose, sharpened adequately 
to sever roots in a clean manner, and equipped with padded tracks or rubber tires to prevent 
scraping or marking of sidewalks. 
 
All cuts shall be backfilled either immediately upon completion of root pruning or upon 
completion of sidewalk repairs provided that adequate warning devices are placed and 
maintained at each location.  Backfill material shall consist of dirt, CAB or crushed 
miscellaneous base. 
 
The Contractor shall repair or replace sprinklers, plant material, and all utility service 
connections, which are damaged or removed as a result of the root-pruning operation.  Repairs 
shall be initiated immediately and completed by the end of each working day.  Repairs and 
replacements shall be at least equal to existing improvements, shall match them in finish and 
dimension, and will be done at Contractor's expense. 
 
303-8.3 Payment 
 
Payment for root removal shall be included in the pertinent bid items in the bid proposal and 
shall include full compensation for furnishing all labor, materials, tools, equipment, and no 
additional compensation shall be allowed therefor. 
 



C:\Program Files\Neevia.Com\Document Converter\temp\34163.doc SP-20 

303-9 GRAFFITI REMOVAL  [Add new Subsection 303-9 to read:] 
 
Contractor shall provide any and all required labor, materials, or equipment to provide protection 
of newly placed concrete sidewalk, access ramps, and curb and gutter from graffiti.  All 
sidewalk, access ramps, and curb and gutter not acceptable due to graffiti shall be removed and 
replaced by Contractor; and no additional compensation shall be allowed therefor. 
 
303-10 ROOT BARRIERS  [Add new Subsection 303-10 to read]: 
 
Contractor shall install 18” deep root barriers at the discretion of the City’s inspector to protect 
the new improvements.  The root barriers shall be Shawtown EP Series by NDS (800-726-1994) 
or approved polypropylene equal, and shall be installed per the manufacturer’s 
recommendations and/or per the direction of the City’s inspector.  Compensation for root 
barriers shall be per the contract unit price bid per linear foot. 
 
SECTION 310—PAINTING 
 
310-1 GENERAL  [Add the following to this section:] 
 
Quality Control and Requirements 
 
 1. Permits and Fees 
 
  The Contractor shall obtain and pay for any and all permits and inspections as 

required. 
 
 2. Manufacturer's Directions 
 
  Manufacturer's directions and detail drawings shall be followed in all cases where 

the manufacturer of articles used in this contract furnish directions covering 
points not shown in the drawings and specifications. 

 
 3. Ordinances and Regulations 
 
  All local, municipal, and State laws and rules and regulations governing or 

relating to any portion of this work are hereby incorporated into and made a part 
of these Specifications and their provisions shall be carried out by the Contractor.  
Anything contained in these Specifications shall not be construed to conflict with 
any of the above rules and regulations or requirements of the same.  However, 
when these Specifications and drawings call for or describe materials, 
workmanship, or construction of better quality, higher standard, or larger size 
than is required by the above rules and regulations, the provisions of these 
Specifications and drawings shall take precedence. 

 
SECTION 310-5—PAINTING VARIOUS SURFACES 
 
310-5.6 Painting Traffic Striping, Pavement Markings and Curb Markings 
 
310-5.6.1 General  [Add the following:] 
 
Traffic stripes, legends, and raised pavement markers shall conform to the 2004 California 
Department of Transportation Traffic Sign Specification, Traffic Manual, Maintenance Manual, 
and Standard Specifications and Standard Plans. 



C:\Program Files\Neevia.Com\Document Converter\temp\34163.doc SP-21 

Traffic striping shall conform to Sections 210 and 310 as modified by these Special Provisions.  
Traffic control shall be as per WATCH Manual. 
 
Raised pavement markers shall conform to the California Department of Transportation 
Standard Specifications Section 85. 
 
Pavement legends shall conform to Agency stencils (same as used by the County of Orange). 
 
Stripes and pavement legends shall be reflectorized. 
 
310-5.6.7 Layout, Alignment, and Spotting  [Add the following:] 
 
Layout.  The Contractor shall furnish the necessary control points for all striping and markings 
and shall be responsible for the completeness and accuracy thereof to the satisfaction of the 
Engineer. 
 
In no case shall any section of street be left without the proper striping for more than 24 hours or 
over weekends or holidays. 
 
310-5.6.8 Application of Paint  [Add the following:] 
 
Traffic paint shall be applied at the rate of 16 to 18 gallons per mile of solid, 4-inch-wide stripe 
(one gallon for every 98 square feet).  The dry paint film thickness shall be 8 to 10 mils.  Glass 
beads shall be applied at the rate of 110 pounds per mile of solid 4-inch-wide stripe (one pound 
per 16 square feet). 
 
Traffic stripes and pavement markings on new surfacing shall be applied in two coats, except 
where otherwise shown on the plans.  Temporary tabs shall be removed between the first and 
second coats of paint.  The first coat of paint shall be applied at least seven days prior to the 
application of the second coat.  On existing surfacing, traffic stripes and pavement markings 
may be applied in one coat. 
 
A 3-inch-wide black stripe shall be painted between the two 4-inch-wide yellow stripes of a 
double traffic stripe. 
 
Each coat of paint for any traffic stripe, including glass beads where required, shall be applied in 
one pass of the striping machine, regardless of the number, widths, and patterns of individual 
stripes involved. 
 
Paint to be applied in one coat shall be applied at an approximate rate of one gallon per 107 
square feet. 
 
Paint to be applied in two coats shall be applied approximately as follows: 
 

Square Foot Coverage Per Gallon 

 First Coat Second Coat 

Water-Borne Paint 215 215 
 
Drips, overspray, improper markings, and paint material tracked by traffic shall be immediately 
removed from the pavement surface by methods approved by the Engineer. 
 
Newly placed traffic stripes and pavement markings shall be protected from damage by public 
traffic or other causes until the paint is thoroughly dry. 



C:\Program Files\Neevia.Com\Document Converter\temp\34163.doc SP-22 

Paint and glass beads for traffic stripes and pavement markings will be furnished by the 
Contractor, including paint for cattracks and dribble lines. 
 
Unless otherwise directed by the Engineer, glass beads shall be uniformly incorporated in all 
coats of paint concurrently with the application of the paint, except that glass beads shall not be 
applied to black paint.  Beads shall be embedded in the coat of traffic paint being applied to a 
depth of one-half their diameters. 
 
Glass beads shall be applied at an approximate rate of five pounds per gallon of paint.  The 
exact rate will be determined by the Engineer.  The amount of glass beads applied shall be 
measured by stabbing the glass bead tank with a calibrated rod. 
 
Any removal of traffic stripes and markings shall be accomplished by the wet sandblasting 
method or waterblasting method.  The machine used for this purpose shall meet all 
requirements of the air pollution control district having jurisdiction in the project area. All sand 
used in wet sandblasting shall be removed without delay as the operation progresses. 
 
310-5.6.8.1 Installation of Raised Pavement Markers 
 
Placement of raised pavement markers shall comply with Caltrans Specification Subsection 
85-1.06.  Application of epoxy, if used, shall comply with Caltrans Specifications Subsection 
95-1.04. 
 
310-5.6.10 Measurement and Payment  [Replace with the following:] 
 
Payment for all traffic striping and pavement markings shall be included in the Striping and 
Pavement Markings "Lump Sum" bid item. 
 
Payment shall include full compensation for furnishing all labor, material (including adhesives, 
glass beads markers and paint), tools, equipment and incidentals; and for doing the work 
involved in traffic striping, pavement markings, and markers complete in place, including 
necessary traffic control as specified in these Special Provisions and as directed by the 
Engineer, and no additional compensation will be allowed. 
 
Payment for the removal of existing traffic striping and pavement markings shall be made at the 
contract “Lump Sum” price, which shall include full compensation for furnishing all labor, 
materials, tools, equipment and incidentals required to remove existing traffic striping and 
pavement markings (multiple layers, if necessary) where specified, including traffic control and 
clean-up, and no additional compensation will be allowed. 
 
SECTION 600—MODIFIED ASPHALTS, PAVEMENTS AND PROCESSES 
 
600-3 RUBBERIZED EMULSION—AGGREGATE SLURRY 
 
GENERAL: 
 
Slurry seal with rubberized emulsion shall conform to the requirements of the Standard 
Specifications and Section 600-3, “Rubberized Emulsion—Aggregate Slurry,” of the Standard 
Specifications for Public Works Construction, 2003 edition, and these special provisions. 
 
Slurry seal with rubberized emulsion shall be FlexSeal slurry seal, manufactured by Petrochem 
Manufacturing, Inc., 505 North Tustin Avenue, Suite 280, Santa Ana, California, (714) 836-
4343, or equal, approved by the Engineer prior to bidding. 



C:\Program Files\Neevia.Com\Document Converter\temp\34163.doc SP-23 

MATERIAL: 
 
DELETE Section 600-3.2.1, "Rubberized Polymer Modified Emulsion," and SUBSTITUTE 
the following: 
 

The Rubberized Polymer Modified Emulsion (RPME) shall be slow-set emulsion and 
shall contain asphalt, crumb rubber, and polymer modifiers. 
 
At the time of delivery of each shipment of RPME, the Contractor shall deliver to the 
County certified copies of the test report.  The test report shall indicate the name of the 
vendor, type and grade of asphalt emulsion delivered, date and point of delivery, 
quantity delivered, delivery ticket number, purchase order number, latex brand, 
designation and rate mixed with the emulsified asphalt, and results of the specified tests.  
The test report shall be signed by an authorized representative of the vendor, shall 
certify that the product delivered conforms to the standard specifications and is 
compatible with the proposed aggregate.  At the request of the Engineer, samples of the 
emulsion at the stockpile site will be tested to determine compliance with the above 
requirements.  Testing shall be accomplished by an accredited materials testing 
laboratory approved by the Engineer.  Records of the test results shall be provided to the 
Engineer and the testing required in connection with those results and all additional 
testing shall be provided by the Contractor at no cost to the Agency. 

 
No material from that shipment of emulsion shall be utilized or employed in performance 
of the work until the certified test reports and samples of the material have been 
furnished to, checked by, and approved by the Engineer to determine their conformity 
with the prescribed requirements.  Delays by the Contractor in furnishing the required 
test reports will not be grounds for any extension of contract time. 
 

DELETE Table 600-3.2.4 (C), "Composition of REAS," and ADD the following: 
 

COMPOSITION OF REAS 

Aggregate Type 
RPME % of Dry 

Aggregate Weight 

Residual RPME % 
of Dry Aggregate 

Weight 

Pounds of Dry 
Aggregate per 
Gallon of RPME 

Fine Slurry Aggregate 60 - 80 30 - 40 10.6 - 14.2 

Type I Slurry Aggregate 50 - 75 25 - 38 15.0 - 17.0 

Type II Slurry Aggregate 28 - 35 24 - 36 23.0 - 28.0 

 
ADD to Section 600-3.2.5, "Aggregate," the following: 
 

The Contractor shall schedule and coordinate the delivery of aggregate to the 
stockpile(s) such that: (1) deliveries originate at the plant and arrive at the stockpile site 
no earlier than 7:00 a.m. or later that 4:00 p.m. on the same calendar day, (2) delivery 
site and project name are explicitly stated on each delivery ticket, (3) successive 
deliveries on the same calendar day show the cumulative total for that day, (4) copies of 
all delivery tickets are delivered to the Engineer before the end of the working day, 
whereas any delivery tickets not so delivered may be rejected by the Engineer.  Any 
deviation from this process must have the prior approval of the Engineer. 
 
Type II aggregate shall be used. 



C:\Program Files\Neevia.Com\Document Converter\temp\34163.doc SP-24 

DELETE Table 600-3.2.5 (A), "Gradation of Aggregates," and ADD the following: 
 

GRADATION OF AGGREGATES 

********************  % By Weight Passing Sieve Size  ******************** 

Sieve Size Fine Slurry Aggregate Type I Slurry Aggregate Type II Slurry Aggregate 

4.75mm (No. 4) 100 100 90 - 100 

2.36mm (No. 8) 95 - 100 90 - 100 65 - 90 

1.18mm (No. 16) 75 - 92 65 - 90 45 - 70 

600µm (No.30) 50 -75 40- 60 30 -50 

300µm (No. 50) 35 -50 25 - 42 18 - 36 

150µm (No. 100) 15 -30 15 -30 10 – 24 

75µm (No. 200) 10 - 20 10 - 20 5 – 15 

 
MIX DESIGN: 
 
DELETE Section 600-3.2.8, "Mix Design Submittal," and substitute the following: 
 

At least 15 working days prior to starting the placement of slurry seal, the Contractor, at 
its expense, shall submit a current signed original of mix designs and the test results of 
the slurry components, which include aggregate, emulsion, water, and additives.  Test 
results shall include Consistency Test, Set Time, Cure Time, and the Wet Track 
Abrasion Test (WTAT).  All testing shall be performed with samples that are 
representative of the actual materials to be used. 

 
All material testing and mix designs shall be performed by a qualified laboratory, 
approved by the Engineer, and capable of performing the applicable ASTM and 
California tests. 

 
The laboratory report shall clearly show the proportions of aggregate, filler (minimum 
and maximum), water (minimum and maximum), residual percent asphalt based on dry 
weight of the aggregate, emulsion percent based on dry weight of the aggregate, latex 
brand, designation, rate and method of mixing with the emulsion, additives required for 
an optimum slurry seal mix, and weight per gallon of REAS. 

 
The Engineer will determine if the mix design is best suited to its needs, based upon the 
test results, including the content of emulsion and water needed to produce a slurry with 
a maximum loss of 75 grams per square foot by WTAT.  The standard WTAT template 
may be modified to a thickness of 3.18mm (0.125 in.), when using fine aggregate.  

 
Once the proportions of materials to be used are approved by the Engineer, no 
substitution of other material will be permitted unless the materials proposed for 
substitution are first tested by the same approved laboratory that performed the mix 
design testing, and a laboratory report is submitted for the substituted design as 
specified above.  Substituted materials shall not be used until the mix design for that 
material is approved by the Engineer. 

 



C:\Program Files\Neevia.Com\Document Converter\temp\34163.doc SP-25 

Adjustments may be required during construction, based on field conditions.  The 
Contractor shall obtain the Engineers approval prior to any adjustments. 

 
MIXING AND EQUIPMENT: 
 
DELETE the first and second paragraph from the Section 600-3.3, "Slurry Mixing and 
Spreading Equipment," and SUBSTITUTE the following: 
 

The REAS shall be mixed by a continuous flow mixer per Section 302-4.2.2. 
 

The slurry seal mixing equipment shall be a multi-blade or spiral continuous-flow unit in 
good working condition.  All units used on the project shall have a visual readout display 
and have the means to accurately meter the individual quantities of aggregate, water, 
emulsion, and additives being fed into the mixer.  All feeding mechanisms must be 
continuous feed and proportioning must remain constant at all times. 
 
Calibration for the introduction of emulsion into the mixer shall include pumping the 
emulsion to establish a volumetric consistency within 2.0 percent of the mathematical 
average of 3 runs of at least 300 gallons.  Emulsion pumps shall be equipped with an 
electronic automatic shut-down device which activates and shuts down the belt feeder 
when the emulsion level is lowered. 

 
Variable volume pumps shall be equipped with a lock and shall be locked following 
calibration. 

 
Calibration for the introduction of aggregate into the mixer shall include the delivery of 
aggregate with the volumetric consistency that shall not exceed 2.0 percent of the 
mathematical average of 3 runs of at least 3 tons. 

 
The belt delivering the aggregate to the pugmill shall be equipped with a device to 
monitor the depth of the aggregate being delivered to the pugmill.  Said device for 
monitoring depth of aggregate shall automatically shut down the power to the aggregate 
belt feeder whenever the depth of aggregate is less than 70 percent of the target depth 
flow. 

 
In the event that the metering devices stop working, the slurry units will stop the 
application of slurry until they are fixed. 
 
The spreader box shall be equipped with flexible material in contact with the pavement 
and shall be maintained so as to prevent loss of slurry.  It shall be adjustable to ensure a 
uniform controlled spread and be equipped with a mechanical or hydraulic type 
horizontal shifting device. 
 
The mixture of slurry seal shall not bleed, ravel, separate, or show other signs of distress 
following its placement. 

 



C:\Program Files\Neevia.Com\Document Converter\temp\34163.doc SP-26 

ADD to Section 600-3.3.1, "Field Mixing and Spreading Equipment Calibration," the 
following: 
 

The Contractor shall allow 14 days prior to the start of work for calibration and for all 
required testing at a location to be designated by the Engineer.  The Contractor, at its 
expense, shall arrange for field samples to be obtained at the time of calibration by the 
same approved laboratory that performed the mix design testing. 

 
APPLICATION: 
 
ADD to Section 600-3.4, "Application REAS," the following: 
 

The Contractor shall provide a coordinator, at least one competent and experienced 
slow-set man, one competent and experienced driver for the mixer applying slurry, and 
one shuttle driver for the machine traveling between the stockpile and the job site.  The 
Contractor shall also provide sufficient laborers for any hand work and clean-up required 
to insure proper progress of work. 

 
Pavement to be slurried shall be closed from the time the application begins until the 
Engineer determines the mixture has achieved sufficient set to be opened to traffic.  
Insofar as possible, slurry seal shall be applied to tree shaded areas in the early morning 
to allow proper curing. 
 
At the discretion of the Engineer, the placement of slurry seal may be suspended due to 
unsuitable weather, air or pavement temperature, or other conditions that are considered 
unfavorable for the prosecution of the work.  The Contractor shall immediately comply 
with the written order for suspension by the Engineer, and work shall not be resumed 
until approved by the Engineer in writing. 

 
The days during which the suspension of work is in effect shall not be considered as 
working days as defined in Section 6-7.3, "Contract Time Accounting," and the date of 
completion shall be extended accordingly.  In the event of a suspension of work, the 
Contractor shall provide for satisfactory passage of traffic through any incomplete 
portions of the project.  No adjustment of unit prices of any items or other increase 
compensation shall be allowed due to a suspension of work as described above. 

 
Prior to applying slurry, all vegetation previously sprayed with an herbicide shall be 
removed from cracks in the pavement and joints between the pavement and concrete 
gutters by the Contractor.  Prior to applying slurry, all raised pavement markers shall be 
removed by the Contractor.  The surface to be sealed shall be cleaned by the Contractor 
by washing, heating, scraping, or other means necessary to remove moisture, dirt, 
grease, or other foreign matter which would reduce the bond between the slurry and the 
pavement.  Immediately ahead of the mixer, the pavement shall be pre-wetted by a 
pressure water distribution system equipped with a fog type spray bar which will 
completely dampen the surface of the pavement.  The rate of application will be 
determined by the Engineer based upon pavement conditions at the time of application. 
 
Temporary pavement marker tabs shall be placed along all pavement striping and at 
crosswalks and stop bars prior to the slurry sealing operation.  They shall be 
reflectorized markers, Type W-1, Type Y-1, or Type Y-2 depending upon their placement 
location and shall have a removable clear protective covers that shall be removed 



C:\Program Files\Neevia.Com\Document Converter\temp\34163.doc SP-27 

following the slurry sealing operation.  They shall be placed at 50’ intervals for continual 
line striping and on every other dashed line for broken line striping, or as directed by the 
Engineer to provide visible lane delineation. 
 
Slurry shall be applied utilizing such equipment and methods such that no longitudinal or 
transverse ridges are noticeable either visually or in vehicle ride quality.  All loose 
aggregate shall be removed by sweeping within 24 hours after application. 
 
The Contractor shall repair, replace, or reseal all areas of the pavement which have not 
been properly or completely sealed, which have been damaged by traffic due to 
premature opening or softening from warm weather, or which develop bleeding, raveling, 
separation or other distress.  All remedial repairs shall be completed within 14 days after 
notification by the Engineer and shall be completed at no cost to the County. 

 
During slurry seal operations it shall be the Contractor's responsibility to thoroughly and 
adequately protect all manhole covers, water valve covers and utility vault covers, all 
survey monumentation, and all drainage facilities.  The Contractor shall employ all 
means necessary to protect and clean these existing facilities to their original condition 
or shall bear the cost to replace them where necessary. 

 
Any manhole cover, water valve cover, utility vault cover or drainage facility cover found 
to be inadequately protected and cleaned shall be cleaned by means such as 
sandblasting to remove all slurry material (including material remaining from previous 
applications) from the metal surface or it shall be replaced by the Contractor at its 
expense. 

 
A sand blotter shall be spread at selected driveways, intersections, or other areas 
designated by the Engineer to accommodate pedestrian or vehicular traffic until the 
slurry sets.  Sand blotters at intersections shall be swept within 14 hours of placement or 
sooner if directed by the Engineer.  Failure to remove sand blotters within 14 hours will 
result in removal by City forces and the costs of the removal charged to the Contractor. 

 
The start and finish of a slurry application shall be a straight line which, unless otherwise 
approved by the Engineer, shall be obtained by laying a strip of building paper or other 
material, approved by the Engineer, on the pavement surface.  After application of slurry, 
the paper shall be removed, leaving a straight edge. 

 
Spillage resulting from hauling operations along or across any publicly travel way shall 
be removed immediately by the Contractor at its expense. 

 
DELETE Table 600-3.4 (A), "RPME Application Rates," and SUBSTITUTE the following: 
 

RPME APPLICATION RATES 

Aggregate Type Application Rate Square Feet/Gallon of RPME 

Fine Slurry Aggregate 35 – 40 

Type I Slurry Aggregate 28 – 35 

Type II Slurry Aggregate 24 – 30 

 
 



C:\Program Files\Neevia.Com\Document Converter\temp\34163.doc SP-28 

FIELD SAMPLING: 
 
DELETE the first sentence of Section 302-4.3.3, "Field Sampling," and SUBSTITUTE the 
following: 
 

The Contractor shall arrange and schedule quality control testing of the slurry seal 
mixture, which shall include all the components necessary and required in the laboratory 
approved mix design.   

 
The costs of sampling and testing will be considered as included in the contract unit 
price paid for the REAS. 

 
The testing and sampling shall be performed by a representative of the same qualified 
and approved laboratory who provided the mix design, and shall be capable of 
performing the designated sampling and testing.  The Engineer may, at any time during 
the project, suspend work in order to verify or interpret test results. 

 
During the performance of the work, the Contractor shall arrange for taking at least 2 
field samples of the mixed slurry per slurry mixer, per day, for the purpose of wet track 
abrasion tests. 

 
The slurry seal mixture sample shall be taken from the mixing truck by a qualified 
technician from the approved material testing laboratory. 

 
Test results for the slurry seal mixture used during the course of the job will be based on 
random samples taken from the slurry seal mixing truck pugmill at the time the material 
is being placed.  These test results shall comply with the requirements of the wet track 
abrasion test, ASTM D3910, these special provisions, and the following values: 

 
Requirements 

ASTM Tests Test Method 
Minimum Maximum 

Wet Track Abrasion Test 
(Weight Loss Grams per Square Foot) 

D 3910 0 75 

Consistency Test (CMS) D 3910 20 30 

Extraction Test (Emulsion Content, Percentage) D2172 ±1.0 percent of mix design 

Water Content,  
Percentage of Dry Aggregate Weight 

D2172  25 

 
NOTE:  It is brought to the Contractor's attention that the results from the field sampling 
and testing will be compared to the results of the design testing performed prior to the 
starting of the job. 
 
The slurry mixture sampled shall be of aggregate, asphalt emulsion, water, and 
additives, and shall be mixed in the slurry truck mixer and spreader.  It shall reflect the 
same slurry produced in the approved mix design and shall be prepared to a 
homogeneous flowing consistency and shall meet the requirements of the consistency 
test. 

 



C:\Program Files\Neevia.Com\Document Converter\temp\34163.doc SP-29 

The slurry seal mixture sample taken from the slurry truck mixer shall be formed into a 
disk by pouring it in the circular opening of a poly (methyl) methacrylate (PMMA) 
template resting on a larger circlet of roofing felt. 

 
The method for testing shall follow ASTM D3910, as follows:  After removal of the 
template, the disk-shaped specimen is dried to constant weight at 140°F.  The cured 
slurry is placed in a water bath for one hour, then mechanically abraded under water 
with a rubber hose for 5 minutes.  The abraded specimen is washed free of debris, dried 
at 140°F and weighed.  The loss in weight expressed as grams per square foot is 
reported as the wear value (WTAT loss).  

 
ADD to Section 302-4.3.3, "Field Sampling," the following: 
 

The Contractor shall arrange and schedule an aggregate moisture test taken for each 
day of the slurry operation.  Results of the test shall be submitted to the Engineer for 
review. 

 
The Contractor shall perform an aggregate gradation test (ASTM 136) for every 250 tons 
of aggregate used during the job. 

 
The Contractor shall perform at least one sieve analysis test (ASTMD244) for each load 
of emulsion delivered to the job site.  An additional sieve analysis test shall be performed 
on the first day for each work-week that the job is in progress. 

 
PAYMENT RETAINMENT FOR NONCOMPLIANCE: 
 
DELETE Section 302-4.6, "Payment Reduction for Noncompliance," and SUBSTITUTE the 
following: 
 

Payment to the Contractor will be retained for failure to comply with Wet Track Abrasion 
Testing requirements stated in Section 302-4.3.3, "Field Sampling."  The percent 
retainment in payment for failure to comply will be based on requirements stated in the 
Payment Retainment Table.  Retainment in payment will be applied to the total of all the 
material placed by all the mixers per day. 

 
If the average of all Wet Track Abrasion Tests made for all the mixers used during a 
one-day period fails to conform to the requirements specified in Section 302-4.3.3, the 
Contractor agrees that payments for the work represented that day shall be retained as 
follows: 

 

WTAT Loss (Grams Per Square Foot) Payment Retainment 

0 – 75 0 

75.1 – 85 5 percent 

85.1 – 95 15 percent 

95.1 – 105 30 percent 

105.1 – 115 70 percent 

115.1 or greater 100 percent 

 



C:\Program Files\Neevia.Com\Document Converter\temp\34163.doc SP-30 

STOCKPILES: 
 
The Contractor shall be responsible for locating and securing permission to use any site it 
deems necessary for the stockpiling of materials.  Prior to placing aggregate on private property, 
the Contractor shall submit to the Engineer written permission from the property owner for such 
stockpiling.   
 
Where stockpile sites are located in areas adjacent to residential areas or noise sensitive areas, 
the Contractor shall take measures to minimize construction related noise during the early A.M. 
hours, which may include performing preparatory operations for the following days work on the 
night before. The Contractor shall conduct its operations in these areas to conform to the sound 
control requirements of these special provisions. 
 
Necessary precautions, including preparatory cleaning of stockpile sites and covering 
stockpiles, shall be taken as required to insure that stockpiles do not become contaminated with 
oversized rock, clay, silt, or excessive amounts of moisture.  All aggregate deposited shall be 
done in an orderly manner, minimizing the space required and progressing from the farthest 
corner of the site to the access point.  The stockpiles shall be kept in areas that drain readily.  
Stockpiles of Type I and Type II aggregate shall be physically separated and deliveries shall be 
monitored and controlled to prevent intermixing of aggregate. 
 
The stockpile areas shall be thoroughly cleaned, removing all excess material and all material 
contaminated by spilled oil, and left with a neat, orderly appearance upon completion of slurry 
operations in that area. 
 
MEASUREMENT AND PAYMENT: 
 
DELETE Section 600-3.7, "Measurement and Payment," and SUBSTITUTE the following: 
 

The REAS will be paid based on the gallons of RPME used.  Measurement of RPME 
shall be the gallon computed by dividing the weight obtained from Certified Weighmaster 
Certificates by 8.5 lbs./gal.  At the end of each working day, the Contractor shall inform 
the Engineer, in writing, as to the number of slurry truck loads or partial truck loads of 
aggregate removed that day, and shall provide a total of aggregate and emulsion 
quantities used per slurry mixer loaded.  
 
The aggregate which is stockpiled at a given stockpile site in accordance with the 
provisions herein shall be used for this project only.  Certified weight tickets shall be 
presented to the Engineer immediately upon delivery to each site; late submittal shall be 
considered grounds for rejection. Upon completion of the slurry seal operations in an 
area, all excess stockpiled aggregate shall be completely removed, weighed, and 
certified weight tickets submitted to the Engineer.  The Contractor shall notify the 
Engineer at least 24 hours prior to the time that excess aggregate is to be removed from 
a stockpile site. 
 
Payment will be determined by deducting the amount of the unused material from the 
total amount of material delivered. 
 
Payment for services provided by the Agency-approved laboratory for sampling and 
testing of the slurry seal mix components following approval of a mix design, of which 
the components shall include the asphalt emulsion, aggregate, additive, and water; and 



C:\Program Files\Neevia.Com\Document Converter\temp\34163.doc SP-31 

the slurry seal mix sampling and testing from field samples shall be considered as 
included in the contract unit price for RPME and no additional compensation will be 
allowed. 

 
Payment for RUBBERIZED POLYMER MODIFIED EMULSION (RPME) will be made at 
the contract unit price per gallon of RPME (excluding aggregate) which shall include full 
compensation for furnishing the complete Rubberized Emulsion Aggregate Slurry 
(REAS) material (including aggregate), all labor, materials, tools, equipment and 
incidentals required for all necessary property owner notification, posting of "No Parking" 
signs, traffic control, vegetation removal and pavement cleaning, protecting, cleaning or 
replacing all existing manhole covers, utility covers, and drainage facilities, placing 
temporary pavement markers, mix design material testing and providing of mix design, 
mixing and placing REAS, sanding and sweeping for traffic access, removing excess 
slurry, repairing damaged or improperly cured slurry, securing and cleaning stockpile 
areas, and clean-up in accordance with the plans and these special provisions and no 
additional compensation will be allowed therefor.   

 
 



 
 

     

 

 

     AGENDA REPORT 

 

 
Meeting Date 

 

 

February 5, 2007  

 
Agenda Title 
 

Melinda Park Restroom – CIP 308   

 
 
Recommended Action 
 

(1) Issue a purchase order to RJM Design Group, Inc. for the design & development of construction 

documents for bidding and construction support services for Melinda Park Restroom in an amount not to 

exceed $29,600.  

 
 
Executive Summary 

 

On January 2, 2007 the City Council gave staff direction to re-bid the plans and specifications for the Melinda 

Park restroom project due to non responsive bids received in December 2006. This project will re-bid in 

January 2007, and the bid results will be presented to City Council in March 2007 for consideration. 

The award of this contract to RJM Design Group is to cover the cost of plan preparation.  

 

 

 
 
Previous Relevant Council Actions for This Item 
 

08/21/06 – Presented alternatives to the City Council on optional prefabricated restroom manufacturers 

10/16/06 – Approved request to advertise  

1/2/07- Council directs staff to reject all bids and re-bid the project. 

 
 
Attachments 
 

1.  Exhibit A - Summary of Expenses/Available Budget 

2.  Exhibit B - RJM Proposal for design and development of construction documents and construction              

                 support services 

 
 
Fiscal Impact: 
 

Amount Requested  $  29,600 
Sufficient Budgeted Funds Available?:  Yes _X_  No __     
Prog/Fund # ________  Category:  Pers. ___  Optg. ___  Cap. ___   -or-   CIP#308          Fund #s 101 General;  

           245 Park Development 
            Fees 

 
Prepared By 
 

 
 

W. Keith Rattay 

Director of Public Services 

 

 
Reviewed By 
 

 
 

Irwin Bornstein 

Asst City Mgr/Dir of Admin Services 

 
Reviewed By 
 

 
 

William P. Curley, III 

City Attorney 

 
Submitted By 
 

 
Dennis Wilberg 

City Manager 

    

 



C:\Program Files\Neevia.Com\Document Converter\temp\34169.doc 

EXHIBIT A 

 

Summary of Expenses/Available Budget 

Melinda Park Restroom – CIP 308 

February 5, 2007 

. 
 
 

    
 
 Original Budget       $ 35,000.00 
 
  

Expenditures to date: 
 
 OCB Reprographics    $    343.72   
 Orange County Register   $    142.80 
 Sir Speedy     $    156.32 
 RJM Design Group, Inc   $11,606.92 
  Total                  ($ 12,249.76) 
 
Remaining Balance       $  22,750.24 
 

 
RJM Design Group, Inc     ($ 29,600.00) 

 
 Remaining Balance       ($    6,849.76) 

 
Money Transferred from CIP      $     7,000.00 
990 Site Security Lighting and 
991 Youth Athletic Park 
 
Remaining Available Budget      $         150.24 
  

 
  













 
 

     

 

 

     AGENDA REPORT 

 

 
Meeting Date 

 

February 5, 2007 

 

 
Agenda Title 

 

Replacement of Casework and Countertops at the Mission Viejo Animal Services Center 
 
Recommended Action 

 

Award contract for the subject services to Mica Industries in an amount not to exceed $40,000. 
 
Executive Summary 

 

The operating budget for Fiscal Year 2006-2007 includes funds for the replacement of the Animal Services 

Center’s main lobby reception casework and countertops.  In December 2006, in compliance with the City 

purchasing policies, city staff advertised and notified potential contractors and on January 8th, 2007 received 

no formal bids after advertising in trade journals and local papers and directly contacting a total of five 

companies.  In accordance with the Uniform Public Construction Cost Accounting Act and Public Contract 

Code Section 22038, because no formal bids were received through the public bid process, staff is able to 

directly contact companies to seek bids.  City staff received two bids. Mica Industries is the apparent low 

bidder, and staff is recommending awarding a contract to Mica Industries.  The current lobby countertops and 

casework are in a state of disrepair and are not laid out in a functional manner.  This replacement will enable 

additional volunteers and staff to work together in serving the public.  The funds for this effort are budgeted 

from the Animal Services budget and proportionally shared between Mission Viejo and Laguna Niguel. 

 

The work will be completed to reduce the amount of disturbance to the general public and the animals at the 

Center. 
 
Previous Relevant Council Actions for This Item 

 

None. 
 
Attachments 

 

1) Exhibit A – Bid Recap 

     2)  Exhibit B – Mica Industries Proposal 
 
Fiscal Impact: 
 

Amount Requested  $40,000  (to complete project) 
Sufficient Budgeted Funds Available?:  Yes _X_  No __    (If no, see attached fiscal analysis) 
Prog/Fund # 314560  Category:  Pers. ___  Optg. 8100  Cap. ___   -or-   CIP#______  Fund#______ 

 
Prepared By 
 

 
 

W. Keith Rattay 

Director of Public Services 

 
Reviewed By 
 

 
 

Irwin Bornstein 

Asst City Mgr/Dir of Admin Svcs 

 
Reviewed By 
 

 
 

William P. Curley, III 

City Attorney 

 
Submitted By 
 

 
Dennis R. Wilberg 

City Manager 

 



ANIMAL SERVICES LOBBY 

 

Bid Recap 

January 29, 2007 

 

 

 

 

 

Tahiti Cabinets      $48,737.25 

 

MICA Industries      $40,000 

 

Moen Cabinets      No bid 

 

Advanced Surfaces      No bid 





























 
 

     

 

 

     AGENDA REPORT 

 

 
Meeting Date 

 

February 5, 2007 

 

 
Agenda Title 
 

Ratification of Emergency Purchase Order to Replace the Boiler for the Library’s Heating/Ventilating/Air 

Conditioning (HVAC) System. 

 

 
 
Recommended Action 
 

Ratify Purchase Order #070273 issued under the City Manager’s emergency purchase authority to Emcor 

Company on January 19, 2007 in the amount of $24,183.00, for the replacement of the roof-top water boiler 

unit for the Library’s HVAC system. 

 

 
 
Executive Summary 
 

On January 12, 2007, the Mission Viejo Library’s HVAC hot water boiler that supplies heat to the entire 

Library facility was non-functional and could not be repaired.  A replacement unit was needed promptly.  Bids 

were informally solicited by City staff for the removal and replacement of the HVAC boiler.  Emcor Company 

was chosen from the three bidders to provide the emergency replacement. Emcor was not the lowest bidder but 

they were the only firm who could deliver the product with a short and reasonable time frame.  

 

 

 
 
Previous Relevant Council Actions for This Item 
 

n/a 

 
 
Attachments 
 

1. Exhibit A – Emergency Purchase Authorization 

2. Exhibit B – Purchase Order No. 070273 

 
 
Fiscal Impact: 
 

Amount Requested: $24,183.00  
Sufficient Budgeted Funds Available?:  Yes X     No __    (If no, see attached fiscal analysis) 

Prog/Fund # 554201  Category:  Pers. ___  Optg. 7500   Cap.  ___ -or- CIP # ___ Fund # ___ 

 

 
Prepared By 

 

 
W. Keith Rattay 

Director of Public Services 

 
Reviewed By 
 

 
 

Irwin Bornstein 

Asst City Mgr/Dir of Admin Svc 

 
Reviewed By 
 

 
 

William P. Curley III 

City Attorney 

 
Submitted By 
 

 
Dennis R. Wilberg 

City Manager 

 























RESOLUTION 07-XX 

 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE 

CITY OF MISSION VIEJO TERMINATING THE  

EL TORO REUSE PLANNING AUTHORITY 

 

 

 WHEREAS, the El Toro Reuse Planning Authority was formed pursuant to a joint 

powers agreement among the cities of Aliso Viejo, Dana Point, Irvine, Laguna Beach, Laguna Hills, 

Laguna Niguel, Laguna Woods, Lake Forest, Mission Viejo, and Rancho Santa Margarita and the 

County of Orange; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the primary mission and purpose of the El Toro Reuse Planning Authority 

was to plan and promote a non-aviation reuse of the Marine Corps Air State El Toro; and  

 

 WHEREAS, all of the property inside the boundaries of the MCAS El Toro has now 

been annexed to the City of Irvine; and  

 

 WHEREAS, the city of Irvine has planned a non-aviation reuse for the El Toro property; 

and  

 

 WHEREAS, a non-aviation reuse of El Toro is now assured; and  

 

 WHEREAS, the joint powers agreement would terminate and the El Toro Reuse 

Planning Authority would be dissolved upon withdrawal of the Authority’s members; and  

 

 WHEREAS, the Board of Directors of the El Toro Reuse Planning Authority, by the 

adoption of the Resolution No. 2007-01, on January 22, 2007, declared that the Authority’s mission has 

been accomplished and the Authority is no longer needed and requested that all member agencies adopt 

a resolution dissolving the El Toro Reuse Planning Authority no later than March 31, 2007. 

 

 NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the City Council takes the following 

actions on behalf of the City of Mission Viejo: 

 

1. Withdraws from the El Toro Reuse Planning Authority. 

2. Agrees to the termination and dissolution of the El Toro Reuse Planning 

Authority.. 

3. Directs that the City Clerk convey a certified copy of this Resolution to the El 

Toro Reuse Planning Authority. 

 

PASSED, APPROVED AND ADOPTED this 5
th
 day of February, 2007. 

 

      ____________________________ 

      Gail Reavis 

      Mayor 

 



I HEREBY CERTIFY that the foregoing Resolution was duly adopted by the City 

Council of the City of Mission Viejo at a regular meeting thereof, held on the 5th day of February, 2007, 

by the following vote of the Council: 

 

AYES: 

NOES: 

ABSENT: 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

___________________ 

Karen Hamman 

City Clerk 







 
\cd\wp\ccreport\ULI TAP Panel Presentation-RPT 

     

 

 

     AGENDA REPORT 
 

 
Meeting Date 

 

February 5, 2007 

 
Agenda Title 

 

Urban Land Institute (ULI) Technical Advisory Panel (TAP) Workshop for Mission Viejo Village Center Area 

Generally Located in Vicinity of the Intersection of Marguerite Parkway and La Paz Road 
 
Recommended Action 

 

1) Receive presentation from representatives of ULI; 2) if interested, review and comment on the proposed draft TAP 

Workshop Scope of Work; and 3) determine the role the City Council in the TAP process.  
 
Executive Summary 

 

Background 

One of the City Council’s goals in the Fiscal Year 2006-07 performance review for the City Manager is to develop a 

plan to work with the numerous owners for the rehabilitation or renovation of the commercial property across the street 

from City Hall.  Last August staff had met with representatives from the Urban Land Institute (ULI) and CB Richard 

Ellis (CBRE) to discuss the commercial property across the street from City Hall.  Both ULI and CBRE felt optimistic 

about the potential for change to the area but noted it would take some time to implement due to multiple owners.  Staff 

was intrigued by the ULI approach.  The ULI representatives suggested that the City enter into an agreement with ULI to 

have a Technical Advisory Panel (TAP) review the shopping center and surrounding area for planning and development 

advice and recommendations.  The City of Laguna Niguel recently utilized this approach with their Laguna Niguel 

Gateway Specific Plan area along the west side of the I-5 Freeway near Crown Valley Parkway.  

 

ULI TAP Process 

ULI is a non-profit organization with the mission “to provide responsible leadership in the use of land in order to 

enhance the total environment.”  The ULI is based in Washington, D.C. with regional offices in may metropolitan areas 

across the Country.  The ULI provides independent research and analysis on cutting edge real estate development 

practices and trends.  It is a multi-disciplinary organization committed to furthering the best practices in land use 

development.             

            CONTINUED 
 
Previous Relevant Council Actions for This Item 

None. 
 
Attachments 

Exhibit A. ULI Background Information. 

Exhibit B.  ULI TAP Agreement. 

Exhibit C. ULI TAP Draft Scope of Work 

Exhibit D.  Aerial Map and Property Owner Map of Proposed ULI TAP Study Area. 

Exhibit E. Letter dated August 25, 2006 from Ted Snell and Allison Schneider of CBRE for comparison.  
 
Fiscal Impact: 
 

Amount Requested  N/A  

Sufficient Budgeted Funds Available?:  Yes __  No __     

Prog/Fund # ________  Category:  Pers. ___  Optg. ___  Cap. ___   -or-   CIP#______  Fund#______   
 
Prepared By 

 

 
 

Charles E. Wilson 

 Community Development Director  

 
Reviewed By 

 

 
 

Irwin Bornstein 

Asst City Mgr/Dir of Admin Svcs. 

 
Reviewed By 

 

 
 

William P. Curley III 

City Attorney 

 
Submitted By 

 

 
Dennis R. Wilberg 

City Manager 

 



 
\cd\wp\ccreport\ULI TAP Panel Presentation-RPT 

 

 

Page 2 

 

In addition to publishing an extensive library of books and technical reports on land use development, the ULI 

provides organizations with local technical expertise.  One approach used by the ULI is to conduct a Technical 

Advisory Panel workshop to evaluate and make general recommendations regarding future development and 

revitalization opportunities and implementation recommendations.  The ULI suggests the City enter into an 

agreement to participate in a 1-3/4 day workshop for the Mission Viejo Village Center Area. The agreement is 

identified in Exhibit B of this report. The TAP would be a panel of ULI experts who collectively have varied 

and broad knowledge applicable to the particular problems to be considered, including the planning, 

development and redevelopment of land and the ownership, management and financing of real property.   

 

The first day of the TAP would involve a study tour of the area, briefing and stakeholder interviews with City 

officials, City staff, and area property owners and businesses.  The second day would involve working sessions 

and a presentation of the panel’s findings and recommendations.   

 

Study Area and Scope of Work 

The City of Mission Viejo’s geographic center is a combination of commercial, office, public facility, and 

recreation uses generally located in vicinity of the intersection of Marguerite Parkway and La Paz Road.  This 

area includes a civic center with a city hall and public library; several large commercial centers with retail 

stores, offices, restaurants, and automobile repair shops; Thomas R. Potocki conference center; Norman P. 

Murray Community and Senior Center; Oso Viejo sports fields; and Oso Creek and existing trail system.  There 

has been minimal new development or revitalization of existing properties within the Mission Viejo Village 

Center area, especially the large commercial center southeasterly of the intersection of Marguerite Parkway and 

La Paz Road.  A fragmented ownership pattern, dated architectural design, an abundance of surface parking 

lots, minimal landscaping, and the lack of a pedestrian environment are obstacles hindering the establishment of 

a downtown or town center for this area.  A key question is what type or types of development opportunity is 

the missing ingredient to catalyze new development and revitalization.  If there is a market for a different type 

of development, what are the appropriate product types and where should they be located?  If the City Council 

is interested in the ULI TAP process, staff requests that the City Council review and comment on the draft 

scope of work referenced in Exhibit C of this report.  The proposed Study Area is referenced in Exhibit D of 

this report.  

 

Fiscal Impact 

The cost of the ULI TAP is $14,750.00 and is a relatively inexpensive cost-effective way for the City to 

understand the development potential and revitalization opportunities of the Mission Viejo Village Center Area 

from the perspectives of a broad field of experts in the land development business.    If interested in the 

proposal staff would return at a subsequent Council meeting with approval of the agreement.   

 

City Council Role in the TAP Process 

The role of the City Council in the TAP process would need to be defined.  It is customary for TAP members to 

invite members of the City Council to participate in stakeholder interviews.  One option is for the City Council 

to designate two (2) representatives to participate in the interview process.  However, if a majority of the City 

council wanted to be involved in the TAP interview process, then it would be necessary to notice and conduct a 

Special Meeting of the City Council for that portion of the process. 

 

A second issue is whether the City Council wants to be present at the conclusion of the TAP for the verbal 

presentation on the TAP findings, conclusions, and recommendations. In this case a Special Meeting of the City 

Council would need to be noticed and conducted for that purpose.  As an alternative, a verbal report could be 

presented to City Staff and the final written report could be presented to the City Council at a subsequent 

regular or special meeting.   







































 
 

     

 

 

     AGENDA REPORT 

 

 
Meeting Date 

 

February 5, 2007 

 

 
Agenda Title 

 

COUNCIL MEMBER REPORTS OF EVENTS AND ACTIVITIES ATTENDED 

 
 
Recommended Action 

 

Receive reports. 

 
 
Executive Summary 
 

AB 1234, the new State law regarding expense reimbursements that went into effect January 1, 2006, requires 

regular reporting in a public meeting of activities and events attended by members of City legislative 

bodies. The law requires such reports be made at the next regular meeting following attendance at the event. 

(Government Code Section 53232.3(d).) 

  

Following are brief written reports of events attended by Council members at City expense since the last City 

Council meeting, as taken from Councilmember calendars.  Council members may wish to elaborate or add 

additional information at the meeting. 
 

 

 

 

 

 
 
Previous Relevant Council Actions for This Item 

 

 

 
 
Attachments 

 

Reports of Events and Activities Attended 

 

 
 
Fiscal Impact: 
 

Amount Requested  $ 
Sufficient Budgeted Funds Available?:  Yes __  No __    (If no, see attached fiscal analysis) 
Prog/Fund # ________  Category:  Pers. ___  Optg. ___  Cap. ___   -or-   CIP#______  Fund#______ 

 
Prepared By 
 

                      
Kathy Rios 

Sr. Executive Assistant 

 
Reviewed By 
 

 
 

Irwin Bornstein 

Asst City Mgr/Dir of Admin Services 

 
Reviewed By 
 

 
 

William P. Curley, III 

City Attorney 

 
Submitted By 
 

 
Dennis Wilberg 

City Manager 

 



A
B
 1
2
3
4
 R
E
P
O
R
T

N
a
m
e
:

G
a
il
 R
e
a
v
is
 1
0
1
-1
0
1
-7
7
3
9

0
1
/1
6
/0
7
 -
 0
2
/0
5
/0
7

L
a
s
t 
R
e
v
is
e
d
: 
0
2
/0
5
/0
7

D
a
te

E
v
e
n
t

P
u
rp
o
s
e

F
ro
m
/T
o

F
ro
m
/T
o

1
/1
7
/2
0
0
7

M
e
e
ti
n
g
 w
it
h
 U
L
I 
re
: 
im
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
t 
s
tu
d
y
 

p
ro
p
o
s
a
l 
o
n
 s
h
o
p
p
in
g
 c
e
n
te
r 
a
c
ro
s
s
 t
h
e
 

s
tr
e
e
t

T
o
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 a
n
d
 p
a
rt
ic
ip
a
te
 

a
s
 a
 c
it
y
 o
ff
ic
ia
l.

H
o
m
e
/C
it
y
 H
a
ll

C
it
y
 H
a
ll
/H
o
m
e

1
/1
7
/2
0
0
7

R
o
g
e
r 
F
a
u
b
e
l 
 P
ro
d
u
c
t 
p
re
s
e
n
ta
ti
o
n

T
o
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 a
n
d
 p
a
rt
ic
ip
a
te
 

a
s
 a
 c
it
y
 o
ff
ic
ia
l.

H
o
m
e
/C
la
im
 J
u
m
p
e
r 
2
7
8
4
5
 

S
a
n
ta
 M
a
rg
a
ri
ta
, 
M
V

C
la
im
 J
u
m
p
e
r,
 2
7
8
4
5
 

S
a
n
ta
 M
a
rg
a
ri
ta
, 
M
V
/H
o
m
e

1
/1
8
/2
0
0
7

S
O
C
A
M
 M
e
e
ti
n
g

T
o
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 a
n
d
 p
a
rt
ic
ip
a
te
 

a
s
 a
 c
it
y
 o
ff
ic
ia
l.

H
o
m
e
/D
o
v
e
 C
a
n
y
o
n
 C
o
u
n
tr
y
 

C
lu
b
, 
2
2
6
8
2
 G
o
lf
 C
lu
b
 D
ri
v
e
, 

R
S
M

D
o
v
e
 C
a
n
y
o
n
 C
o
u
n
tr
y
 

C
lu
b
, 
2
2
6
8
2
 G
o
lf
 C
lu
b
 

D
ri
v
e
, 
R
S
M
/H
o
m
e

1
/1
8
/2
0
0
7

O
C
 R
o
u
n
ta
b
le
 L
u
n
c
h
e
o
n

T
o
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 a
n
d
 p
a
rt
ic
ip
a
te
 

a
s
 a
 c
it
y
 o
ff
ic
ia
l.

H
o
m
e
/T
ig
e
r 
W
o
o
d
s
 L
e
a
rn
in
g
 

C
e
n
te
r,
 5
2
0
 N
. 
G
il
b
e
rt
 S
tr
e
e
t,
 

A
n
a
h
e
im

T
ig
e
r 
W
o
o
d
s
 L
e
a
rn
in
g
 

C
e
n
te
r,
 5
2
0
 N
. 
G
il
b
e
rt
 

S
tr
e
e
t,
 A
n
a
h
e
im
/H
o
m
e

1
/1
8
/2
0
0
7

In
t.
 W

a
s
te
 M
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
M
e
e
ti
n
g

T
o
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 a
n
d
 p
a
rt
ic
ip
a
te
 

a
s
 a
 b
o
a
rd
 m
e
m
b
e
r 
fo
r 
th
e
 

c
it
y
.

H
o
m
e
/ 
3
2
0
 N
o
rt
h
 F
lo
w
e
r 

S
tr
e
e
t,
 2
n
d
 F
lo
o
r,
 M
u
lt
i 

P
u
rp
o
s
e
 R
o
o
m
, 
S
a
n
ta
 A
n
a

H
o
m
e
/ 
3
2
0
 N
o
rt
h
 F
lo
w
e
r 

S
tr
e
e
t,
 2
n
d
 F
lo
o
r,
 M
u
lt
i 

P
u
rp
o
s
e
 R
o
o
m
, 
S
a
n
ta
 A
n
a

1
/1
8
/2
0
0
7

V
e
c
to
r 
C
o
n
tr
o
l 
M
e
e
ti
n
g

T
o
 p
a
rt
ic
ip
a
te
 a
s
 a
 b
o
a
rd
 

m
e
m
b
e
r 
o
n
 b
e
h
a
lf
 o
f 
th
e
 

C
it
y
.

H
o
m
e
/1
3
0
0
1
 G
a
rd
e
n
 G
ro
v
e
 

B
lv
d
, 
G
a
rd
e
n
 G
ro
v
e

1
3
0
0
1
 G
a
rd
e
n
 G
ro
v
e
 B
lv
d
, 

G
a
rd
e
n
 G
ro
v
e
/H
o
m
e

1
/1
8
/2
0
0
7

L
O
C
C
 G
e
n
e
ra
l 
M
e
e
ti
n
g

T
o
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 a
n
d
 p
a
rt
ic
ip
a
te
 

a
s
 a
 c
it
y
 o
ff
ic
ia
l.

H
o
m
e
/W

e
s
tm

in
s
te
r 
R
o
s
e
 

C
e
n
te
r,
 1
4
1
4
0
 A
ll
 A
m
e
ri
c
a
n
 

W
a
y
(f
o
rm

e
rl
y
 M
o
n
ro
e
 S
t.
) 

W
e
s
tm

in
s
te
r

W
e
s
tm

in
s
te
r 
R
o
s
e
 C
e
n
te
r,
 

1
4
1
4
0
 A
ll
 A
m
e
ri
c
a
n
 

W
a
y
(f
o
rm

e
rl
y
 M
o
n
ro
e
 S
t.
) 

W
e
s
tm

in
s
te
r/
H
o
m
e

1
/2
0
/2
0
0
7

R
ib
b
o
n
 C
u
tt
in
g
 f
o
r 
C
ru
is
e
 H
o
li
d
a
y
s
 o
f 

M
V

T
o
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 a
n
d
 p
a
rt
ic
ip
a
te
 

a
s
 a
 c
it
y
 o
ff
ic
ia
l.

H
o
m
e
/2
7
7
0
6
0
 S
a
n
ta
 

M
a
rg
a
ri
ta
 P
k
w
y
, 
M
V

2
7
7
0
6
0
 S
a
n
ta
 M
a
rg
a
ri
ta
 

P
k
w
y
, 
M
V
/H
o
m
e

1
/2
0
/2
0
0
7

G
ra
n
d
 O
p
e
n
in
g
 o
f 
J
a
g
u
a
r 
L
a
n
d
 R
o
v
e
r 

M
is
s
io
n
 V
ie
jo

T
o
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 a
n
d
 p
a
rt
ic
ip
a
te
 

a
s
 a
 c
it
y
 o
ff
ic
ia
l.

H
o
m
e
/J
a
g
u
a
r 
L
a
n
d
 R
o
v
e
r 

2
8
7
0
1
 M
a
rg
u
e
ri
te
 P
k
w
y
, 
M
V

J
a
g
u
a
r 
L
a
n
d
 R
o
v
e
r 
2
8
7
0
1
 

M
a
rg
u
e
ri
te
 P
k
w
y
, 

M
V
/H
o
m
e



1
/2
3
/2
0
0
7

O
C
 B
u
s
in
e
s
s
 C
o
u
n
c
il
 A
n
n
u
a
l 
D
in
n
e
r

T
o
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 a
n
d
 p
a
rt
ic
ip
a
te
 

a
s
 a
 c
it
y
 o
ff
ic
ia
l.

H
o
m
e
/H
y
a
tt
 R
e
g
e
n
c
y
 I
rv
in
e
, 

1
7
9
0
0
 J
a
m
b
o
re
e
 R
o
a
d
, 
Ir
v
in
e

H
y
a
tt
 R
e
g
e
n
c
y
 I
rv
in
e
, 

1
7
9
0
0
 J
a
m
b
o
re
e
 R
o
a
d
, 

Ir
v
in
e
/H
o
m
e

1
/2
4
/2
0
0
7

L
O
C
C
 E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 S
te
e
ri
n
g
 C
o
m
m
it
te
e
 

M
e
e
ti
n
g

T
o
 p
a
rt
ic
ip
a
te
 a
s
 a
 b
o
a
rd
 

m
e
m
b
e
r 
o
n
 b
e
h
a
lf
 o
f 
th
e
 

C
it
y
.

H
o
m
e
/6
0
0
 W

e
s
t 
S
a
n
ta
 A
n
a
 

B
lv
d
.,
 S
a
n
ta
 A
n
a

6
0
0
 W

e
s
t 
S
a
n
ta
 A
n
a
 B
lv
d
.,
 

S
a
n
ta
 A
n
a
/H
o
m
e

1
/2
5
/2
0
0
7

M
e
e
ti
n
g
 w
it
h
 r
e
s
id
e
n
t 
D
o
n
 G
a
g
g
ia
n
o

T
o
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 a
n
d
 p
a
rt
ic
ip
a
te
 

a
s
 a
 c
it
y
 o
ff
ic
ia
l.

H
o
m
e
/C
it
y
 H
a
ll

C
it
y
 H
a
ll
/H
o
m
e

1
/2
5
/2
0
0
7

U
C
I 
2
0
0
7
 E
le
c
te
d
 O
ff
ic
ia
ls
 R
e
c
e
p
ti
o
n

T
o
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 a
n
d
 p
a
rt
ic
ip
a
te
 

a
s
 a
 c
it
y
 o
ff
ic
ia
l.

H
o
m
e
/4
1
9
9
 C
a
m
p
u
s
 D
ri
v
e
, 

Ir
v
in
e

4
1
9
9
 C
a
m
p
u
s
 D
ri
v
e
, 

Ir
v
in
e
/H
o
m
e

1
/2
6
/2
0
0
7

G
o
v
t.
 a
ff
a
ir
s
 C
h
a
m
b
e
r 
m
e
e
ti
n
g

T
o
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 a
n
d
 p
a
rt
ic
ip
a
te
 

a
s
 a
 c
it
y
 o
ff
ic
ia
l.

H
o
m
e
/C
o
x
 C
o
m
m
u
n
ic
a
ti
o
n
s
, 

2
9
9
4
7
 A
v
e
n
id
a
 d
e
 l
a
s
 

B
a
n
d
e
ra
s

R
S
M

C
o
x
 C
o
m
m
u
n
ic
a
ti
o
n
s
, 

2
9
9
4
7
 A
v
e
n
id
a
 d
e
 l
a
s
 

B
a
n
d
e
ra
s

R
S
M
/H
o
m
e

1
/2
6
/2
0
0
7

A
ff
o
rd
a
b
le
 H
o
u
s
in
g
 A
d
 H
o
c
 C
o
m
m
it
te
e
 

M
e
e
ti
n
g

T
o
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 a
n
d
 p
a
rt
ic
ip
a
te
 

a
s
 a
 c
it
y
 o
ff
ic
ia
l.

H
o
m
e
/C
it
y
 H
a
ll

C
it
y
 H
a
ll
/H
o
m
e

1
/2
9
/2
0
0
7

A
g
e
n
d
a
 R
e
v
ie
w

T
o
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 a
n
d
 p
a
rt
ic
ip
a
te
 

a
s
 a
 c
it
y
 o
ff
ic
ia
l.

H
o
m
e
/C
it
y
 H
a
ll

C
it
y
 H
a
ll
/H
o
m
e

1
/2
9
/2
0
0
7

B
u
d
g
e
t 
P
la
n
n
in
g
 M
e
e
ti
n
g

T
o
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 a
n
d
 p
a
rt
ic
ip
a
te
 

a
s
 a
 c
it
y
 o
ff
ic
ia
l.

H
o
m
e
/C
it
y
 H
a
ll

C
it
y
 H
a
ll
/H
o
m
e

1
/3
0
/2
0
0
7

C
h
a
m
b
e
r 
M
ix
e
r

T
o
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 a
n
d
 p
a
rt
ic
ip
a
te
 

a
s
 a
 c
it
y
 o
ff
ic
ia
l.

H
o
m
e
/3
6
 A
u
to
 C
e
n
te
r 
D
r

T
u
s
ti
n

3
6
 A
u
to
 C
e
n
te
r 
D
ri
v
e
, 

T
u
s
ti
n
/H
o
m
e

1
/3
1
/2
0
0
7

C
a
n
c
e
r 
R
e
c
o
g
n
it
io
n
 S
te
v
e
 B
e
ll

T
o
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 a
n
d
 p
a
rt
ic
ip
a
te
 

a
s
 a
 c
it
y
 o
ff
ic
ia
l.

H
o
m
e
/9
0
0
 N
e
w
p
o
rt
 C
e
n
te
r 

D
ri
v
e
, 
N
e
w
p
o
rt
 B
e
a
c
h

9
0
0
 N
e
w
p
o
rt
 C
e
n
te
r 
D
ri
v
e
, 

N
e
w
p
o
rt
 B
e
a
c
h
/H
o
m
e

1
/3
1
/2
0
0
7

B
o
y
 S
c
o
u
t 
T
o
u
r 
o
f 
C
it
y
 H
a
ll

T
o
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 a
n
d
 p
a
rt
ic
ip
a
te
 

a
s
 a
 c
it
y
 o
ff
ic
ia
l.

H
o
m
e
/C
it
y
 H
a
ll

C
it
y
 H
a
ll
/H
o
m
e

2
/1
/2
0
0
7

M
e
e
ti
n
g
 w
it
h
 S
im
o
n
 P
ro
p
e
rt
ie
s

T
o
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 a
n
d
 p
a
rt
ic
ip
a
te
 

a
s
 a
 c
it
y
 o
ff
ic
ia
l.

H
o
m
e
/O
c
e
a
n
s
 3
3
, 
7
9
9
 T
h
e
 

S
h
o
p
s
 o
f 
M
V

O
c
e
a
n
s
 3
3
, 
7
9
9
 T
h
e
 S
h
o
p
s
 

o
f 
M
V

2
/2
/2
0
0
7

B
re
a
k
fa
s
t 
w
it
h
 S
e
n
a
to
r 
D
ic
k
 A
c
k
e
rm

a
n

T
o
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 a
n
d
 p
a
rt
ic
ip
a
te
 

a
s
 a
 c
it
y
 o
ff
ic
ia
l.

H
o
m
e
/2
0
0
 S
. 
C
 S
tr
e
e
t,
 T
u
s
ti
n

2
0
0
 S
. 
C
 S
tr
e
e
t,
 

T
u
s
ti
n
/H
o
m
e

2
/3
/2
0
0
7

L
in
c
o
ln
 C
lu
b
 e
le
c
te
d
 o
ff
ic
ia
ls
 b
re
a
k
fa
s
t

T
o
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 a
n
d
 p
a
rt
ic
ip
a
te
 

a
s
 a
 c
it
y
 o
ff
ic
ia
l.

H
o
m
e
/B
a
lb
o
a
 B
a
y
 C
lu
b
, 
1
2
2
1
 

W
 C
o
a
s
t 
H
w
y
, 
N
e
w
p
o
rt
 

B
e
a
c
h

B
a
lb
o
a
 B
a
y
 C
lu
b
, 
1
2
2
1
 W

 

C
o
a
s
t 
H
w
y
, 
N
e
w
p
o
rt
 

B
e
a
c
h
/H
o
m
e

2
/5
/2
0
0
7

M
e
e
ti
n
g
 r
e
: 
E
c
o
n
 D
e
v
 P
la
n

T
o
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 a
n
d
 p
a
rt
ic
ip
a
te
 

a
s
 a
 c
it
y
 o
ff
ic
ia
l.

H
o
m
e
/C
it
y
 H
a
ll

C
it
y
 H
a
ll
/H
o
m
e

2
/5
/2
0
0
7

C
o
u
n
c
il
 M
e
e
ti
n
g

T
o
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 a
n
d
 p
a
rt
ic
ip
a
te
 

a
s
 a
 c
it
y
 o
ff
ic
ia
l.

H
o
m
e
/C
it
y
 H
a
ll

C
it
y
 H
a
ll
/H
o
m
e



A
B

 1
2
3
4
 R

E
P

O
R

T

N
a
m

e
:

T
ri

s
h
 K

e
ll
e
y
 1

0
1
-1

0
1
-7

7
3
6

0
1
/0

3
/0

7
 -
 0

1
/1

5
/0

7
L
a
s
t 
R
e
v
is
e
d
: 
0
2
/0
6
/0
7

D
a
te

E
v
e
n
t

P
u
rp

o
s
e

F
ro

m
/T

o
F
ro

m
/T

o

1
/1

9
/2

0
0
7

M
e
e
ti
n
g
 w

it
h
 S

te
p
h
a
n
ie

 P
a
u
l 
a
n
d
 T

in
a
 

F
in

le
y
 r

e
: 
B

o
a
rd

 a
n
d
 C

a
re

 F
a
c
il
it
ie

s

T
o
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 a
n
d
 p

a
rt

ic
ip

a
te

 

a
s
 a

 c
it
y
 o

ff
ic

ia
l.

H
o
m

e
/C

it
y
 H

a
ll

C
it
y
 H

a
ll
/H

o
m

e

1
/2

0
/2

0
0
7

R
ib

b
o
n
 C

u
tt

in
g
 f
o
r 

C
ru

is
e
 H

o
li
d
a
y
s
 o

f 

M
V

T
o
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 a
n
d
 p

a
rt

ic
ip

a
te

 

a
s
 a

 c
it
y
 o

ff
ic

ia
l.

H
o
m

e
/2

7
7
0
6
0
 S

a
n
ta

 

M
a
rg

a
ri

ta
 P

k
w

y
, 
M

V

2
7
7
0
6
0
 S

a
n
ta

 M
a
rg

a
ri

ta
 

P
k
w

y
, 
M

V
/H

o
m

e

1
/2

0
/2

0
0
7

G
ra

n
d
 O

p
e
n
in

g
 o

f 
J
a
g
u
a
r 

L
a
n
d
 R

o
v
e
r 

M
is

s
io

n
 V

ie
jo

T
o
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 a
n
d
 p

a
rt

ic
ip

a
te

 

a
s
 a

 c
it
y
 o

ff
ic

ia
l.

H
o
m

e
/J

a
g
u
a
r 

L
a
n
d
 R

o
v
e
r 

2
8
7
0
1
 M

a
rg

u
e
ri

te
 P

k
w

y
, 
M

V

J
a
g
u
a
r 

L
a
n
d
 R

o
v
e
r 

2
8
7
0
1
 

M
a
rg

u
e
ri

te
 P

k
w

y
, 

M
V

/H
o
m

e

1
/2

5
/2

0
0
7

O
C

F
A

 B
o
a
rd

 M
e
e
ti
n
g

T
o
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 a
n
d
 p

a
rt

ic
ip

a
te

 

a
s
 a

 b
o
a
rd

 m
e
m

b
e
r 

fo
r 

th
e
 

C
it
y
.

H
o
m

e
/O

C
F
A

 R
e
g
io

n
a
l 
F
ir

e
 

O
p
e
ra

ti
o
n
s
 a

n
d
 T

ra
in

in
g
 

C
e
n
te

r,
 1

 F
ir

e
 A

u
th

o
ri

ty
 

R
o
a
d
, 
Ir

v
in

e

O
C

F
A

 R
e
g
io

n
a
l 
F
ir

e
 

O
p
e
ra

ti
o
n
s
 a

n
d
 T

ra
in

in
g
 

C
e
n
te

r,
 1

 F
ir

e
 A

u
th

o
ri

ty
 

R
o
a
d
, 
Ir

v
in

e
/H

o
m

e

1
/2

6
/2

0
0
7

R
ib

b
o
n
 C

u
tt

in
g
 f
o
r 

B
o
a
rd

 a
n
d
 C

a
re

 

F
a
c
il
it
y
 f
o
r 

th
e
 E

ld
e
rl

T
o
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 a
n
d
 p

a
rt

ic
ip

a
te

 

a
s
 a

 c
it
y
 o

ff
ic

ia
l.

H
o
m

e
/2

3
6
3
1
 V

a
la

rt
a
 L

a
n
e
, 

M
V

2
3
6
3
1
 V

a
la

rt
a
 L

a
n
e
, 

M
V

/H
o
m

e

1
/2

9
/2

0
0
7

B
u
d
g
e
t 
P

la
n
n
in

g
 M

e
e
ti
n
g

T
o
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 a
n
d
 p

a
rt

ic
ip

a
te

 

a
s
 a

 c
it
y
 o

ff
ic

ia
l.

H
o
m

e
/C

it
y
 H

a
ll

C
it
y
 H

a
ll
/H

o
m

e

1
/3

0
/2

0
0
7

M
e
e
ti
n
g
 w

it
h
 B

u
s
in

e
s
s
 O

w
n
e
rs

 a
n
d
 

P
ro

p
e
rt

y
 M

a
n
a
g
e
r 

o
f 
K

a
la

id
e
s
c
o
p
e

T
o
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 a
n
d
 p

a
rt

ic
ip

a
te

 

a
s
 a

 c
it
y
 o

ff
ic

ia
l.

H
o
m

e
/K

a
le

id
e
s
c
o
p
e
 C

e
n
te

r,
 

M
V

K
a
le

id
e
s
c
o
p
e
 C

e
n
te

r,
 

M
V

/H
o
m

e

1
/3

1
/2

0
0
7

A
m

e
ri

c
a
n
 C

a
n
c
e
r 

S
o
c
ie

ty
 L

u
n
c
h
e
o
n

T
o
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 a
n
d
 p

a
rt

ic
ip

a
te

 

a
s
 a

 c
it
y
 o

ff
ic

ia
l.

M
a
rr

io
tt

, 
9
0
0
 N

e
w

p
o
rt

 C
e
n
te

r 

D
ri

v
e
, 
N

B

9
0
0
 N

e
w

p
o
rt

 C
e
n
e
r 

D
ri

v
e
, 

N
B

/H
o
m

e

2
/1

/2
0
0
7

M
e
e
ti
n
g
 w

it
h
 S

im
o
n
 P

ro
p
e
rt

ie
s
 

T
o
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 a
n
d
 p

a
rt

ic
ip

a
te

 

a
s
 a

 c
it
y
 o

ff
ic

ia
l.

H
o
m

e
/O

c
e
a
n
s
 3

3
, 
7
9
9
 T

h
e
 

S
h
o
p
s
 o

f 
M

is
s
io

n
 V

ie
jo

, 
M

V

o
f 
M

is
s
io

n
 V

ie
jo

, 

M
V

/H
o
m

e

2
/3

/2
0
0
7

A
rt

 E
x
h
ib

it

T
o
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 a
n
d
 p

a
rt

ic
ip

a
te

 

a
s
 a

 c
it
y
 o

ff
ic

ia
l.

H
o
m

e
/K

a
le

id
e
s
c
o
p
e
 C

e
n
te

r,
 

M
V

K
a
le

id
e
s
c
o
p
e
 C

e
n
te

r,
 

M
V

/H
o
m

e

2
/3

/2
0
0
7

R
e
p
u
b
li
c
a
n
 P

a
rt

y
 o

f 
O

C
 L

in
c
o
ln

 C
lu

b
 

B
re

a
k
fa

s
t

T
o
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 a
n
d
 p

a
rt

ic
ip

a
te

 

a
s
 a

 c
it
y
 o

ff
ic

ia
l.

M
a
c
A

rt
h
u
r 

B
lv

d
, 
N

e
w

p
o
rt

 

B
e
a
c
h

M
a
c
A

rt
h
u
r 

B
lv

d
, 
N

e
w

p
o
rt

 

B
e
a
c
h
/H

o
m

e



2
/5

/2
0
0
7

M
e
e
ti
n
g
 r

e
: 
E

c
o
n
 D

e
v
 P

la
n

T
o
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 a
n
d
 p

a
rt

ic
ip

a
te

 

a
s
 a

 c
it
y
 o

ff
ic

ia
l.

H
o
m

e
/C

it
y
 H

a
ll

C
it
y
 H

a
ll
/H

o
m

e

2
/5

/2
0
0
7

C
it
y
 C

o
u
n
c
il
 M

e
e
ti
n
g

T
o
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 a
n
d
 p

a
rt

ic
ip

a
te

 

a
s
 a

 c
it
y
 o

ff
ic

ia
l.

H
o
m

e
/C

it
y
 H

a
ll

C
it
y
 H

a
ll
/H

o
m

e



A
B
 1
2
3
4
 R
E
P
O
R
T

N
a
m
e
:

L
a
n
c
e
 M
a
c
L
e
a
n
 1
0
1
-1
0
1
-7
7
3
8

0
1
/1
6
/0
7
 -
 0
2
/0
5
/0
7

L
a
s
t 
R
e
v
is
e
d
: 
0
2
/0
6
/0
7

D
a
te

E
v
e
n
t

P
u
rp
o
s
e

F
ro
m
/T
o

F
ro
m
/T
o

1
/1
8
/2
0
0
7

C
in
c
o
 C
it
ie
s

T
o
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 a
n
d
 p
a
rt
ic
ip
a
te
 

a
s
 a
 b
o
a
rd
 m
e
m
b
e
r 
fo
r 
th
e
 

c
it
y
.

W
o
rk
/T
C
A
 I
rv
in
e

T
C
A
, 
Ir
v
in
e
/W

o
rk

1
/1
8
/2
0
0
7

L
O
C
C
 G
e
n
e
ra
l 
M
e
e
ti
n
g

T
o
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 a
n
d
 p
a
rt
ic
ip
a
te
 

a
s
 a
 c
it
y
 o
ff
ic
ia
l.

W
o
rk
/W

e
s
tm

in
s
te
r 
R
o
s
e
 

C
e
n
te
r,
 1
4
1
4
0
 A
ll
 A
m
e
ri
c
a
n
 

W
a
y
, 
W
e
s
tm

in
s
te
r

W
e
s
tm

in
s
te
r 
R
o
s
e
 C
e
n
te
r,
 

1
4
1
4
0
 A
ll
 A
m
e
ri
c
a
n
 W

a
y
, 

W
e
s
tm

in
s
te
r/
H
o
m
e

1
/2
0
/2
0
0
7

R
ib
b
o
n
 C
u
tt
in
g
 -
 C
ru
is
e
 H
o
li
d
a
y
s
 M
V

T
o
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 a
n
d
 p
a
rt
ic
ip
a
te
 

a
s
 a
 c
it
y
 o
ff
ic
ia
l.

H
o
m
e
/2
7
7
6
0
 S
a
n
ta
 M
a
rg
a
ri
ta
 

(P
o
rt
o
la
 P
la
z
a
) 
M
V

2
7
7
6
0
 S
a
n
ta
 M
a
rg
a
ri
ta
 

(P
o
rt
o
la
 P
la
z
a
),
 M
V
/H
o
m
e

1
/2
2
/2
0
0
7

T
o
ll
 R
o
a
d
 D
o
c
u
m
e
n
ta
ry
 I
n
te
rv
ie
w

T
o
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 a
n
d
 p
a
rt
ic
ip
a
te
 

a
s
 a
 b
o
a
rd
 m
e
m
b
e
r 
fo
r 
th
e
 

c
it
y
.

H
o
m
e
/C
it
y
 H
a
ll

C
it
y
 H
a
ll
/W

o
rk

1
/2
3
/2
0
0
7

O
C
 B
u
s
in
e
s
s
 C
o
u
n
c
il
 A
n
n
u
a
l 
D
in
n
e
r

T
o
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 a
n
d
 p
a
rt
ic
ip
a
te
 

a
s
 a
 c
it
y
 o
ff
ic
ia
l.

W
o
rk
/H
y
a
tt
 R
e
g
e
n
c
y
 I
rv
in
e
, 

1
7
9
0
0
 J
a
m
b
o
re
e
 R
o
a
d
, 
Ir
v
in
e

H
y
a
tt
 R
e
g
e
n
c
y
 I
rv
in
e
, 

1
7
9
0
0
 J
a
m
b
o
re
e
 R
o
a
d
, 

Ir
v
in
e
/H
o
m
e

1
/2
5
/2
0
0
7

F
/E
T
C
A
 E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 S
e
a
rc
h
 A
d
 H
o
c

T
o
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 a
n
d
 p
a
rt
ic
ip
a
te
 

a
s
 a
 b
o
a
rd
 m
e
m
b
e
r 
fo
r 
th
e
 

c
it
y
.

W
o
rk
/T
C
A
 I
rv
in
e

T
C
A
, 
Ir
v
in
e
/W

o
rk

1
/2
5
/2
0
0
7

U
C
I 
2
0
0
7
 E
le
c
te
d
 O
ff
ic
ia
ls
 R
e
c
e
p
ti
o
n

T
o
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 a
n
d
 p
a
rt
ic
ip
a
te
 

a
s
 a
 c
it
y
 o
ff
ic
ia
l.

W
o
rk
/4
1
9
9
 C
a
m
p
u
s
 D
ri
v
e
, 

Ir
v
in
e

4
1
9
9
 C
a
m
p
u
s
 D
ri
v
e
, 

Ir
v
in
e
/H
o
m
e

1
/2
6
/2
0
0
7

A
ff
o
rd
a
b
le
 H
o
u
s
in
g
 A
d
 H
o
c
 C
o
m
m
it
te
e
 

M
e
e
ti
n
g

T
o
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 a
n
d
 p
a
rt
ic
ip
a
te
 

a
s
 a
 c
it
y
 o
ff
ic
ia
l.

W
o
rk
/C
it
y
 H
a
ll

C
it
y
 H
a
ll
/W

o
rk

1
/2
9
/2
0
0
7

B
u
d
g
e
t 
P
la
n
n
in
g
 M
e
e
ti
n
g

T
o
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 a
n
d
 p
a
rt
ic
ip
a
te
 

a
s
 a
 c
it
y
 o
ff
ic
ia
l.

W
o
rk
/C
it
y
 H
a
ll

C
it
y
 H
a
ll
/W

o
rk

1
/3
1
/2
0
0
7

F
/E
T
C
A
 L
e
g
is
la
ti
v
e
 A
d
 H
o
c
 M
e
e
ti
n
g

T
o
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 a
n
d
 p
a
rt
ic
ip
a
te
 

a
s
 a
 b
o
a
rd
 m
e
m
b
e
r 
fo
r 
th
e
 

c
it
y
.

W
o
rk
/T
C
A
 I
rv
in
e

T
C
A
, 
Ir
v
in
e
/W

o
rk



1
/3
1
/2
0
0
7

F
/E
T
C
A
 O
p
e
ra
ti
o
n
s
 &
 F
in
a
n
c
e
 

C
o
m
m
it
te
e
 M
e
e
ti
n
g

T
o
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 a
n
d
 p
a
rt
ic
ip
a
te
 

a
s
 a
 b
o
a
rd
 m
e
m
b
e
r 
fo
r 
th
e
 

c
it
y
.

W
o
rk
/T
C
A
 I
rv
in
e

T
C
A
, 
Ir
v
in
e
/W

o
rk

2
/2
/2
0
0
7

S
e
n
a
to
r 
D
ic
k
 A
c
k
e
rm

a
n
 B
re
a
k
fa
s
t

T
o
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 a
n
d
 p
a
rt
ic
ip
a
te
 

a
s
 a
 c
it
y
 o
ff
ic
ia
l.

H
o
m
e
/2
0
0
 S
o
u
th
 C
 S
tr
e
e
t,
 

T
u
s
ti
n

2
0
0
 S
o
u
th
 C
 S
tr
e
e
t,
 

T
u
s
ti
n
/W

o
rk

2
/5
/2
0
0
7

C
it
y
 C
o
u
n
c
il
 M
e
e
ti
n
g

T
o
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 a
n
d
 p
a
rt
ic
ip
a
te
 

a
s
 a
 c
it
y
 o
ff
ic
ia
l.

W
o
rk
/C
it
y
 H
a
ll

C
it
y
 H
a
ll
/H
o
m
e



















City of Mission Viejo 
Agenda Report to City Council 

 

 

 

Council Meeting Date: February 5, 2007 

 

City Council Member: Trish Kelley  

 

Agenda Title:  Response to CUSD Plan for Blanket Environmental Impact 

Report for District-Wide School Facilities 

 

Recommended Actions:  Send a letter to CUSD asking for rescission of the prior 

Board of Trustees approval authorizing the preparation of 

an Environmental Impact Report covering every CUSD 

school 

 

 

Discussion:   

 

On December 12, 2005, CUSD Board of Trustees approved a preparation of an EIR 

which would cover every school in the District for the purpose of “maximization of 

portable classrooms on all sites in the district.”  A copy of the CUSD Staff Report for this 

agenda item is attached.   

 

 Trustee Larry Christensen recently placed this item back on the CUSD agenda, and it will 

be considered at the CUSD Board Meeting of February 12, 2007.  The Board will be 

asked to vote on whether this blanket EIR should be dropped. 

 

 The City of Mission Viejo should be concerned about the concept of a blanket EIR 

covering the entire school district.  This EIR would allow CUSD to maximize the use of 

portable classrooms on all sites.  Newhart Middle School is one example of a Mission 

Viejo school that has been impacted by the use of portables on the campus, as well as an 

increase in student population.  The majority of the classrooms on the Newhart campus 

are portables.  The increase in student population has had a detrimental impact on the 

neighborhoods adjoining the school where many students are dropped off and picked up.   

 

 A blanket EIR would provide for Title 14 Exemptions for CUSD under CEQA.  This 

would allow the school district to increase the original student capacity of a school by 

25% or to add ten additional classrooms to a school—without the need for any 

environmental analysis.  Item K in the attached proposal to CUSD from the consultant, 

Culbertson, Adams, & Associates states in part:  “by creating the expectation that certain 

sites will change over time, and by providing the broad based environmental 

documentation which anticipates those changes, the District can enjoy a considerable 

savings as it actually implements these design plans.  For example, each year the District 

pays for consulting services for portable classroom additions.  If the District were to 

identify the maximization of portable classrooms on all sites in the District and publish 

and certify an environmental document documenting the effects of these additions, when 



those additions were actually implemented, minimal environmental documentation, if 

any, would be necessary…” For Mission Viejo, the environmental consequences of 

increasing student capacity of a school could be significant, but the City could not stop 

such future expansions if the blanket EIR is approved by CUSD. 

 

 I suggest that the City Council send a letter to the CUSD Board of Trustees urging them 

to rescind the approval of the preparation of an EIR that would cover every school in the 

District.   

 



















































































































CC-001C 
  

City of Mission Viejo 
Agenda Report to City Council 

 

 

 

Council Meeting Date: February 5, 2007 

 

City Council Member: Ledesma  

 

Agenda Title:  Introduction and consideration of a loitering ordinance 

 

Recommended Action:  Introduce Ordinance 07-XXX Adding Section 11.16.090 to 

Chapter 11.16 of Title 11 of the Mission Viejo Municipal Code 

Prohibiting Trespass on Private Property 

 

 

Discussion:   

 

In response to complaints from residents and businesses regarding excessive loitering we should 

provide a better vehicle for businesses to preserve their property rights.  The attached ordinance 

is based on a very similar ordinance that was passed by the City of Lake Forest and appears to be 

having a positive impact in that city. 

 

 



 

 

ORDINANCE 07-246 

 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

MISSION VIEJO, CALIFORNIA, ADDING SECTION 11.16.090 TO 

CHAPTER 11.16 OF TITLE 11 OF THE MISSION VIEJO 

MUNICIPAL CODE PROHIBITING TRESPASS ON PRIVATE 

PROPERTY 

 

 THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF MISSION VIEJO DOES 

ORDAIN AS FOLLOWS: 
 

 Section 1. Findings. 

 

 A. The City of Mission Viejo, as a general law city, is authorized by 

California Constitution Article XI, Section VII to make and enforce within its limits all 

local, police, sanitary, and other ordinances and regulations.  The City Council, as a 

policy, always seeks to ensure public safety is given the highest priority. 

 

 B. California Penal Code Section 602 prohibits trespass on private property 

and the interference with a lawful business being carried out on the property. 

 

 C. The City of Mission Viejo now desires to provide a property owner 

enhanced means by which they may regulate trespass on private property, by way of this 

Ordinance, to prohibit persons from remaining on private property without the consent of 

the owner(s). 

 

 Section 2. Ordinance:  Amendment to Municipal Code. 

 

Section 11.16.090 of Chapter 11 of Title 11 of the Mission Viejo Municipal Code is 

hereby added as follows: 

 

“Section 11.16.090.   Trespasses upon private property prohibited. 

 

“(A)  No person shall remain upon any private property or business 

premises, after being notified by the owner, owner’s agent, lessee, or by a 

peace officer acting at the request of any of the above to remove 

themselves and their possession therefrom.  For purposes of this section a 

lessee includes a tenant in lawful possession of real property and a 

licensee.   

 

“(B)  No person, without permission, express or implied, from the owner, 

owner’s agent, or lessee, shall enter upon the private property or business 

premises after having been notified by the owner, owner’s agent, or lessee 

to keep off or keep away therefrom. 

 

“(C)  No person shall enter or remain upon posted private property without 

the permission, expressed or implied, of the owner, owner’s agent, or 

lessee of such posted property or premises. 



 

 

 

“(D)  Exceptions.  This section shall not apply in any of the following 

instances: 

 

 “(1)  Where its application results in or is coupled with an act 

prohibited by the Unruh Civil Rights Act or any other applicable provision 

of law relating to prohibited discrimination against any person on account 

of sex, race, color, religious, creed, ancestry, national origin, disability, 

medical condition, marital status, or sexual orientation;  

 

 “(2)  Where its application results in or is coupled with an act 

prohibited by Section 365 of the California Penal Code, as the same may 

be amended from time to time, or any other provision of law relating to 

duties of innkeepers and common carriers; 

 

 “(3)  Where its application would result in an interference with or 

inhibition of peaceful labor picketing or other lawful labor activities; 

 

 “(4)  Where its application would result in an interference with or 

inhibition of any other exercise of a constitutionally protected right of 

freedom of speech such as (but not limited to) peaceful expressions of 

political or religious opinions, not involving offensive personal conduct; 

or 

 

 “(5)  Where the person who is upon another’s private property or 

business premises is there under claim or color of legal right.  This 

exception is applicable (but not limited to) the following types of 

situations involving disputes wherein the participants have available to 

them practical and effective civil remedies:  marital and postmarital 

disputes, child custody or visitation disputes, disputes regarding title to or 

rights in real property, landlord-tenant disputes, disputes between 

members of the same family or between persons residing upon the 

property concerned up until the time of the dispute, employer-employee 

disputes, business-type disputes such as those between partners, debtor-

creditor disputes, and instances wherein the person claims rights to be 

present pursuant to order, decree or process of a court. 

 

“(E)  As used in this section, “posted property” means any property at 

each corner of which, at each entrance to which, a sign is posted three feet 

above grade and said sign is composed of wood, metal or other equally 

substantial material, the face of which is not less than one square foot in 

area, and upon which, in legible letters not less than two inches in height 

in black against a white background, appear the words “PRIVATE 

PROPERTY – NO TRESPASS.”  In addition, the sign may contain such 

other words as may be desired, indicating that trespassers are subject to 

prosecution.  Where the area of such property exceeds one acre, the notice 

shall also be posted a multiple location which are at intervals of not more 

than three hundred feet along or near the boundaries thereof.” 



 

 

 

 Section 3. Compliance with California Environmental Quality Act. 

 

The City Council finds that this Ordinance is not subject to the California environmental 

Quality Act (“CEQA”) pursuant to Sections 15060(c)(2) (the activity will not result in a 

direct or reasonably foreseeable indirect physical change in the environment) and 

15060(c)(3) (the activity is not a project as defined in Section 15378) of the State CEQA 

Guidelines, California Code of Regulations, Title 14, Chapter 3, because it has no 

potential for resulting in physical change to the environment, directly or indirectly.  

Further, if the activity is deemed a project this City Council finds that this Ordinance is 

exempt pursuant to Section 15061(b)(3) of the State CEQA Guidelines. 

 

 Section 4. Severability. 

 

If any provision of this ordinance or the application thereof to any person or circumstance 

is held invalid, such invalidity shall not affect other provisions or applications of this 

Ordinance which can be given effect without the invalid provision or application, and to 

this end the provisions of this Ordinance are severable.  The City Council hereby declares 

that it would have adopted this Ordinance irrespective of the invalidity of any particular 

portion thereof. 

 

 Section 5. Effective Date. 

 

This Ordinance shall become effective thirty (30) days from its adoption. 

 

 Section 6. Publication. 

 

The City Clerk shall certify to the adoption of this Ordinance and cause it, or a summary 

of it, to be published once in a newspaper of general circulation printed and published 

within the City of Mission Viejo, pursuant to all legal requirements. 

 

 PASSED, APPROVED AND ADOPTED this 19
th
 day of February, 2007. 

 

 

      ___________________________________ 

      Gail Reavis, Mayor 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

______________________________ 

Karen Hamman, CMC 

City Clerk 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

 

 

_______________________________ 

William P. Curley III, 

City Attorney 

 

 

 

STATE OF CALIFORNIA ) 

COUNTY OF ORANGE ) ss. 

CITY OF MISSION VIEJO ) 

 

I, Karen Hamman, CMC, City Clerk of the City of Mission Viejo, do hereby certify that 

the foregoing Ordinance No. 07-246 was duly introduced and placed upon its first 

reading at a regular meeting of the City Council on the 5
th
 day of February, 2007, and 

thereafter, said Ordinance was duly adopted and passed at a regular meeting of the City 

Council on the 19th day of February, 2007, by the following vote, to wit: 

 

AYES:  COUNCIL MEMBERS: 

NOES:  COUNCIL MEMBERS: 

ABSENT: COUNCIL MEMBERS: 

ABSTAINED: COUNCIL MEMBERS: 

 

 

      ____________________________________ 

      Karen Hamman, CMC, City Clerk 

 

 


	AGENDA
	MEETING ITEMS
	City Council Agenda 2/5/07
	[AGENDA.doc]

	Public Comments
	[PUBLIC COMMENTS.tif]

	02 - City Council Minutes 1/15/07
	[APPROVED MINUTES.tif]
	[DRAFT MINUTES.doc]

	04 - Check Register Dated January 5, 2007, in the Amount of $1,103,702.59
	[AGENDA REPORT.doc]
	[EXHIBIT.tif]

	05 - Check Register Dated January 12, 2007, in the Amount of $1,849,720.35
	[AGENDA REPORT.doc]
	[EXHIBIT.tif]

	06 - Check Register Dated January 19, 2007, in the Amount of $2,438,862.97
	[EXHIBIT.tif]
	[AGENDA REPORT.doc]

	07 - Change in Meeting Time for Regular Planning Commission Meetings
	[AGENDA REPORT.doc]
	[EXHIBIT.tif]
	[DRAFT RESOLUTION.doc]
	[APPROVED RESOLUTION - R07-08.tif]

	08 - Norman P. Murray Community and Senior Center Expansion Project
	[AGENDA REPORT.doc]
	[EXHIBIT A.doc]
	[EXHIBIT B.tif]
	[APPROVED AGREEMENT - A07-03.tif]

	09 - Norman P. Murray Community and Senior Center Expansion (CIP 994)
	[AGENDA REPORT.doc]
	[DRAFT CHANGE ORDER.pdf]
	[EXHIBIT A.doc]
	[APPROVED CHANGE ORDER - A06-30.tif]

	10 - Donation Policy for City Parks & Rec Facility & Programs
	[AGENDA REPORT.doc]
	[EXHIBIT B.doc]
	[EXHIBIT A.doc]
	[EXHIBIT C.pdf]
	[EXHIBIT D.pdf]
	[DRAFT RESOLUTION.doc]
	[APPROVED RESOLUTION - R07-09.tif]

	11 - Mission Viejo Paleontological Fossil Contract Agreement
	[AGENDA REPORT.doc]
	[EXHIBIT A.pdf]
	[EXHIBIT B.pdf]
	[APPROVED AGREEMENT - A07-04.tif]

	12 - Youth Athletic Park Change of Time for Ball Field Lights
	[AGENDA REPORT.doc]
	[DRAFT RESOLUTION.doc]
	[EXHIBIT A.pdf]
	[PUBLIC COMMENTS.tif]
	[APPROVED RESOLUTION - R07-10.tif]

	13 - Solid Waste Franchise Agreement with WMOC
	[AGENDA REPORT.doc]
	[EXHIBIT A.pdf]

	14 - Rate Adjustment to Solid Waste Delivered to Southeast Resource Recovery Facility
	[AGENDA REPORT.doc]
	[DRAFT RESOLUTION.doc]
	[EXHIBIT A.pdf]
	[EXHIBIT B.xls]
	[EXHIBIT C.pdf]

	15 - Felipe Road Resurfacing Project (CIP 837)
	[AGENDA REPORT.doc]
	[MAPS.doc]
	[Bid Specs.pdf]
	[BID SPECIFICATIONS.doc]
	[BID SPECIFICATIONS.doc]
	[BID SPECIFICATIONS.doc]
	[BID SPECIFICATIONS.doc]
	[BID SPECIFICATIONS.doc]
	[BID SPECIFICATIONS.doc]

	16 - Melinda Park Restroom - CIP 308
	[AGENDA REPORT.doc]
	[EXHIBIT A.doc]
	[EXHIBIT B.pdf]

	17 - Replacement of Casework and Countertops at the MV Animal Services Center
	[AGENDA REPORT.doc]
	[EXHIBIT A.doc]
	[EXHIBIT B.tif]
	[APPROVED AGREEMENT - A07-05.tif]

	18 - Ratification of Emergency Replacement of the Library Boiler for HVAC
	[AGENDA REPORT.doc]
	[EXHIBIT A.tif]
	[EXHIBIT B.pdf]

	20 - El Toro Reuse Planning Authority
	[COMMITTEE REPORT.pdf]
	[DRAFT RESOLUTION.doc]
	[APPROVED RESOLUTION - R07-11.tif]

	24 - ULI Tech. Advisory Panel Wkshop for M.V. Village Ctr. Area (Marg./La Paz)
	[AGENDA REPORT.doc]
	[EXHIBIT A.tif]
	[EXHIBIT B.tif]
	[EXHIBIT C.tif]
	[EXHIBIT D.tif]
	[EXHIBIT E.tif]

	25 - Council Member Reports of Events and Activities Attended
	[AGENDA REPORT.doc]
	[EXHIBIT.xls]
	[EXHIBIT.xls]
	[EXHIBIT.xls]
	[EXHIBIT.pdf]

	26 - Response to CUSD Plan for Blanket Environmental Impact Report
	[COUNCIL COMMENTS.doc]
	[EXHIBIT A.pdf]
	[EXHIBIT B.tif]
	[OTHER.pdf]

	27 - Introduce and Consider a Loitering Ordinance
	[COUNCIL COMMENTS.doc]
	[DRAFT ORDINANCE.doc]



